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Introduction

Township of Langley at a glance
Incorporated

Acres of Dedicated Park Land

Cost of Average Home

April 26, 1873

•1,233 total acres of park land
•342 acres of active park land
•529 acres of passive park land		
including undeveloped park land
•324 acres of acquired conservation
land
•38 acres of greenways/trails

$487,155

Population (Next Census 2010)
*101,990

Average Age
39.1 years

Area
316 square kilometres (122 square miles)

Residential Housing Starts
• 310 Single-family
• 104 Secondary suites
• 530 Multi-family

Area within the Agricultural
Land Reserve

Construction Value of Building
Permits Issued

75 percent

•
•
•
•
•
•

235 square kilometres (91 square miles)
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Agricultural: 5.9 million
Commercial: 100.3 million
Residential: 164.5 million
Industrial: 18.3 million
Institutional: 12.8 million
Total: 301.8 million

Building Permits Issued
2,555

Business Licences Issued
1,323

Employment Rate
(Next Census 2010)

Job ratio per employable resident 0.93

* Township estimates April 2009
All other information as of
December 31, 2008
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A community unlike any other, the Township of Langley is a place where the
rich heritage of the past is combined with a vibrant vision for the future, and
rural beauty is complimented by an energetic urban atmosphere.
Building on History

Investing in the Future

The Birthplace of BC

The Sustainability Charter

This year marked the 150th birthday of the
province of British Columbia. On
November 19, 1858, the proclamation of
Crown Colony status was made in the Big
House at Fort Langley by BC’s first governor
Sir James Douglas; thus Fort Langley was
proclaimed the Birthplace of British Columbia.

The Township of Langley’s sustainability vision
is “to build a legacy for future generations by
leading and committing the community to a
lifestyle that is socially, culturally, economically,
and environmentally balanced.” Holding true
to this vision, on June 23, 2008, Council
adopted the Sustainability Charter, a high-level,
long-term policy to guide the Corporation and
the community to a sustainable future.

To celebrate this historic event, the village of
Fort Langley and the Township of Langley
annually host the Douglas Day celebration to
pay homage to the past, and to honour the
pioneering families who made the Township
of Langley the place it is today.
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Formulated using ideas gained through
community engagement programs,
consultation with staff, Council commissions
and committees, and the general public,
the Charter builds on existing goals and
objectives. The Charter will assist in ensuring
the municipality remains balanced as it
experiences planned growth, and will further
inspire all residents to think, make decisions,
and act with an eye to the future.
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Growing Concern
Agriculture

Everything You Could
Want or Need

Things to See and Do
Activities and Events

Urban Amenities
With 75 percent of the Township located within
the Agricultural Land Reserve, agriculture has
traditionally played an important role in our
municipality, and it continues to do so today.
These days farming is not just about crops,
fields, and barns, it’s about technology, niche
markets, and creative promotional campaigns.
Farmers are creating innovative ways of living
off their land. Some are turning to science for
methods to improve production, while others
are employing tourism strategies to sell their
specialty crops and products, which range
from wines and berries, to organic turkey to
lavender.
As a result, the variety and freshness of our
agricultural industry and other farm products
are being discovered and recognized by
residents and visitors alike. Local farm gate
receipts total approximately $200 million per
year, and events like the regional Circle Farm
Tour have put the Township on the map as a
destination for those shopping for unique gifts
or stocking their kitchens. The Township also
has the famed reputation of being the Horse
Capital of BC for our abundance of equine
activities and facilities.
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The scenery is beautiful, the air is fresh, and
there is plenty of green space in the Township
of Langley, but we are much more than just
country living; we are a bustling, vibrant
municipality which boasts all the convenience
and amenities of an exciting urban centre.
We offer numerous programs, services, and
facilities that provide the best quality of life for
our residents and visitors.
From movie theatres and live theatres, to
restaurants, pubs, and clubs, there are many
entertainment options for those looking for
a night out. Families can enjoy all kinds of
activities at our libraries, recreation centres,
and community centres. We are home to the
Willowbrook Regional Town Centre, the largest
retail area in the Lower Mainland outside of
Vancouver. Combined with several distinct
shopping neighbourhoods, unique boutiques,
and destination shops, the Township of
Langley is a Mecca for shoppers.

Whether it is our heritage, the bounty of the fall
harvest, the environment, or the promotion of
physical fitness, there are plenty of reasons to
get together and have fun with family, friends,
and neighbours.
No matter what the season, there are many
free, family-oriented events happening in the
Township. Some of our most popular events
include: Municipal Awareness Day, Arbour
Day, the Langley Walk, May Day, Canada Day,
Aldergrove Festival Days, BC Day, Cranberry
Festival, Douglas Day,and Christmas in
Williams Park.
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A Community of Communities
History, Housing, Shopping, Industry: all can be found in the
Township of Langley

PITT MEADOWS

Aldergrove
*Population 11,914
Located on the eastern border of the Township,
Aldergrove is a mix of rural, residential, and
business uses, and is home to the Aldergrove
Kinsmen Community Centre, Gloucester
Industrial Park, parkland, and shops.

Walnut Grove

SURREY
99A

Located in the south of the Township,
Brookswood/Fernridge is a residential area
that features single-family homes, and an
abundance of parkland, trees, natural spaces,
and conservation areas. It is also home to the
George Preston Recreation Centre, a skate
park, BMX track, and a destination shopping
district.

Fort Langley
*Population 2,962
Known as the Birthplace of BC, this village is
home to the Hudson’s Bay Company’s Fort
Langley, now a National Historic Site. Located
on the banks of the Fraser River, it is a popular
spot for tourist, shoppers, and diners. Fort
Langley features museums, stores, restaurants,
art galleries, parks, trails, and the new Langley
Rowing and Paddling Centre.
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Fort Langley

Willoughby

Willowbrook

11

LANGLEY CITY
Murrayville

1
1A

Brookswood/
Fernridge

Brookswood/Fernridge
*Population 13,045

MISSION

MAPLE RIDGE

99

Aldergrove

TOWNSHIP
OF LANGLEY

ABBOTSFORD

USA

Murrayville

Willoughby

*Population 7,926

*Population 16,974

The traditional civic core of the Township,
Murrayville is where the Langley RCMP
detachment, the Langley School District
offices, the W.C. Blair Recreation Centre,
and Langley Memorial Hospital are located.
Surrounded by homes and shops, Murrayville
is home to the Langley Regional Airport.

Currently one of the centres of growth, this
vibrant, developing community features
burgeoning new neighbourhoods that provide
housing, parks, and shopping. Willoughby
is home to the Township’s Civic Facility,
Willowbrook Recreation Centre, and the
Langley Events Centre scheduled to
open in 2009.

Walnut Grove
*Population 22,855
A residential neighbourhood in northwest Langley,
Walnut Grove is home to the Walnut Grove
Community Centre, theatres, and shops. The new
Golden Ears Bridge, scheduled for completion
in 2009, will open this area of the Township to
communities north of the Fraser River.

*2008 Estimates
Provided by Statistics Canada
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Live Here, Work Here

To Your Health

Housing and Business

An Active Community

Over 6,000 companies call the Township
home. With our easy access to transportation
routes, the US border, a skilled workforce, large
industrial floor space, and one of the largest
retail centres in the Lower Mainland, the
Township has everything needed to create and
maintain a successful business.

Get moving, feel good, experience better
health. That was the goal when the Township
launched Go Active Langley in 2008. As
part of the province-wide Active Communities
initiative, the program was created for
Township residents to experience fun ways to
enjoy an active lifestyle.

Over the past four decades, the Township has
realized a dramatic increase in population.
Business, industrial, and commercial
developments have kept pace, providing a
healthy balance between a growing labour
force and job opportunities. The Township has
one of the lowest rates of business bankruptcy
in Metro Vancouver, and a goal to supply one
job for every Langley resident in the employed
labour force.

In 2006, Active Communities was launched
to encourage British Columbians to increase
their physical activity by 2010 by a minimum
of 20 percent. Go Active Langley (GoAL) is the
Township’s Active Communities initiative: the
program includes hands-on events, workshops,
after school programs, and educational
sessions to raise awareness to the benefits
of regular physical activity, and to promote
healthy lifestyles.

With recreation centres, ice arenas, swimming
pools, parks, trails, golf courses, and green
spaces, the Township has many choices to
help residents to achieve their fitness GoALs.
To add to the existing complement of facilities,
the Langley Events Centre (opening 2009),
will showcase a number of sports, and provide
numerous athletic activities and events for
participants and spectators.

People are choosing to live in the Township,
where we pride ourselves on developing
vibrant, complete neighbourhoods that offer
flexible, affordable, and mixed housing options,
and the opportunity to live, work, shop, and
play in a safe community.
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Lights, Camera, Action
The Film Industry
Our picturesque setting and excellent
production capabilities have enticed movie
makers and production companies to our
municipality for years. The Township of Langley
also is a fiscally desirable location to film,
partially due to a provincial tax credit given to
film companies that work east of 200 Street.
As a result, more than $40 million is injected
into our local economy every year by movie
makers. You will see familiar local landmarks
in productions such as the Dr. Doolittle
sequels, the TV show Supernatural, and in the
popular doggie-filled “Buddies” movies.

TOWNSHIP OF LANGLEY 2008 ANNUAL REPORT

9

Introduction

2008-2011 Council
Back row
Councillor Grant Ward, Councillor Mel Kositsky, Councillor Kim Richter, Councillor Bev Dornan, Councillor Steve Ferguson, Councillor Bob Long

Front Row
Councillor Jordan Bateman, Mayor Rick Green, Councillor Charlie Fox
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Mayor’s Message
On behalf of Township of Langley Council, I am pleased to present the
2008 Annual Report.
Our municipality is a unique place, where exciting mixes of urban
and rural character are reflected in our residents’ lifestyles, and in our
diverse communities. The Township is home to an abundance of parks,
trails, and green spaces, and offers many opportunities to experience
country living, and explore the beauty of nature. With three-quarters
of the municipality in the Agricultural Land Reserve, many farmers
are finding new and innovative ways to prosper and contribute to our
healthy local economy.
Known as the Horse Capital of BC for our thriving equine activities,
the Township is gaining a well-deserved reputation as a sport tourism
destination. Whether you are a spectator or a participant, we are proud
to provide many opportunities to get involved in athletics through our
recreation programs, and our excellent indoor and outdoor facilities.
While the natural allure of our municipality’s landscape provides a
healthy dose of country living, the convenience and diversity of many
urban amenities is only minutes away. The Township boasts one of
the largest retail centres in Metro Vancouver, and is a strong centre
for commerce. Our proximity to major transportation routes and the
Canada/US border, a large industrial floor space, and access to
several training facilities has helped our municipality create an
environment that allows thousands of businesses to thrive.
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Tourism is also an important part of our economy, and our ties to
history have always been an attraction to both residents and visitors. In
2008, the Township’s role in the creation of British Columbia put us in
the spotlight when BC marked its 150th birthday on
November 19. It was here in Fort Langley that Sir James Douglas made
the proclamation that brought the Crown Colony of BC into being, and
our annual Douglas Day celebration was the highlight of a year full of
sesquicentennial events held in our municipality and throughout the
province.
As we move forward, and look towards the future, the Township will
continue to offer a positive, sustainable quality of life to those who live,
work, and visit here, and we thank the many community members,
municipal employees, and volunteers who help make that possible.

W. Rick Green
Mayor
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Administrator’s Message
Each year, the Township of Langley takes on the challenge of balancing
fiscal responsibility with the need to provide services for those who live
and work in our community. With 100,000 residents, and more than
6,000 businesses making the Township their home, the municipality
relies on the vision of Council to chart the course of action for the year,
and calls on the expertise of 850 employees to get the job done.

In this report you will find documentation of the steps that were taken
to provide and enhance the services, infrastructure, and programs that
are required to meet the demands of our vibrant, diverse community.
The 2008 Annual Report outlines the Township’s assets and liabilities,
details our accomplishments and financial activities, and offers a
glimpse into our strategies and goals for the years to come.

The accomplishments and goals reached by the Township in 2008 are
outlined in this Annual Report, which presents our financial statements
and statistical data, and provides a snapshot of our progress and
achievements over the year.

We hope you use this Annual Report as a tool to get to know your
municipality. Whether you are a long time resident or are new to the
area, there is much to learn about, experience, and explore in the
Township of Langley.
For more information, please visit our website at tol.bc.ca.

Mark A. Bakken
Administrator
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Organizational Chart
Mayor and Council
Advisory
Committees
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Community Development

Corporate Administration

Engineering

Finance

Human Resources

Protective Services - Fire

Protective Services - RCMP

Recreation, Culture, and Parks

14

TOWNSHIP OF LANGLEY 2008 ANNUAL REPORT

Introduction

2008 Committees
Township of Langley Committees

Organizational Appointments

• Agricultural Advisory Committee

• BC Farm Machinery Museum

• Heritage Advisory Committee

• E-Comm Board of Directors

• Community Safety Advisory Committee

• Fraser Health Municipal Government
Advisory Council

• Economic Development
Advisory Committee

• Fraser Valley Regional Library Board

• Lower Mainland Treaty
Advisory Committee
• TransLink
• West Nile Virus Committee

Legislative Appointments

• Recreation, Culture, and Parks
Advisory Committee

• Greater Vancouver Regional District
Municipal Board Of Directors

• Youth Advisory Committee

• GVRD – Agricultural Committee

• Joint Family Court and Youth
Justice Committee

• GVRD - Housing Committee

• Parcel Tax Roll Review Panel

• Board of Variance

• GVRD - Labour Relations Bureau
• GVRD - Land Use and
Transportation Committee
• GVRD - Mayors Committee
• GVRD - Parks Committee
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Community and Capital
Improvement Grants
Through an approved budget expenditure of $260,000 allocated for grants,
the Township of Langley provided funding and support to the following
organizations and events:
• Alder Grove Heritage Society

• Brookswood Secondary School

• Fort Langley Legacy Foundation

• Aldergrove Agricultural Association

• Campbell Valley Equestrian Society

• Fort Langley Lions Senior Hall

• Aldergrove Community
Secondary – 50th Anniversary
Celebration Committee

• Canadian Animal Rescue and Extended
Shelter Society

• Fraser Valley Diving Society

• Aldergrove Elks

• Canadian Project for Manners
and Civility

• Aldergrove Festival Days

• Critter Care Wildlife Society

• Aldergrove Neighbourhood Services

• D.W. Poppy Secondary School

• Aldergrove Rotary Club

• Fibromyalgia Well Spring Foundation

• B.C. Farm Machinery and Agricultural
Museum Association

• First Capital Barbershop Chorus

• Benevolent Protective Order
of Elks #259
• Brookswood Community Association
• Brookswood Community Club
Association
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• Fort Langley Business Improvement
Association
• Fort Langley Canoe Club
• Fort Langley Community Halll
• Fort Langley Community
Improvement Society

• Harmsworth Community Association
• Intercultural Harmony Society
• Intercultural Network
• James Kennedy Elementary
School PAC
• Kiwanis Fraser Valley Music
Festival Society
• Langley Aero Club
• Langley Animal Protection Society
• Langley Arts Council
• Langley Association for
Community Living
• Langley Canada Day

TOWNSHIP OF LANGLEY 2008 ANNUAL REPORT

Introduction

• Celebration Society

• Langley Scholarship Committee

• Pitch-In Canada

• Langley Community Chorus

• Langley Seniors Resources Society

• R.E. Mountain Secondary School

• Langley District 4-H

• Langley Ukulele Association

• Langley Emergency
Communicators Society

• Langley’s Early Childhood Development
Steering Committee

• Royal Canadian Legion
Aldergrove # 265

• Langley Fine Arts School

• Langley’s International Festival Society

• Langley Gymnastics Foundation

• Latinos in Action Society

• Langley Horse Federation

• Lower Fraser Valley Aboriginal Society

• Langley Hospice Foundation

• Mercy’s Reach Rabbit Refuge Society

• Langley Lawn Bowling Club

• Milner Community Chapel and Hall

• Langley Literacy Association

• Murrayville Community Hall

• Langley Lodge

• Navy League of Canada

• Langley Meadows Community
Association

• Otter Lamb & Swine 4H Club

• Langley Minor Hockey Association

• Scouts Canada, Nicomekl Area
• Spiritual Assembly at the Bahai’s
of Langley
• The Fraser Arthritis Centre
• Thunderbird Fast Draw Club
• Township of Langley Fire Department
Benevolent Fund
• Trinity Western University
• Walnut Grove Secondary School

• Pacific Riding for Developing Abilities
• Parent Support Services of BC

• Langley Riders Society

TOWNSHIP OF LANGLEY 2008 ANNUAL REPORT
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The Sustainability Charter
The Township of Langley’s sustainability vision is to build a legacy for future
generations by leading, and committing the community to a lifestyle that is
socially, culturally, economically, and environmentally balanced.

TOWNSHIP OF LANGLEY 2008 ANNUAL REPORT
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Sustainability Charter

Social/Cultural Goals
Goal: build corporate and 		

		

community capacity

Goal: protect our people and their

Goal: nurture a mind-set of 		

		

		

properties

• commit to good governance by
democratic means

• prevent crime and reduce the effects
of crime

• maintain a high performance work
force

• prevent fire and minimize losses

• recognize our cultural and ethnic
diversity
• encourage and promote active
volunteerism
• monitor changes in community values,
aspirations, and needs

• foster a preventative approach to
personal and community safety

• heighten the awareness of
sustainability initiatives

• provide consistent and effective bylaw
enforcement

• provide leadership for sustainability
practice and innovation

Goal: provide and support

Goal: celebrate our heritage

• provide parks, open space, and
recreation facilities

• identify, protect, and manage heritage
resources

• nourish the arts as an expression of
cultural value

• promote awareness of heritage values

• improve personal well-being, and
celebrate community spirit
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• practise green purchasing

• prepare for emergencies and disasters

		
		

• partner with the City of Langley,
Kwantlen First Nation, and heritage
societies to further heritage interests

• reward sustainability innovation

• incorporate a sustainability mentality
into the community

• respond to community and social
needs

• support unique community heritage
events

sustainability

community based leisure
opportunities

• deliver recreation programming and
support community services
• form partnerships to maximize leisure
opportunities
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Economic Goals
Goal: develop livable and vibrant

Goal: strengthen our economy

Goal: achieve fiscal stability and

		

• promote Langley’s reputation as a great
place to live, work, and play

		

communities

• focus on compact urban form and
mixed use neighbourhoods
• manage growth consistent with overall
community needs
• encourage high quality design
• provide flexible, affordable, and mixed
housing options
• make communities pedestrian and
bicycle-oriented

• establish Langley as a centre of
excellence in education and training

• maximize the tourism potential in
Langley

• promote continuous improvement and
operational efficiency

• increase jobs and revenue from major
events and venues

• manage risk and minimize liability

Goal: integrate transportation and

		

• encourage and facilitate transitoriented developments

• manage and maintain our assets to
maximize their service life
• be innovative in making “green”
investments

• practice responsible fiscal management
• develop non-taxation funding sources

		

• ensure quality construction and best
value for our investment

• develop effective financial strategies
and plans

• strengthen the agricultural economy

Goal: invest in effective 		

infrastructure

fiscal health

• engage citizens on funding of services
and program needs

community planning

• provide safe and affordable
transportation infrastructure
• coordinate with other agencies and
groups to improve transit and road
services
• increase passenger traffic at local
airports

TOWNSHIP OF LANGLEY 2008 ANNUAL REPORT
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Sustainability Charter

Environmental Goals
Goal: conserve and enhance our

Goal: respect our rural character

Goal: increase biodiversity and

		 environment

		 and rural heritage

		 natural capital

• conserve water

• recognize the rural character as an
essential community feature

• protect and enhance rivers and
streams

• improve stormwater quality
• reduce air pollution
Goal: promote stewardship
• practise 3Rs – reduce, reuse and
recycle
• establish and strengthen stewardship
partnerships
• plant trees
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• protect views, characteristic landscapes, • protect and enhance environmentally
and rural roads
significant areas
• preserve the agricultural land base for
food production

• protect endangered species and
enhance wildlife habitats

Goal: reduce energy consumption

• use native plants in parks and
greenways

• promote energy efficiency in new and
retrofit buildings
• promote use of local renewable energy
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Divisional Overviews

Divisional Overviews
Building a legacy for multiple generations requires leadership, long term
commitment, community involvement, and regular reporting. These basic
requirements form the guiding principles for the Township of Langley in
its decision making process.
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Divisional Overviews – Community Development

Community Development
The Community Development Division helps create sustainable
neighbourhoods by providing guidance and advice on community planning
and development issues to Township Council, municipal employees,
developers, consultants, and the general public.
What we do:

Who we are:

• Create plans and develop projections for
communities and neighbourhoods

Administration provides overall clerical and
administrative support ensuring effective
teamwork within the division. The department
also prepares and coordinates the annual
budget.

• Analyze development proposals
• Assess impacts on the environment,
heritage, and public well-being
• Promote economic development and
provide heritage services
• Create land use, building, business licence
and servicing bylaws, and administer
permits
• Design and develop public open space to
encourage social wellness, and connectivity

Long Range Planning, which includes
Economic Development and Community
Heritage Planning Services, prepares
community and neighbourhood plans
and other policy documents that address
environmental, economic, and social issues.
The department also develops and implements
economic development strategies, and
identifies and protects heritage resources.
Development Planning undertakes
development-related activities and services
in response to development proposals within
urban and rural areas. The department
ensures that growth, and development is in
compliance with community plans, bylaws,
and municipal policies, and is undertaken in
an orderly, attractive, and appropriate manner.

Dave, Landscape Design Coordinator
Township of Langley
26
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Development Engineering establishes the
engineering servicing requirements and
Development Cost Charges (DCC) needed
to support new development. It administers
agreements, and ensures development-related
infrastructure is in compliance with municipal
standards and integrated with other existing
systems and processes.
Parks Design and Development plans
and designs parks, playing fields, playgrounds,
passive areas, streetscapes, and greenways. It
is responsible for the acquisition of parkland,
provides input to neighbourhood plans,
develops park plans with public consultation,
administers and maintains municipal street
trees, designs and coordinates streetscape
developments, constructs park projects,
and administers the Township’s Tree
Protection Bylaw.
Permit, Licence, and Inspection Services
coordinates the building permit application
process and administers the Business Licence
Bylaw. The department provides inspection
services to ensure construction complies with
all applicable Township bylaws and Building
and Plumbing Codes ensuring the health,
safety, and accessibility of owners
and occupants.
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Committed to Creating
Sustainable Communities
With a mission “to provide exceptional
service for the development of a sustainable
community”, the Community Development
Division provides professional advice on
change, development, and preservation
within the community.

2008: A Glimpse Back
• Council adopted:
•Sustainability Charter
•Yorkson Neighbourhood Plan
•Wildlife Habitat Bylaw
•Latecomer Policy amendment
•Development Cost Charge
Bylaw No. 4640
• Willoughby Community Park
new artificial turf field, baseball/
soccer field, rugby field, spray
park, children’s play area and
detention pond constructed
• Issued 2,555 building permits
with construction value of
$230 million
• Developed employment
projection model
• Processed over 150
development applications
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Corporate Administration
Corporate Administration is the conduit for Council, Township divisions,
staff, and the public. By providing direction, and the communication link, the
division ensures the infrastructure and organizational values are in place to
support Council’s vision for the community.
What we do:

Who we are:

• Carry out the direction, priorities, and
policies set by Council

Corporate Communications and Events
creates municipal marketing material, press
releases, website, signage, newsletters, bus
shelter advertising, and the Leisure Guide, in
conjunction with staging corporate events such
as facility openings, volunteer appreciation
events, and open houses.

• Provide administrative support and advice
to Mayor and Council, as well as advisory
Committees and Boards
• Liaise with, and enable communication
between Council, divisions and
departments, and the public
• Provide recommendations to Council
consistent with the needs of the
community
• Ensure the security and maintenance of
corporate records
• Provide innovative business system
solutions
• Manage the acquisition and disposal of
municipal land
• Ensure the Township is properly and
positively represented within the
Corporation, to the public, and in the press

Corporate Services provide internal services
to other municipal departments and the
community in the following areas: mail and
courier services, corporate copy centre, and
record management and archiving. These
in-house services provide the most efficient
and cost effective method for processing the
daily needs and legal requirements of the
Corporation.
Information Technology (IT) develops and
maintains the IT infrastructure to sustain the
Township’s integrated computer applications
by offering innovative business system
solutions. The department supports all IT
components servicing the Township, including
hardware, software, and telecommunication
requirements. Geomatics (GIS) is another
component of the services offered through IT.
GIS collects, measures, analyzes and reports
on geographical relationships by providing one
source spatial data, mapping, and information
to staff and residents.

Laura, Mailroom Clerk
Township of Langley
28
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Kim and Penny,
Copy Centre Staff
Township of Langley

Langley Regional Airport is a general aviation
airport owned by the Township. The airport
management company, Avcon Consulting
Ltd., is responsible for all matters dealing
with airport safety, maintenance, operation,
development, and promotion, in compliance
with Township Council policy and standards
established by Transport Canada, NavCanada,
and the Workers’ Compensation Board.
Mayor and Council Support provides an array
of administrative support services to Mayor
and Council, including the coordination of
information, resources, and appointments.
Property Services provides management
services and advice related to municipal land,
including purchases and sales of municipal
property, coordination of appraisals and
surveys, negotiation of highway use permits,
administration of all Township-owned rental
properties, lease negotiations, and the
Township of Langley’s Land Management
Strategy.

Committed to Information Sharing
and Communication
The Corporate Administration Division is
committed to providing corporate leadership
and services to ensure the organizational
values and systems are in tandem with the
vision of Council to meet the needs of the
community.

2008: A Glimpse Back
• Reduced ability of email spam;
eliminating approximately
300,000 per month
• Implemented integrated
helpdesk and inventory system
• Coordinated the 2008 Municipal
Election
• Secured $90,000 in new lease
revenue
• Celebrated our 150th
Douglas Day

Legislative Services is responsible for
the preparation of agendas and minutes
for Council and Committee Meetings;
maintenance and access to corporate records
including Township bylaws; and administrative
support to Council and its Committees.
The department manages all Freedom of
Information and Protection of Privacy Act
requests, and carries out the coordination and
execution of civic and school district elections.
TOWNSHIP OF LANGLEY 2008 ANNUAL REPORT
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Engineering
The Engineering Division serves the Township by developing and delivering
quality programs to provide clean water, collection of garbage, yard
trimmings, and recyclables, discharge of storm water and sewage, and
to ensure the safe mobility of people and vehicles by maintaining the
Township’s roads, sidewalks, and traffic control systems.
What we do:

Who we are:

• Plan, design, construct, operate, and
maintain the municipal infrastructure to
meet current population needs and future
growth

Transportation Engineering provides for
the safe and efficient mobility of people and
vehicles by issuing permits related to road
works and usage, overseeing road construction
projects, constructing road improvements, and
coordinating traffic safety.

• Provide reliable, quality services for water,
sanitary sewers, storm water, and drainage
systems
• Manage and maintain the municipality’s
facilities, vehicles, and equipment
• Ensure safe and efficient mobility through
road cleaning, median and boulevard
maintenance, street maintenance, snow
and ice control, and traffic control and
surveying services

Water Resources and Environment manages
and protects our environment through drinking
water systems and water conservation, sewage
and storm water systems, erosion control,
environmental policies, and greenhouse
gas emission reductions. It provides public
education and community outreach programs.

• Operate and maintain 45 bridges,
37 railway crossings, 2,000 lane/kms of
roadway, 373,000 metres of sidewalks,
5,300 street lights, 78 traffic signals,
18,000 traffic and road signs, 112 km of
cycling routes, 330 bus stops, 471 km of
watermain, 250 km of sanitary sewer,
376 km of stormwater mains, 1,200 km of
open channel drainage ditches, 145 ditch
crossings, 2,200 fire hydrants, gravel pits
and landfills

Greg, Transportation Technologist
Township of Langley
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Business Support provides customer service
to residents and businesses as well as permit
issuance, filming coordination, divisional
budget administration, financial reporting and
business administration.
Design and Construction provides
professional engineering services for capital
projects including the renewal, replacement,
and upgrading of existing municipal
infrastructure, as well as new infrastructure
assets.
Operations delivers quality municipal water,
provide road services, collect and convey
sewage, provide for drainage and stormwater
collection, collect garbage, yard trimmings,
and recyclables, and manages municipal
facilities and the equipment/vehicle fleet.

Committed to Engineering Quality
and Value

2008: A Glimpse Back

Engineering’s goal is to ensure public safety,
protection of the environment, and quality of
life in an effective and cost efficient manner.

• Received $6 million grant for
Aldergrove Sanitary Sewer
Project

The Division is dedicated to expanding and
enhancing services and infrastructure to meet
growing community needs, and focusses on
obtaining the best quality for the best value, to
produce lower infrastructure and equipment
lifecycle costs and create a more sustainable
future.

• Replaced 700 inefficient toilets
with low-flow toilets through the
Water Conservation Initiative
• Coordinated municipal
infrastructure requirements for
Golden Ears Bridge joint venture
• Completed road and utility
services for the Langley Events
Centre
• Completed Roundabout at
216 Street and 50 Avenue
• Commenced GVRD water
system expansion, bringing
water from Willoughby to
Aldergrove
• Coordinated emergency
replacement of sanitary sewer
with no impact to the public
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Divisional Overviews – Finance

Finance
The Finance Division manages the Township’s financial resources, and
provides financial advice, services, and information to Council and corporate
divisions in compliance with the Community Charter.

What we do:

Who we are:

• Receive all money that comes in to the
Township

Accounting Operations administers payments
on behalf of the Township, issues letters
of credit, processes commodity taxes, and
administers payroll.

• Maintain all funds and securities
• Expend funds as authorized by Council
and invest excess funds in authorized
investments
• Ensure accurate records and full accounts
of financial affairs are prepared
• Exercise control and supervision over
all other financial affairs related to the
Township’s operation
• Provide services to Council, corporate
divisions, residents, various government
organizations, suppliers and employees

Business Support prepares and coordinates
special projects, maintains regulations and
policies, and responds to inquiries from staff
and the public.
Financial Services is comprised of Financial
Accounting and Reporting, Financial Planning
and Budgets, Treasury, Risk Management,
and Insurance. The department develops the
Township’s operating and capital budgets,
and prepares annual and quarterly financial
statements, and reports. The department
also coordinates the external audit, manages
the Township’s treasury functions, including
debt management, banking and investments,
undertakes fixed asset accounting and
reporting, and administers the Township’s
risk management program, including liability
claims and corporate insurance.

Mark, Financial Analyst
Township of Langley
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Kris, Collections Supervisor
Township of Langley

Purchasing investigates and obtains
materials, supplies, equipment and services,
including contract and consulting services,
and maintains inventories for supplies and
equipment.
Revenue and Tax Collections collects the
Township revenues, including property taxes,
residential utility charges (water, sewer,
garbage/recycling), metered utility charges,
grants-in-lieu of taxes, provincial homeowner
grants, local improvement charges, accounts
receivable, dog licenses, commerical vehicle
licenses, and the payment of taxes collected
for other authorities. The department also
provides information to the public regarding
property assessments, property taxes, and
utility charges.
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Committed to Fiscal
Responsibility
As the division that oversees the financial
affairs of the Township, Finance is committed
to ensuring internal financial systems
operate efficiently, and effectively finding and
developing partnerships, and looking into more
efficient service delivery opportunities.

2008: A Glimpse Back
• 2008 -2012 Five Year Financial
Plan adopted by Council
• 2007 Financial Statements
presented to Council
• Commenced coordination of
Tangible Capital Asset Program
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Human Resources
The Human Resource Division is a service department for Township
employees, which include exempt staff, and unionized employees; the
Canadian Union of Public Employees (CUPE) Local 403, and the International
Association of Firefighters (IAFF) Local 4550.
What we do:

Who we are:

• Provide assistance, guidance and advice
to all Township employees with respect
to their employment relationship with the
Township

Human Resources staff coordinates and
establishes programs and policies that
pertain to people-related issues, and provides
expertise.

• Conduct contract negotiations and
collective agreement administration

Labour Relations oversees collective
bargaining and contract interpretation. The
section provides advice, consultation, and
facilitation, as well as grievance administration
and mediation services.

• Manage, coordinate, and administer all
recruitment processes for vacancies in the
Township
• Administer employee compensation and
benefits programs
• Establish, coordinate, and provide training
and development opportunities
• Advise on employee relations and labour
relations issues

Recruitment and Selection is responsible
for job postings, job bulletins, advertising,
and marketing. The staff conduct interviews
and referencing, make job offers, and provide
employee orientation.

• Provide job evaluation services
Coordinate, administer and manage
the Employee Wellness and Recognition
Programs
• Promote a safe and healthy workplace that
complies with the Workers’ Compensation
Act and the WorkSafeBC Occupational
Health and Safety Regulation
• Establish Human Resource programs,
policies and guidelines that support best
people practices

Julie, Human Resources Assistant
Township of Langley
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• Strive to ensure that all employees are
treated in a fair and equitable manner
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Compensation and Benefit Administration
implements salary increments, oversees job
evaluations and classifications, and provides
benefit administration.
Training and Development provides and
administers corporate training programs and
offers the Professional Employee Development
Program (PED), as well as career counseling.
Occupational Health and Safety (OHS)
offers advice and guidance on OHS policies
and procedures, provides safety training and
education, acts as a WorkSafeBC liaison, and
handles claims management. This section also
coordinates graduated return to work programs
and assistance.
Employee Recognition organizes employee
recognition events and rewards, employee
wellness programs and activities, and the
Employee Assistance Program (EAP).
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Committed to a Positive Work
Environment
Human Resources offers assistance,
advice, and guidance to managers and
employees in helping them fulfill their
roles and accomplishing their goals. The
division provides expertise to all staff in
the administration of collective agreement
provisions, policies and procedures, and strives
to provide a healthy, and productive workplace.

2008: A Glimpse Back
• Finalized collective bargaining
with CUPE Local 403; 5 year
agreement
• Established first collective
agreement with the IAFF
Local 4550
• Coordinated, and managed over
500 recruitments
• Offered 44 corporate training
programs, 38 safety training
programs, and 72 employee
wellness programs
• Reduced WorkSafeBC premiums
in 2008, 22% overall savings
compared to industry average
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Protective Services - Fire
The Township of Langley Fire Department relies on suppression, prevention,
and education to keep people, property, and the environment safe. The
department also assists with medical responses, hazardous materials, and
other emergency situations.
What we do:

Who we are:

• Provide fire suppression, prevention, and
investigation services to the public

Operations is responsible for the delivery of
emergency services for fire and rescue. The
Fire Department is made up of
• 51 full-time career staff
• 129 paid-per-call firefighters which
respond 24 hours a day, seven
days a week.
It operates 36 vehicles and maintains
7 fire halls located in
• Aldergrove
• Brookswood
• Fort Langley
• Murrayville
• Otter
• Walnut Grove
• Willoughby
Full-time crews are located in
• Aldergrove
• Walnut Grove (January 12, 2009)
• Willoughby

• Provide proactive educational programs to
promote and maintain fire-safe and firesmart life styles throughout our community
• Assist with medical response in support of
BC Ambulance
• Provide motor vehicle rescue and
extrication
• Oversee emergency operations, and
offer hazardous material response and
mitigation
• Provide emergency planning and education
• Ensure bylaw enforcement and compliance
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Fire Prevention oversees inspections,
reviews plans and permits, and conducts
investigations. Advice on fire and safety
issues is provided to citizens, business, and
industry. The Department assists business with
fire safety planning, and works closely with
architects and engineers to solve complex fire
protection challenges.
Training and Education maintains and
improves the knowledge, skills, and abilities
of Department members in all aspects
of the Fire Service to enable them to
effectively and efficiently carry out their
duties and responsibilities. The Township
has a provincially recognized training facility.
Our public educators make presentations
throughout the community to schools,
community groups, and businesses. Public
Education plans and participates in several
community events each year, teaches the
practical aspects of fire extinguishers to
business and industry, and works with our
most vulnerable citizens, our children and
seniors, to help ensure a fire safe lifestyle.
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Emergency Planning coordinates the
preparation of municipal services in a major
disaster or emergency such as an earthquake
or flood. The department also provides
personal disaster assistance under the
Provincial Emergency Program which provides
citizens with assistance and vital services.
Bylaw Enforcement responds to complaints
regarding infractions to various statutory
regulations. Such regulations include
highway and traffic, signs, noise, and zoning.
The Department also offers mediation and
adjudication services to help resolve disputes.

Committed to Protecting Lives,
Property, and the Environment
Education and prevention play an integral role
in the Fire Department’s commitment to the
community and depends on their dedicated,
well trained members in keeping the Township
safe.

2008: A Glimpse Back
• Responded to over 5,000
requests for service; an average
of 14 calls per day
• Conducted approximately 3,500
business fire safety inspections
• Provided over 29,000 training
hours
• Provided public fire, and life
safety education to over 22,000
residents
• Responded to 1,184 Bylaw
infractions complaints
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Protective Services - RCMP
The Langley RCMP tackles complex social and public safety issues through
enforcement, education, and awareness, in partnership with local citizens
and businesses, to create a safer community.

What we do:

Who we are:

• Provide policing services to the Township of
Langley, and the City of Langley, 24 hours
a day, seven days a week

The Langley RCMP is comprised of 181 police
officers, 87 full-time municipal employees,
and 38 Auxiliary officers. It operates a
main detachment in Murrayville, as well as
Community Police Offices in Aldergrove,
Brookswood, Willoughby and Walnut
Grove. The Township cost sharing payment
contributes towards 126.3 of the officers, as
well as two Community Safety Officers.

• Prevent and reduce crime in partnership
with the community
• Target strategic priorities including
youth, property crime, drug crime, traffic
enforcement, and communication
• Participate in regional integrated public
safety initiatives including the Integrated
Homicide Investigation Team, Police
Dog Services, Forensic Identification
Service, Collision Analyst Reconstruction
Service, and the Lower Mainland District’s
Emergency Response Team

The Langley RCMP is made up of the following:
Administration includes the Detachment
Commander, Operations Officer, and
other positions that are supported by a
financial clerk and administrative assistant.
Responsibilities go beyond daily administration
to include quality assurance, strategic
planning, corporate planning, and liaison with
both the Township and City of Langley.

Community Policing Section (CPS) works in
partnership with the community to identify and
solve problems to prevent and reduce crime
and the fear of crime. Using core functions
of enforcement, prevention, education,
intelligence and investigation, CPS is made up
of three units: Crime Reduction, Youth, and
Community Liaison, which provides programs
and services including Block Watch, Speed
Watch, the Auxiliary Constable Program, and
Community Safety Officers.
General Duty is the core service delivery
unit of the detachment. Members respond to
calls ranging from noisy parties, homicides,
to motor vehicle collisions, and average 125
to 150 calls for service every day. They also
conduct follow-up investigations, participate
in Crime Reduction and Crime Prevention
activities, and enforce Federal, Provincial and
some Municipal statutes.
The RCMP also has a number of special
sections which deal specifically with Drugs,
Economic Crime, Forensic Identification, Sex
Crimes, and Street Enforcement.
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Serious Crime Section is responsible for
investigating complex criminal offences
including robberies, extortions, serious violent
offences against people, and associated
Criminal Code offences.
Support Services is made up of the RCMP’s
Operations Communication Centre, Computer
Services, Training Section, Transportation
Department, Main Office Services, and Media
Services.
Traffic Section utilities the Three Es of
Traffic Safety: Education, Enforcement,
and Engineering to enforce traffic law, and
investigate serious and fatal collisions.
Victim Services provides information,
emotional support, referrals, and practical
assistance to victims and witnesses of crime
and other traumatic events.

Committed to a Safe Community
The Langley RCMP is dedicated to protecting
and serving Langley’s citizens through
crime prevention and awareness, analysis,
investigation, and enforcement. The RCMP
targets repeat criminal offenders and crime hot
spots, and partners with volunteers to provide
effective, community-based responses to crime
and public safety issues.

2008: A Glimpse Back
• Responded to over 42,500 calls
for service
• Reduced residential break and
enters by 25%, and overall
property crime by 10%
• Identified and engaged
approximately 80 problem Youth
through the At Risk Youth Team
• Targeted prolific offenders
through an enhanced Crime
Reduction Unit
• Added two new police officers
to the Township’s Public Safety
Inspection Team
• Launched public website
langley.rcmp.ca
• Implemented two Community
Safety Officers in Aldergrove
• Recruited 15 new Auxiliary
Police Officers
• Re-opened new Community
Policing Office in Brookswood
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Recreation, Culture, and Parks
Recreation, Culture, and Parks contributes to an active and healthy
community. The division provides and supports community-based leisure
opportunities that contribute to the overall quality of life for all
Township residents.
What we do:

Who we are:

• Manage and provide of a broad variety of
leisure services within the Township

Administration provides leadership and
administrative support for the division. In
addition, administration personnel oversee
the Township’s Community Grant and Capital
Improvement Grant programs, as well as other
funding opportunities for community groups
and organizations.

• Offer indoor and outdoor programs to fit
the needs of all ages, skills, and interests
• Support the community’s quality of life
by delivering services through recreation
facilities, up to 16.5 hours per day,
seven days per week at the Aldergrove
Kinsmen Community Centre, Walnut Grove
Community Centre, W.C. Blair Recreation
Centre, Willowbrook Recreation Centre, the
Langley Centennial Museum and National
Exhibition Centre, and the Willoughby
Community Centre, located in the Langley
Event Centre, opening spring 2009.
• Manage and maintain parks, open spaces,
greenways, and trails
• Steward three Township cemeteries

Recreation and Cultural Services provide
recreation, arts, and cultural programs that
include aquatics, fitness, general recreation,
special events, museum services, and
wellness/rehabilitation. It oversees the
maintenance and asset management of the
Township’s recreation facilities, and manage
capital projects. Recreation and Cultural
Services manage contracts with the Township’s
library, and arena operators and lease space
in civic buildings. It also forms partnerships
within the Township to support the provision
of leisure services in the areas of sport and
recreation, as well as arts and culture.

Vanessa, Recreation Attendant
Township of Langley
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Parks and Open Spaces manages and
operates the Township’s active and passive
park system, public open spaces, acquired
conservation lands, cemeteries, trails,
greenways, and civic building grounds (over
1,000 acres of lands in total). This inventory
includes over 60 parks with 42 sand turf sports
fields, 3 artificial sports fields, 7 all-weather
gravel fields, 55 softball/baseball diamonds,
5 skateboard parks, 8 picnic shelters, and 4
water parks as well as 3 municipal cemeteries.
Staff works with sports and special event user
groups and schedules sport fields and outdoor
facilities within the Township, City of Langley,
and School District No. 35.

Committed to the Promotion of
a High Quality of Life
Recreation, Culture, and Parks is dedicated
to improving physical and emotional health
and quality of life for individuals, families,
and communities by providing and supporting
community-based leisure opportunities. Social
inclusion is a fundamental component for the
division, which believes all citizens should have
access to services regardless of their ability,
age, economic circumstance, ethnicity, gender,
or interests.

2008: A Glimpse Back
• Secured new Township of
Langley ‘Spirit’ Stage
• Completed rehabilitation of
Walnut Grove Community Park
NE Majors Diamond
• Completed Aldergrove Hockey
Sports Box
• Opened Langley Rowing and
Paddling Centre
• Parks and Facility Naming Policy
Adopted
• Facility Allocation Policy Adopted
• Completed Phase 2 of
Willoughby Community Park
• Awarded Olympic Torch Relay
host occurring February 2010
• Opened the Hope Redwoods
Natural Area
• Incorporated the Langley
Centenial Museum and National
Exhibition Centre into the
Recreation, Culture, and Parks
portfolio
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2008 Sustainability Planning and Development
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2008 Sustainability Planning and Development

Sustainability Planning
and Development

2008

Providing residents with the best possible quality of life is a priority for
the Township of Langley.
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2008 Sustainability Planning and Development

Social/Cultural Goals - build corporate and community capacity

Commit to good governance by
democratic means
Objective

Provide an open and transparent
2008 Local Government Election.
Division
Corporate Administration

Activity
Coordination of the 2008 municipal election.

Indicator
Election documents available online, and an error-free election held.

Project Summary
Election was conducted on November 15, 2008.
All activities were within the allotted budget; an increase in voter
registration was realized in the 2008 election turnout.
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Social/Cultural Goals - build corporate and community capacity

Maintain a high performance work force
Objective

Objective

Provide cross-training and
Review and research alternate
development opportunities for staff. recruitment and selection methods.
Division

Division

Human Resources

Human Resources

Activity

Activity

Establish corporate training opportunities for staff, and encourage crosstraining and/or more effective and efficient deployment of resources.

Establish alternate recruitment, selection, and retention methods.

Indicator
Information on workforce planning opportunities and program
alternatives presented to Senior Management Team (SMT).
Roll-out of program to each division completed.

Project Summary
82 training programs established and implemented in 2008.
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Indicator
Establish inventory of opportunities to assist in promoting the Township
as an “Employer of Choice”.

Project Summary
Participated in career fairs, established promotional packages,
banners, bus shelter advertisements, and standardized recruitment
advertisements.
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Social/Cultural Goals - build corporate and community capacity

Maintain a high performance work force
Objective

Indicator

Reorganize Parks Operations
department to address significant
growth in parks inventory and the
need to establish staff
succession plan.

Transitional issues effectively managed.
All hiring completed by year-end.

Project Summary
New Parks Operations Manager position was hired in spring 2008.
Additional Parks Operations department organization changes were
completed by year-end.

Division
Recreation, Culture, and Parks

Activity
Complete review of existing organization in spring 2008.
Hire Parks Operations Manager to work with incumbent for six months
prior to retirement.
Establish organization structure to provide for succession planning in
other functional units of organization.
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Social/Cultural Goals – build corporate and community capacity

Encourage and promote active
volunteerism
Objective

Project Summary

Successfully enable a team of
community volunteers to lead
the organization of the 2010 BC
Summer Games.

Audit team of Township staff and a member of the Recreation, Culture,
and Parks Commission travelled to Kelowna to witness the staging of the
2008 BC Summer Games.
Venue plan for 2010 BC Summer Games in place.
Nominating Committee selected by year-end with the responsibility of
nominating a Board of Directors by end of March 2009.

Division
Recreation, Culture, and Parks

Activity
Commence preparations for the 2010 BC Summer Games.

Indicator
Have a BC Games Commission/Council endorsed plan for the hosting of
the 2010 Games.
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Social/Cultural Goals – protect our people and their properties

Prevent fire and minimize losses
Objective

Objective

Receive shipment of one
Pumper/Tanker.

Provide excellent fire protection to
citizens and their property.

Division

Division

Protective Services – Fire

Protective Services - Fire

Activity

Activity

Verify compliance with original order and required changes.

Recruit and train full-time firefighters.

Indicator

Indicator

Bring new apparatus into service.

Prepare to put into service 16 new full-time firefighters for January 2009.

Project Summary

Project Summary

The apparatus has been received, tested, and placed into operation.

16 full-time firefighters were hired and trained.
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Social/Cultural Goals – protect our people and their properties

Prevent crime and reduce the
effects of crime
Objective

Objective

Develop and implement a
long term Policing Strategic Plan for
the Langley RCMP Detachment.

Develop and implement a formal
Crime Reduction Strategy for
Langley RCMP Detachment.

Division

Division

Protective Services – RCMP

Protective Services – RCMP

Activity

Activity

Develop a Policing Master Plan in partnership with community
stakeholders that reflects the community’s expectations, and that set
accountabilities.

Develop a Crime Reduction Strategy that focuses on prolific offenders,
crime hot spots, and root causes of crime.

Indicator
Police Master Plan presented to Council.

Indicator
Completed Crime Reduction Strategy presented to Council.
Weekly crime trend reports identifying hotspots.

Project Summary
Master Plan is in draft format, and will be presented to Council in 2009.

Project Summary
Crime Reduction Strategy is a routine part of detachment activities,
assisting with identification of crime trends, deployment of police
personnel, and volunteer groups working in a coordinated manner. An
example is the “10 plus calls” program where areas with 10 or more
calls for police service are identified by the Crime Analyst, and are
targeted for volunteer patrols and other crime prevention activities.
Crime trends and maps are published on a regular basis to Mayor and
Council, in the local media, and on the Detachment website
langley.rcmp.ca.
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Social/Cultural Goals – protect our people and their properties

Provide consistent and effective
bylaw enforcement
Objective

Objective

Review and revise Municipal
Ticketing Information Bylaw.

Reduce graffiti.

Division

Protective Services – Bylaws

Division

Protective Services – Bylaws

Activity

Activity
Research and develop a comprehensive graffiti bylaw.

Coordinate necessary changes with other affected municipal divisions.

Indicator
Implement changes; educate citizens on the Municipal Ticketing
Information program.

Project Summary

Indicator
Develop community and business partnerships to reduce level of
graffiti activity.

Project Summary
Bylaw adopted by Council on May 5, 2008.

Stakeholder departments have been consulted to obtain their input.
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Social/Cultural Goals – protect our people and their properties

Provide consistent and effective bylaw
enforcement
Objective

Continue to review and evaluate
proactive bylaw enforcement.
Division
Protective Services – Bylaws

Activity
Discern need for 7-day availability of Bylaw Enforcement Officers.

Indicator
Ensure citizens are served with appropriate level of service.

Project Summary
Researching and monitoring demand for additional service hours.
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2008 Sustainability Planning and Development

Social/Cultural Goals – protect our people and their properties

Prevent fire and minimize losses
Objective

Objective

Provide excellent fire protection to
citizens and their property.

Review and evaluate need for
24-hour availability of a senior Fire
Department Officer.

Division
Protective Services – Fire

Activity

Division
Protective Services – Fire

To research and design an addition to the Fire Training Centre.

Activity

Indicator

Determine the need for the District Chief to be available through rotating
shifts; review scheduled for first quarter of 2008.

Live fire training building addition will provide for more skilled,
knowledgeable, and effective firefighters.

Project Summary
Preliminary design and specifications have been developed and
submitted with the 2009 draft budget for discussion with Council.
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Indicator
Ensure Fire Department goals and objectives are met.

Project Summary
Initial review completed and presented for 2009 draft budget
deliberations.
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Social/Cultural Goals – protect our people and their properties

Provide consistent and effective
bylaw enforcement
Objective

Activity

Make the Township of Langley
a difficult place to carryout
unauthorized activities.

Officer dedicated to specific zones to better serve the community.

Division

Indicator
Respond in a timely fashion to bylaw infraction complaints.
Officers become familiar with problem properties in their zones making
for faster response when complaints received.

Protective Services – Bylaws

Activity

Project Summary
Bylaw Officer recruited and hired March 31, 2008.

Recruit and employ additional Bylaw Enforcement Officer.

Indicator
Respond in a timely fashion to bylaw infraction complaints.

Project Summary
Recruitment and placement of Bylaw Officer completed June 2008.
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Social/Cultural Goals – protect our people and their properties

Provide consistent and effective
bylaw enforcement
Objective

Project Summary

Implement new adjudication
ticketing system.

The new system does not permit offenders to refute due to a technicality:
with the reduction of repeat offenders and calls associated with them,
the costs will be reduced.

Division

Citizens are educated through newspaper articles and with the issuance
of warning ticket.

Protective Services – Bylaws

An overview of the process will be placed on the website by June 2009.

Activity
Coordinate necessary changes with other affected municipal divisions.
Bring all bylaw fines under Bylaw Notice Enforcement
Bylaw 2008 No. 4703.

Indicator
Implement changes and educate citizens on the adjudication ticketing
system.
Number of complaints regarding traffic issues.

Activity
Develop and implement adjudication court system approved by the
provincial government.

Indicator
Quicker and more efficient responses to complaints and contested
tickets.

Project Summary
System is tested and implemented January 2009.
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Social/Cultural Goals – protect our people and their properties

Provide consistent and effective
bylaw enforcement
Objective

Continue to review and evaluate
effectiveness of proactive
bylaw enforcement.
Division
Protective Services – Bylaws

Activity
Measure success to early intervention strategies; bylaw infractions
responded to before a complaint is received.

Indicator
Ensure citizens are served with appropriate level of service.

Project Summary
Being proactive on bylaws have resulted in faster compliance.
Neighbour against neighbour complaints on bylaw infractions have been
reduced.
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2008 Sustainability Planning and Development

Social/Cultural Goals – protect our people and their properties

Prevent crime and reduce
the effects of crime
Objective

Use electronic media to enhance
communication.
Division
Protective Services - RCMP

Activity
Develop a Langley RCMP stand-alone website, in both official languages.

Indicator
The website is up and running.

Project Summary
The RCMP Langley website was launched in November at
langley.rcmp.ca. Features include Langley’s Most Wanted Prolific
Offenders, The Chief’s Message; A Week in Review, Road Safety Maps,
Crime Maps, Volunteer Opportunities and Programs, and links to other
partner agency websites.
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2008 Sustainability Planning and Development

Social/Cultural Goals – protect our people and their properties

Prevent crime and reduce
the effects of crime
Objective

Provide excellent police protection
for Langley citizens and their
property.
Division
Protective Services - RCMP

Activity
Continue to support integrated policing services that enhance public
safety for our citizens.

Indicator
Continued participation in lower mainland integrated units, such as the
Integrated Homicide Investigation Unit, Lower mainland Emergency
Response Team, Forensic Identification Section, Integrated Police Dog
Section, Integrated Collision Analyst Section, and local initiatives such
as the Public Safety Inspection Team (PSIT), and the Integrated Service
Enforcement Team.

Project Summary
Public Safety Inspection Team was approved for two full-time police
resources to participate.
Proposal submitted to support the Integrated Service Enforcement Team
initiative. Protocols and membership for this group are being determined.
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2008 Sustainability Planning and Development

Social/Cultural Goals – protect our people and their properties

Prevent crime and reduce
the effects of crime
Objective

Activity

Provide excellent police protection
for Langley citizens and their
property.

Deploy police resources in highly visible, strategic locations such as
urban centres, parks, and local hot spots.
Enter into discussions with Council regarding opportunity to engage
Community Safety Officers.

Division

Indicator

Protective Services - RCMP

Increase use of auxiliary officers, and volunteers to augment regular
member foot and bike patrols.

Activity
Enhance ability to provide road safety through education and
enforcement activities; continued participation in “Road Safety Vision
2010” that focuses on aggressive driving, impaired drivers, occupant
restraint, and high-crash intersections.

Indicator
Additional resources added to Langley RCMP Traffic Section; Speed
Watch volunteers deployed in relation to identified high-collision traffic
locations and areas of community concern.

Project Summary
Two Community Safety Officer positions deployed to the Aldergrove area
August, 2008.
Enhance ability to provide road safety through education and
enforcement activities; continued participation in “Road Safety Vision
2010” that focuses on aggressive driving, impaired drivers, occupant
restraint, and high-crash intersections.

Project Summary
High-incident crash locations tracked to ensure deployment of proactive
enforcement initiatives coincides with developing trends.
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2008 Sustainability Planning and Development

Social/Cultural Goals – protect our people and their properties

Foster a preventative approach to
personal and community safety
Objective

Project Summary

Support and enhance the ability of
families to care for their children and
reduce factors that put them at risk.

Weekly meetings between Langley Youth and Family Services
incorporated into detachment business protocols.
Youth Officers continue to engage in restorative justice initiatives
at schools.

Division

Planning for Junior Cadet Camp in 2009 is ongoing.

Protective Services – RCMP

The At Risk Youth team is fully engaged, identifying close to 80 problem
youth, and connecting them to the most appropriate agencies.

Activity
Provide and support programs that involve and engage the youth of
Langley. Promote opportunities for positive interaction between youth
and police.

Indicator
Continued partnership with Langley Youth and Family Services, and
the School District #35 Restorative Justice Program.
Ongoing investment in RCMP youth activities such as the Junior
Cadet Camp.
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2008 Sustainability Planning and Development

Social/Cultural Goals – provide and support community based leisure opportunities

Provide parks, open space, and
recreation facilities
Objective

Provide opportunities for effective
and creative recreation through
enhancement of green spaces.
Division
Community Development

Activity
Develop concept plan for Derek Doubleday Arboretum.
Design and construct trails through this new open space.

Indicator
Concept plan for Arboretum is complete.
Construction of shared use gravel trails and bridge crossing over
Fraser Creek.

Project Summary
Arboretum base plan prepared, feasibility study completed, bridge
crossing installed, and trail connection established between 56 Avenue
and Fraser Highway.
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2008 Sustainability Planning and Development

Social/ Cultural Goals – provide and support community based leisure opportunities

Form partnerships to maximize
leisure opportunities
Objective

Project Summary

Development of a policy to assist
staff to manage community
based requests for infrastructure
development to service new and
emerging communities.

Work continues on a number of proposals including botanical garden
initiatives.

Division
Recreation, Culture, and Parks

Neighbourhood Initiative Program utilized to complete a number of
community initiatives including North Langley baseball diamond
improvements, Langley Rowing and Paddling Centre improvements, and
several playground improvement projects.
Proposals for the construction of batting cages at South Aldergrove Park
and Noel Booth Park are still being considered.
Policy work not complete.

Activity
Develop policy to route all community based capital requests through
a consistent process for Council consideration.

Indicator
Council-endorsed policy in place to ensure consistent approach to
managing requests by fall 2008.
Utilize policy to evaluate a number of emergent proposals such as
lawn bowling, indoor tennis, performing arts village, and botanical
garden initiatives.
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2008 Sustainability Planning and Development

Social/Cultural Goals – provide and support community based leisure opportunities

Improve personal well-being and
celebrate community spirit
Objective

Indicator

Leverage the resources made
available through the Province’s
Spirit of BC initiative to improve the
personal and collective well-being of
the Langley community.

Spirit Committee to lead BC 150 initiative and support development of
Township’s “Spirit Square”.

Project Summary
The Township’s “Spirit Square” was completed and opened to the public
on Douglas Day. The event was attended by Premier Gordon Campbell
and his cabinet members.

Division
Recreation, Culture, and Parks

Activity
Strengthen community capacity through relationship with Langley Spirit
of BC Committee.
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2008 Sustainability Planning and Development

Social/Cultural Goals – celebrate our heritage

Identify, protect, and manage
heritage resources
Objective

Promote an understanding of, and
appreciation for our cultural diversity
and heritage.
Division
Recreation, Culture, and Parks

Activity
Launch a new community history publication; an online website exhibit
focused on First Nations basket collection; secure financial support to
disseminate research findings on the Hudson’s Bay Company Farm.
Offer a minimum of 80 programs, events, and exhibits.

Indicator
Website and research underway and funding secured.
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Project Summary
Research for book was completed and design template was finalized
during the summer of 2008. Printing occurred in early fall, and the
“Nothing Without Effort” book was launched in November.
First Nations basket collection website was launched early 2008, and
additional federally funded research is underway for remaining collection,
as well as conservation of artifacts.
Research on Hudson’s Bay farming activity is underway with the
assistance of a BC150 grant. .
30 public programs, 440 school programs were supported throughout
2008, servicing over 13,000 local and regional students.

The museum also participated in community events such as May Day
and Canada Day, and presented a rotating schedule in the Exhibition
Centre celebrating our sesquicentennial, and a whimsical look at our
centennial year through “Duck Tails and Diors - 50’s fashions”.

63

2008 Sustainability Planning and Development

Social/Cultural Goals – celebrate our heritage

Support unique community
heritage events
Objective

Commemorate the Province’s and
the Township of Langley’s role in
BC 150/2008 Sesquicentennial
events. Ensure that the history and
heritage of Langley is preserved.
Division       
Recreation, Culture, and Parks

Activity
Incorporate 50th birthday celebrations of the Museum into major
special events, as well as in major marketing tools, and news releases
throughout the year.

Indicator
All activities, including programs, exhibits, events, and marketing
materials are branded in an appropriate manner.

Project Summary
Exhibitions to celebrate 1858 and 1958 were held including the
BC Hydro sponsored “Free Spirit Conservation Tour” that was hosted
in November; all material produced adhered to branding protocol.
Ongoing research on 19th century Hudson’s Bay farming
activities continued.
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2008 Sustainability Planning and Development

Social/Cultural Goals – nurture a mind-set of sustainability

Incorporate a sustainability mentality
into the community
Objective

Complete the Sustainability Charter.
Division
Community Development

Activity
Develop draft Sustainability Charter, review with public, finalize Charter,
seek Council adoption, and refine See-it Model.

Indicator
Public open house, and Council endorsement.

Project Summary
Council adopted the Sustainability Charter on June 23, 2008, and the
See-it Model link was implemented on Township website.
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2008 Sustainability Planning and Development

Economic Goals - achieve fiscal stability and health

Promote continuous improvement
and operational efficiency
Objective

Use technology to exceed traditional
service to meet the needs of a
growing and diverse community.
Division
Engineering

Activity
Identify opportunities to provide customers with tools so that they can
directly obtain information easily, apply and pay for permits, and report
incidents.

Indicator
Expedience of services for public.

Project Summary
An online service request form was implemented through the Township’s
website to provide residents the ability to request non-emergency
Engineering-related services. The Engineering portion of the municipal
website continues to be improved and includes permit application forms,
information sheets, and a ‘How Do I?” section, containing links to
frequently asked questions, forms, and links to external websites.
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2008 Sustainability Planning and Development

Economic Goals - achieve fiscal stability and health

Develop effective financial strategies
and plans
Objective

Undertake long-term financial
planning strategies.
Division
Finance

Activity
Update the Long-Term Financial Plan.

Indicator
Adoption of the Five Year Financial Plan Bylaw.

Project Summary
Council adopted the 2008 – 2012 Five Year Financial Plan, March 2008.
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2008 Sustainability Planning and Development

Social/Cultural Goals – provide and support community based leisure opportunities

Provide parks, open space, and
recreation facilities
Objective

Project Summary

Maintain strategies and plans in an
up-to-date state.

Process plan established to complete review, and included staff, key
stakeholder groups, and the Recreation, Culture, and Parks Commission.

Division
Recreation, Culture, and Parks

Review was substantially completed in October, although the report did
not proceed to Council. Will require an April or May endorsement by the
Recreation, Culture, and Parks Advisory Committee before it will proceed
to Council for endorsement in 2009.

Activity
Complete five year review of the Parks and Recreation Master
Plan, 2002.

Indicator
Revised plan adopted by Council and endorsing strategic direction.
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2008 Sustainability Planning and Development

Social/Cultural Goals – provide and support community based leisure opportunities

Form partnerships to maximize leisure
opportunities
Objective

Consolidate opportunities to increase clarity for community applicants.

Streamline the Township’s
opportunities and processes for the
distribution of grant resources, as
well as how the Township provides
in-kind contributions, fee reductions,
and waivers.

Develop communications package to clearly define grant programs and
policies, including eligibility criteria, application procedures, and process
for approvals.

Division
Recreation, Culture, and Parks

Indicator
Communications materials ready to distribute in fall 2008 for 2009
grant opportunities.

Project Summary
Transition has been completed and the responsibility for Capital
Improvement Grants, and Community Grants shifted to Recreation,
Culture, and Parks.

Activity
Complete a review of Township grant opportunities as well as in-kind
contributions and fee reductions/waivers practices and policies,
including:

• Capital Improvement Grants
• Community Grants
• Neighbourhood Initiative Program
• Banner Program
• Major Events Assistance Policy
• Gender Equity Grant
• Fee Waiver Policy
• Recognition of Teams Policy
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2008 Sustainability Planning and Development

Economic Goals - achieve fiscal stability and health

Practice responsible
fiscal management
Objective

Activity

Undertake long-term financial
planning strategies.

Identify, validate, and determine values for tangible capital assets as of
December 31, 2008.

Division

Indicator
Project is within target timelines to ensure a successful implementation.

Finance

Activity

Project Summary
Policy, procedures, framework, and work plan complete.

Update the Long-Term Financial Plan.

Indicator
Adoption of the Five Year Financial Plan Bylaw.

Project Summary
Council adopted the 2008 – 2012 Five Year Financial Plan by
March 2008.

Activity
Meet the Public Sector Accounting Board (PSAB) accounting and
reporting requirements for tangible capital assets. Tangible capital
assets are a significant economic resource managed by municipalities
and a key component in the delivery of many municipal services. The
objective of this new reporting requirement is to enable municipalities to
fully comprehend the municipality’s investment in tangible capital assets
and the changes in that investment over time; creating better asset
management and budgeting.
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2008 Sustainability Planning and Development

Economic Goals - achieve fiscal stability and fiscal health

Finalize Collective Bargaining
Objective

Objective

Finalize collective bargaining with
CUPE Local 403.

Complete collective bargaining with
IAFF Local 4550 to establish a first
Collective Agreement.

Division
Human Resources

Activity
Bargaining process is ongoing.

Indicator

Division
Human Resources

Activity
Bargaining process is ongoing.

Collective agreement changes ratified by appropriate parties.

Indicator

Changes implemented as a result of the bargaining process.

Collective agreement changes ratified by appropriate parties.

Project Summary
Memorandum of Agreement signed June 24, 2008, with final
ratification on July 7, 2008.
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Changes implemented as a result of the bargaining process.

Project Summary
Memorandum of Agreement signed November 4, 2008, with final
ratification on November 10, 2008.
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2008 Sustainability Planning and Development

Economic Goals - achieve fiscal stability and health

Develop effective financial strategies
and plans
Objective

Implement required hardware and
software platform for the corporate
Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP)
project.
Division
Corporate Administration

Activity
Obtain and implement hardware and software as per ERP requirement.

Indicator
Required systems are in place and functional in time for ERP
implementation efforts.

Project Summary
All required IT infrastructure required for the ERP system is in place
and operational.
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2008 Sustainability Planning and Development

Economic Goals -achieve fiscal stability and health

Develop effective financial
strategies and plans
Objective

Indicator

Operate the Township cost
effectively.

Improvement to our information gathering, reporting, and analysis as
evidenced by managers, Council, and other stakeholders receiving better
information with less resources. Provide excellent, cost-effective public
services to taxpayers by optimizing maintenance and operating costs.
Ensure the maximum life of each asset is achieved and practice just-intime asset replacement and rehabilitation.

Division
All Corporate Divisions

Activity
Assist in delivering a successful Enterprise Resource Planning System
(ERP) for full commissioning. This project will include asset management
modules which will be used to ensure effective service delivery and
continuous service to the taxpayers. Human resources modules and
financial modules will improve our information gathering, reporting
and analysis, thereby improving our service delivery effectiveness and
efficiency.

Project Summary
Business analysis and system design has been completed. Full
implementation of the integrated financial, human resources, and asset
management information system is anticipated to go live in 2009.

Participate in the sound application of state-of-the-art asset management
best practices and human resources best practices. Take a leadership
role in the application of best business processes and integration of
all modules, including financial modules, to improve our information
gathering, reporting, and analysis.

TOWNSHIP OF LANGLEY 2008 ANNUAL REPORT

73

2008 Sustainability Planning and Development

Economic Goals - achieve fiscal stability and health

Promote continuous improvement
and operational efficiency
Objective

Implement a new helpdesk system
to improve Information Technology
customer service, provide self
service, and better reporting
capabilities. Establish IT performance
metrics and assist in identifying
corporate training needs.
Division
Corporate Administration

Activity
Obtain and implement new helpdesk system.

Indicator
A successful system implementation and reportable metrics.

Project Summary
The system has been fully implemented.
Reporting for 2008 has been completed and distributed to the divisions
to assist in identifying training requirements.
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2008 Sustainability Planning and Development

Economic Goals – achieve fiscal stabilaity and fiscal health

Promote continuous improvement and
operational efficiency
Objective

Project Summary

Further develop the Langley
Regional Airport.

Installed additional fuel storage capacity tanks for aviation gas from
8,000 litres to 20,000 litres.

Division
Langley Regional Airport

Increased jet fuel storage from 20,000 litres to 50,000 litres to provide
better on-time service to customers.
Expect increased fuel sales by 15 percent over 2007 due to additional
storage capacity.

Activity
Develop north side for commercial use.

Indicator
Continue construction of commercial buildings on newly developed
north side lots.

Project Summary
4 of 8 lots completed.

Activity
Increase airport revenue.

Indicator
Increase fuel sales by 15 percent.
Increase fuel storage capacity for aviation gas and jet fuel to better
provide on-time service to customers.
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2008 Sustainability Planning and Development

Economic Goals - achieve fiscal stability and health

Promote continuous improvement and
operational efficiency
Objective

Objective

Obtain updated orthophotography
information.

Improve Web-based Geographical
Information Systems (GIS) data
publication.

Division
Corporate Administration

Activity
Define, procure, and process new orthophotography data for use in the
Geographical Information System.

Indicator

Division
Corporate Administration

Activity
Leverage new technologies; improve the municipality’s web-based
GIS publication mechanism (GeoSource) to provide better data and
functionality to staff and public users.

Updated orthophotography information.

Project Summary
Imagery had been collected, processed, and made available to internal
and external viewers via the GeoSource mapping tool.

Indicator
Improve the accessibility to information.

Project Summary
New system is in progress with an expected launch date to internal staff
by the fourth quarter in 2009.
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2008 Sustainability Planning and Development

Economic Goals - achieve fiscal stability and health

Promote continuous improvement and
operational efficiency
Objective

Objective

To use electronic media to enhance
communication.

Implement new IT inventory and
management system.

Division

Division

Corporate Administration

Corporate Administration

Activity

Activity

To design and launch an effective internal communication mechanism
to facilitate distribution of information to staff.

Obtain and implement a new IT inventory system to track and manage
IT assets to assist with the compilation of asset information to meet the
reporting requirements for the tangible capital asset project.

Indicator
Successful implementation of internal portal.

Project Summary
The inventorying of Township IT assets is now at significant completion.

Project Summary

Reporting for tangible assets is now in progress.

Hardware infrastructure has been upgraded.
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2008 Sustainability Planning and Development

Economic Goals - achieve fiscal stability and health

Promote continuous improvement and
operational efficiency
Objective

Implementation of a Human
Resources Information System
(HRIS).
Division
Human Resources

Activity
Actively participate in configuration and implementation process.

Indicator
System operational.

Project Summary
Implementation and configuration is in the final stages, with the
component testing underway.
Go live scheduled for 2009.
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2008 Sustainability Planning and Development

Economic Goals – achieve fiscal stability and fiscal health

Develop effective financial strategies
and plans
Objective

Increase lease revenue of
Township property.
Division
Corporate Administration

Activity
Secure new revenue resources.

Indicator
Increase in revenue in both commercial and residential lease properties

Project Summary
2 new leases were acquired for cellular sites with increased commercial
revenue from $254,483 to $420,238.
Residential revenue increased due to the addition of one property. This
addition increased the residential revenue from $183,300 to $205,129.
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2008 Sustainability Planning and Development

Economic Goals - achieve fiscal stability and health

Develop non-taxation funding sources
Objective

Project Summary

Ensure that Recreation, Culture, and
Parks fees and charges represent
an appropriate balance of municipal
subsidy and user cost.

Bylaw Amendment 4644 was adopted February 2008.

Division
Recreation, Culture, and Parks

Activity
Conduct a review of facility admission and facility rental rates for
Council consideration.

Three new rental categories were created:
• McLeod Athletic Park – Covered Sports Box
• Outdoor Tennis Courts
• McLeod Athletic Park Stadium/Grandstand - Special Events.
Further amendment was completed, and approved by Council
June 2008, that included a 2.5 percent increase to all
Recreation, Culture, and Parks fees and charges.
Full implementation was successfully completed on September 2, 2008.

Indicator
Council receipt of staff report by spring; amend Township’s Fees and
Charges Policy appropriately, full implementation of any changes in
fees and charges by September 2, 2008.
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2008 Sustainability Planning and Development

Economic Goals - develop liveable and vibrant communities

Manage our growth
Objective

Objective

Initiate or complete new community
and neighbourhood plans.

Ensure sufficient development lots
to satisfy development industry
needs.

Division
Community Development

Activity

Division
Community Development

Complete the review of the Special Study Area of the NE Gordon
Neighbourhood Plan, incorporate the Carvolth expansion area, complete
the Jericho Sub-Neighbourhood Plan, and initiate Central Gordon
Neighbourhood Plan.

Activity

Indicator

Indicator

Sought public consultation; prepared and presented draft plans
to Council.

Creation of approximately 800 new development lots.

Facilitate development application for the creation of new single-family
lots,and multi-family units to meet the demands.

Project Summary
Project Summary
Northeast Gordon Estate – Information was not provided by the
proponent.

The number of new single-family residential lots created and/or
considered for approval in 2008 was consistent with projections.

Carvolth Expansion – Updated the watercourse classification map, and
initiated a habitat balance model.
Jericho Sub-Neighbourhood Plan – Developed a concept plan, area was
expanded to include land east of 200 Street at Council’s request.
Central Gordon – Update watercourse classification map, initiated
habitat balance, developed a neighbourhood charrette process to
develop a plan.
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2008 Sustainability Planning and Development

Economic Goals - develop liveable and vibrant communities

Manage our growth consistent with
overall community needs
Objective

Objective

Completion of Employment Lands
Study to ensure adequate long-term
supply of land to meet employment
objectives.

Continue to process commercial and
industrial development applications
to assist in the strengthening of
Langley’s economic base.

Division

Division

Community Development

Community Development

Activity

Activity

Work with consultant and Economic Development Advisory Committee
to determine land needs to meet employment objectives, land available,
and to develop appropriate policies.

Draft reports to Council to facilitate the approval of zoning applications,
and issuance of development permits for increased commercial and
industrial development.

Indicator

Indicator

Developed Terms of Reference, hired consultant, undertook community
consultation, and reported to Economic Development Advisory
Committee and Council.

Number of square metres of commercial floor space increased.

Project Summary
The number of new single-family residential lots created and/or
considered for approval in 2008 was consistent with projections.
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Project Summary
Permits issued for 54,000 square metres of commercial/office, and
18,000 square metres of industrial floorspace.
Fourth quarter growth was lower than expected due to economic
slowdown.
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2008 Sustainability Planning and Development

Economic Goals - develop liveable and vibrant communities

Encourage high quality design
Objective

Project Summary

Respond to market demands for
housing, industrial, and employment
uses.

Development applications received were consistent with projections.

Division

Total growth was less than anticipated due to the fourth quarter
economic slowdown.
Development in Willoughby (153 units) and other areas (723 units), and
commercial/industrial floor space (72,000 square metres).

Community Development

Activity
Process a broad range of development applications for rezoning,
commercial, industrial, subdivision, and development permit approvals.

Indicator
Continued high levels of residential development applications in newly
developing areas of Willoughby (approximately 1,100 units).
Continued infill development in such areas as Aldergrove, Murrayville,
and Walnut Grove (approximately 400 units).
Continued growth in commercial/industrial business park application
areas (approximately 125,000 square metres) in Carvolth, Gloucester,
Thunderbird Village, and Willowbrook.
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2008 Sustainability Planning and Development

Economic Goals - develop liveable and vibrant communities

Provide flexible, affordable, and mixed
housing options
Objective

Project Summary

Develop a Housing Action Plan.

Initiated background research in final quarter 2008.

Division

Attended an Affordable Housing Workshop; initiated background
research.

Community Development

Activity
Initiate Housing Action Plan.

Indicator
Terms of Reference developed, and consultant hired.
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2008 Sustainability Planning and Development

Economic Goals – integrate transportation and community planning

Provide safe and affordable
transportation infrastructure
Objective

Construct 64 Avenue Overpass
and associated road improvements
funding.
Division
Engineering

Activity
Negotiate with Ministry of Transportation, Transport Canada, TransLink,
and the railways to reach an agreement on the scope of work and
associated funding sources.

Indicator
Construction throughout 2009 with expected completion in 2010.

Project Summary
The “Design Feasibility and Investigation for 64 Avenue Extension from
204 Street to 216 Street with an overpass to Highway 10” study is
completed. The project manager and an “owner’s engineer” have been
hired to oversee the project.
Conditional approval from the Agricultural Land Commission on the
preferred alignment has been received. The Township has undertaken
consultation activities with the community at large; funding agreements
with the project partners have been prepared for execution in 2009.
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2008 Sustainability Planning and Development

Economic Goals – integrate transportation and community planning

Provide safe and affordable
transportation infrastructure
Objective

Construct re-alignment of Telegraph
Trail at 96 Avenue.
Division
Engineering

Activity
Design work is underway with property acquisition to follow. The project
provides a vital link to the Golden Ears Bridge and the Township is
seeking to have it in place prior to the bridge opening in the summer
of 2009.

Project Summary
Functional design of Telegraph Trail/96 Avenue/198 Street is
90 percent complete. Land acquisition is partially complete with
remainder anticipated in 2009. Due to land acquisition and budget
issues, construction cannot commence until 2009. Design has been
reviewed and amended to be consistent with road work being completed
as part of the Golden Ears Bridge and to accommodate cycling facilities
consistent with regional plans. The Township has received approval
from TransLink for $1.3 million in funding for the re-alignment project,
and has applied for a provincial cycling grant and an Infrastructure
Canada/Building Canada/Communities Component grant to assist
in the funding of the project. Additional funds are required as part of
the 2009 capital draft budget to fund the Township’s share of the
project cost.

Issuance of design Request for Proposal (RFP), detailed design, land
acquisition, and projected budget requirements will be completed.
Applications have been prepared for senior government grants.

Indicator
Realignment project for Telegraph Trail at 96 Avenue constructed.
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2008 Sustainability Planning and Development

Economic Goals – integrate transportation and community planning

Provide safe and affordable
transportation infrastructure
Objective

Indicator

Develop “Traffic Control
Management Centre” to optimize
the performance of existing
traffic signals within the Township,
including implementation, and
refining traffic signal coordination
plans on 200 Street, Fraser Highway,
88 Avenue, and 64 Avenue.

Study recommendations implemented.

Project Summary
TransLink funding and approval has been received for implementation
of an Advanced Traffic Control Management Centre. Due to the cost
of the project, the Township has adjusted the program to a multi-phase
approach. The Central Control System (ICONS) has been acquired and
the focus has been implementation on MRN Roads for the procurement
of equipment. Major corridors have been implemented and include
200 Street, 64 Avenue and Fraser Highway. The second phase of
implementation will occur in 2010 pending funding from TransLink and
the Township capital budget. A total of 45 of the Township’s 80 traffic
signals remain to be connected to the system.

Division
Engineering

Activity
Issue a Request for Proposal for the development of an Advanced Traffic
Control Management Centre.
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2008 Sustainability Planning and Development

Economic Goals – integrate transportation and community planning

Provide safe and affordable
transportation infrastructure
Objective

Indicator

Implement results of Integrated
Regional Signal System study.

Phase 1 of the Integrated Regional Signal System (IRSS) has been
revisited to allow for integration into the Township’s new Advanced
Traffic Management System (ICONS). The software modifications and
hardware procurement is planned for the summer of 2009.

Division
Engineering

Activity
This study is currently underway through collaboration with Transport
Canada, the City of Langley, the City of Surrey, the Ministry of
Transportation, and CP Rail. The study is focusing on a coordinated
traffic signal network on 200 Street from Fraser Highway to 66 Avenue,
and on Fraser Highway from 200 Street to 64 Avenue.

Preliminary planning for Phase 2 of the IRSS system has been
initiated. A plan has been developed for the location of the advanced
warning signage and work is continuing on the sign design and rail
detection system. The system is also being designed with the potential
implementation of advanced warning signs along Highway 10 for
diversion of traffic to the future 64 Avenue Overpass.

Continued participation in the Integrated Regional Signal System (IRSS)
study with Ministry of Transport, TransLink, City of Langley, City of
Surrey, Transport Canada, and CP Rail; develop integrated coordination
plan for the corridor.
Upon study completion, purchase and install required equipment
upgrades necessary to complete work.
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2008 Sustainability Planning and Development

Economic Goals – integrate transportation and community planning

Provide safe and affordable
transportation infrastructure
Objective

Project Summary

Build upon the current widening
of 203 Street, south of 68 Avenue,
by continuing the construction on
203 Street, north of 68 Avenue, to
approximately 74 Avenue.

Construction contract was issued in the fall of 2008 for the intersection
realignment of 202B Street and 202A Street between 70 Avenue and
74 Avenue. This will result in a 4-lane urban standard from 67 Avenue
through to 74 Avenue.

Division
Engineering

Activity
Issue contract for the completion of the construction work on 203 Street
from 66 Avenue to 69 Avenue.

Indicator
Issue contract for the design and construction of 203 Street, from
69 Avenue to 74 Avenue, on completion of the road works construction
on 203 Street from 66 Avenue to 69 Avenue.
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2008 Sustainability Planning and Development

Economic Goals - investing effective infrastructure

Ensure quality construction and best
value for our investment
Objective

Ensure proposed buildings contain
the necessary design features and
construction elements to provide for
the health, safety, and accessibility
of citizens.
Division
Community Development

Activity
Process applications, review building design and other proposals for
compliance with appropriate codes, bylaws, and other enactments.

Indicator
Building permits and business licenses processed; inspections
performed; process development construction value in excess of
projected estimates.

Project Summary
Processed 2,555 building permits and performed 36,055 inspection
units with construction values in the amount of $230 million.
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2008 Sustainability Planning and Development

Economic Goals - invest in effective infrastructure

Ensure quality construction and best
value for our investment
Objective

Project Summary

Continue construction and
operations planning for the Langley
Events Centre.

Significant partners announced with Memoranda of Understanding.

Division
Recreation, Culture, and Parks

Activity
Douglas Day 2008, first event for the Langley Events Centre.

New funders brought opportunity to increase scope of project.
Construction schedule remained on time, on budget.
Douglas Day Banquet successfully staged, November 19, 2008.
Operations plans substantially completed.
Adjoining Willoughby Community Park development completed,
including new synthetic turf field, combination softball/soccer field,
combination rugby/soccer field, children’s water park, children’s
playground, and related site works including stormwater management.

Indicator
Construction substantially complete and operations plan in place
by year-end.
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2008 Sustainability Planning and Development

Economic Goals – reduce energy consumption

Promote energy efficiency in new, and
retrofit buildings
Objective

Implement preventative
maintenance plan for current
asset base to ensure long-term
sustainability.
Division
Recreation, Culture, and Parks

Activity
Continue to invest up to $200,000 per annum in community arena
infrastructure to maintain the facility assets.

Indicator
Identify through capital budget process items requiring repair or
replacement.

Project Summary
2008 capital program includes a number of infrastructure improvements.
Aldergrove Community Arena water line replacement project completed.
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2008 Sustainability Planning and Development

Environmental Goals – increase biodiversity and natural capital

Protect and enhance environmentally
significant areas
Objective

Indicator

Develop a new nature park at
Redwoods Golf Club to protect the
natural area at the north end of the
facility for future generations.

Park plan is endorsed by Council; host an event to dedicate the park
in fall 2008.

Project Summary
Langley Field Naturalists completed fall, winter, and spring surveys and
submitted final report.

Division

Staff completed modest trail design and construction during summer.

Recreation, Culture, and Parks

New Nature Park was named in honour of Hope/Mavis family in
September.

Activity
Township staff will work with the Langley Field Naturalists to conduct a
site inventory including trees, plants, and wildlife to be protected.

Hope Redwoods Natural Area opened to the public in October.

Define the area to be protected as a Nature Park, and opportunities for
public access.
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2008 Sustainability Planning and Development

Economic Goals - develop livable and vibrant communities

Manage growth consistent with overall
community needs
Construct long-term sewer service
for Aldergrove and Gloucester
Estates. The project is to be based
on the East Langley Sewer Strategy,
which identified the most costeffective long-term solution.
Division
Engineering

Project Summary
Aldergrove connector sewer design is completed.
Lift station design is nearing finalization.
5 separate construction tenders will be issued in spring 2009 to allow
local contractors to have adequate bonding to submit bids.
Construction will commence in April, and continue through the end of
the year.
Project has received a $6 million grant from provincial and federal
governments.

Activity
Develop a funding strategy for sewer service in east Langley.
Design and construct a long-term sewer connection to service Aldergrove
and Gloucester.

Indicator
Completed design: partial construction of the sewer system.
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2008 Sustainability Planning and Development

Economic Goals – strengthen our economy

Maximize the tourism potential
in Langley
Objective

Project Summary

Strengthen sports tourism.

Event kits were distributed to sport organizations.

Division
Recreation, Culture, and Parks

Activity
Develop tools for sport organizations to use in coordinating their bid
packages for major events.

Indicator
Make an online event planning package available for sport organizations.
Host a minimum of two provincial and one national sporting event.

Semi-pro football team commenced play at McLeod Athletic Park
July 2008; Provincial AA Swim Meet was held at Walnut Grove
Community Centre June 2008.
Langley Rowing and Paddling Centre was constructed, and hosted
the Western Canadian, and the National CIS Rowing Championships
October.
Trinity Western University hosted CIS Women’s Soccer Championships
November.
Professional basketball team, The Vancouver Titans, were announced for
Langley Events Centre to commence in 2009.

Additional sports tourism opportunities created through operations
planning for Langley Events Centre.
McLeod Athletic Park operations plan in place that further increases
sports tourism opportunities.
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2008 Sustainability Planning and Development

Environmental Goals – conserve and enhance our environment

Conserve water
Objective

Indicator

Implement water conservation
measures identified in the
Comprehensive Demand
Management Strategy, which may
include residential water metering,
water auditing of industrial users,
leak reduction measures.

Reduced average water usage per capita.

Project Summary
Completed a water demand management strategy in fall 2007. As a
pilot project, In 2008, Township staff incorporated community-based
social marketing tools in the Water Wise door-to-door program to
encourage households in a select area of Walnut Grove to implement
sustainable summertime lawn watering practices.
The Toilet Rebate Program was continued for a second year. The
program enabled Township residents to replace 700 inefficient, older
toilets with new low-flow models, significantly reducing daily water used.

Division
Engineering

Activity
Seek to reduce average water use per person through water conservation
measures.
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2008 Sustainability Planning and Development

Environmental Goals – conserve and enhance our environment

Reduce air pollution
Objective

Project Summary

Implement initiatives recommended
in the Township’s Greenhouse Gas
Reduction Plan, including vehicle
right-sizing, retrofitting facilities
to improve energy efficiency, and
moving toward increased bio-diesel.

A number of measures were investigated and implemented:

Division
Engineering

Activity
Seek to reduce corporate greenhouse gas emissions towards the target
of 10 percent below 2000 emissions by 2010.

• municipal vehicle anti-idling program built on a corporate one 		
minute idling policy
• continued use of 100 percent renewable Biodiesel in diesel 		
powered vehicles, and equipment
• alternative technologies explored through the acquisition of
5 hybrid vehicles
• conducted comprehensive energy audits of 3 of 			
the Township’s most energy intensive buildings: Walnut Grove 		
Community Centre, W.C. Blair Recreation Centre, and the 		
Aldergrove Water Treatment Plant.
• Building Canada funding was received to install a heat 		
recovery system at the Aldergrove Water Treatment Plant in 2009:
expected to reduce annual plant emissions by up to 100 tonnes.

Indicator
Average annual reductions in greenhouse gas emissions 2 percent below
the 2000 emissions level.
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2008 Sustainability Planning and Development

Environmental Goals – respect our rural character and rural heritage

Preserve the agricultural land base for
food production
Objective

To satisfy a 1998 Provincial OrderIn-Council with respect to a review
of Township of Langley’s regulatory
bylaws affecting the Agricultural
Land Reserve and enable further
collaborative discussions with
Agricultural Land Commission (ALC)
and Ministry of Agriculture and
Lands (MAL) for harmonization of
policies with these agencies.

Indicator
Draft agreements and bylaws presented to Council and other agencies
for review, consideration, and approval.

Project Summary
In consultation with the Ministry of Agriculture and Lands, and the
Agricultural Land Commission, continued with the finalization of the
draft policy/regulatory bylaws.
Anticipate presentation to Council fall of 2009.

Division
Community Development

Activity
Undertake a collaborative approach with Ministry of Agricultural and
Lands to complete a review of Township’s regulatory bylaws, relative
to Provincial farm standards. Further collaboration with Ministry and
Agricultural Land Commission directed towards establishing a long-term
policy harmonization protocol between these agencies.
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2009 Sustainability Planning and Development

Sustainability Planning
and Development

2009

Building a legacy for future generations by leading and committing the
community to a lifestyle that is socially, culturally, economically, and
environmentally balanced.
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2009 Sustainability Planning and Development

Social/Cultural Goals – celebrate our heritage

Identify, protect, and
manage heritage resources
Objective

Ensure heritage attributes of the
Township are identified and retained
for future generations.
Division
Community Development

Activity
Employing an inclusive community-based consultation process,
complete the development of a Heritage Strategy, and continue the
Historic Places Initiative.

Activity
Continue to offer financial support to the private sector to encourage
appropriate heritage resource preservation.

Indicator
Individual owners continue to access the fund and the resulting work
meets National Conservation Standards.

Progress to date
Heritage Strategy has not commenced; six statements of significance
were completed under the Historic Places Initiative.

Indicator
Heritage Strategy and Historic Places Initiative is in place.
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2009 Sustainability Planning and Development

Social/Cultural Goals – celebrate our heritage

Promote awareness of
heritage values
Objective

Historical incorporation documents
to be made available on the
Township’s Website.
Division
Corporate Administration

Activity
Incorporation documents for the Township of Langley to be made
accessible on the website.

Indicator
The documents will be available for direct access electronically by
citizens and other interested parties.

Progress to date
Documents are currently being prepared to be posted on website.
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2009 Sustainability Planning and Development

Social/Cultural Goals – celebrate our heritage

Support Unique Community
Heritage Events
Objective

Progress to date

Promote stronger ties with Langley
area arts and culture groups.

Historical regional fair to be held at the Museum April 2009, with
Provincial Finals secured for May 2010.

Division
Recreation, Culture, and Parks

Langley Arts Council to investigate multi-artist, multi-media show at
Museum for 2010.
“River of Destiny” inaugurates lecture series April 2009.

Activity
Offer museum and gallery space to schools, art groups, and provide
quarterly lecture series.

Indicator
Initiated contact and encouraged groups to use the facility.
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2009 Sustainability Planning and Development

Social/Cultural Goals – celebrate our heritage

Identify, Protect, And Manage
Heritage Resources
Objective

Progress to date

Promote an understanding and
appreciation for our cultural diversity
and heritage.

First Nations basket collection is being cleaned with approximately
one-third of the work completed.

Division

11 contemporary baskets have been commissioned.
Research for book is nearing completion and design template is in
draft form.

Recreation, Culture, and Parks

Activity
Develop an exhibit focused on First Nations basket collection; to include
historic and contemporary examples.
Seek funding for “Agriculture in Early Langley” publication.
Offer a minimum of 80 programs, events, and exhibits.

Indicator
Restore and clean Museum basket collection, and locate contemporary
basket makers.
Book’s research and design work past 50 percent completed.
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2009 Sustainability Planning and Development

Social/Cultural Goals – build corporate and community capacity

Encourage and promote active
volunteerism
Objective

Increase community enthusiasm and
volunteerism heading into Vancouver
2010 Olympic Winter Games, and
the summer 2010 hosting of the BC
Summer Games in the Township of
Langley.
Division

Indicator
Heightened community excitement for 2010 events.
Plans are in place for local celebrations during Vancouver 2010
Olympic Games, including February 8, 2010 Olympic Torch Relay and
Community Celebration.
Plans in place for successful staging of 2010 BC Summer Games.

Progress to date
Langley Spirit of BC Volunteer recruitment initiative has been established.
Langley 2010 BC Summer Games Board of Directors is expected to be
in place by April 2009.

Recreation, Culture, and Parks

Activity
Continue to support the activities and initiatives of the Langley
Spirit of BC Committee.
Work with Langley 2010 BC Summer Games Board of Directors to create
enthusiasm in the community and successfully commence to recruit the
required 4,000 volunteers to deliver the Games in July 2010.
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2009 Sustainability Planning and Development

Social/Cultural Goals - build corporate and community capacity

Maintain a high performance
work force
Objective

Objective

Complete implementation of a
Human Resources Information
System (HRIS).

Continue to review and research
alternate recruitment and selection
methods.

Division

Division

Human Resources

Human Resources

Activity

Activity

Finalize configuration, complete testing, establish training, and
implementation schedule.

Investigate opportunities and events to promote the Township as a
desirable employer.

Indicator

Indicator

System operational.

Create schedule of events and venues.

Progress to date

Progress to date

Implementation and configuration is in final stages.

In conjunction with promotional material being sent to all BC post
secondary institutions, staff has attended the following events to
promote the employment possibilities within the Township:

Testing is underway with the ‘go live’ date schedule for
June 2009.

• 10 x 10 Challenge Symposium
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
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BCIT
Careers Super Fair
Douglas College
Kwantlen Polytechnical University
Langara College
Langley Community Skills Centre
Trinity Western University
University College of the Fraser Valley
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2009 Sustainability Planning and Development

Social/Cultural Goals - build corporate and community capacity

Maintain a high performance
work force
Objective

Design and develop internal training
programs and workshops.
Division
Human Resources

Activity
Identification of internal training needs.
Develop specific training programs and workshops designed to meet
the needs of the organization.

Indicator
Developed and implemented training programs.

Progress to date
Specific training program identified, and coordination of workshops
currently in process.
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2009 Sustainability Planning and Development

Social/Cultural Goals – build corporate and community capacity

Maintain a high performance
work force
Objective

Provide excellent fire protection to
citizens and their property.
Division
Protective Services - Fire

Activity
Recruit and train full-time firefighters.

Indicator
Hire and put into service 16 new full-time firefighters at a fourth staffed
fire hall.

Progress to date
Recruiting will commence in the second quarter of 2009.
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2009 Sustainability Planning and Development

Social/Cultural Goals – provide and support community based leisure opportunities

Provide parks, open space, and
recreation facilities
Objective

Indicator

Continue to address future
community recreation needs for
Aldergrove community.

Determination of facility mix to be completed (indoor pool, outdoor pool,
fitness facilities, and arena).

Division

In consultation with park user groups, initial phase of trail widening,
and facility enhancement work completed at Aldergrove Athletic Park.

Recreation, Culture, and Parks

Activity
Prepare planning and design work for a new aquatic facility at
Aldergrove Kinsmen Community Centre.
Pursue and leverage other sources of funding, including Provincial
and Federal infrastructure improvement programs.
Pursue possible facility enhancements for Aldergrove Athletic Park
including trail widening, playground development, BMX bike track,
community gardens, and new sports field utilizing $80,000 in capital
funds allocated in 2008.

TOWNSHIP OF LANGLEY 2008 ANNUAL REPORT

Detailed design work complete for new facility; funding plan in place to
allow for construction to commence.

Progress to date
$100,000 allocated to design work in 2008 capital budget was
not expended.
Aldergrove Task Force report was submitted in 2008, and outlines
need for additional youth serving recreation facilities, and programs for
Aldergrove. Additional funding will be required in order to move initiative
forward in 2009.

109

2009 Sustainability Planning and Development

Social/Cultural Goals – provide and support community based leisure opportunities

Form partnerships to maximize leisure
opportunities
Objective

Indicator

Successful operation of Langley
Events Centre during its first year of
service to the community.

Facility Operating Committee meeting regularly to discuss facility and
program needs.

Division

Facility partners moved into building and programs/businesses
established.

Recreation, Culture, and Parks

Activity
Implementation of partnership and lease agreements with facility
operating partners.

Recreation programs fully subscribed, park space fully allocated for
community use.

Progress to date
Facility openings scheduled throughout April to June.

Community Centre programs (fitness, multi-media, preschool, and
gymnasium) commence.
Synergies developed between facility programming and community
park programming.
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2009 Sustainability Planning and Development

Social/Cultural Goals – provide and support community based leisure opportunities

Provide parks, open space, and
recreation facilities
Objective

Ensure required facilities are in place
to ensure the successful staging of
the 2010 BC Summer Games
Division
Recreation, Culture, and Parks

Activity
Complete facility improvements at McLeod Athletic Park including track
re-surfacing, spectator seating installation, stadium perimeter fencing
installation, scoreboard and sound system installation.
Design and construction of 4-court sand volleyball facility at Willoughby
Community Park.

Indicator
Facility improvements completed by October 2009.

Progress to date
Upon adoption of the 2009 Parks Utility capital budget, the project will
be immediately initiated.
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2009 Sustainability Planning and Development

Social/Cultural Goals – provide and support community based leisure opportunities

Form partnerships to maximize leisure
opportunities
Objective

Indicator

Complete Motorized Boat Launch
planning exercise.

Planning study completed in consultation with other partners.

Division

Business Plan completed for a relocated launch facility.

Recreation, Culture, and Parks

Capital Budget requirements identified for potential inclusion in
2010-2014 Five Year Capital Plan.

Activity
Consult with potential partners including the Province of BC, TransLink,
and Kwantlen First Nations, complete planning exercise with the goal of
relocating and improving motorized boat launching facilities, and access
to the Bedford Channel and Fraser River.

Development Plan completed for relocated launch facility.

Progress to date
Will proceed immediately upon adoption of 2009 Parks Utility
capital budget.

Development of a business plan and development plan for a new boat
launch facility to provide access to the Fraser River for
motorized watercraft.
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2009 Sustainability Planning and Development

Social/Cultural Goals – protect our people and their properties

Prevent crime and reduce the
effects of crime
Objective

Objective

Develop and implement a longterm Policing Strategic Plan for the
Langley RCMP Detachment.

Develop and implement a formal
Crime Reduction Strategy for the
Langley RCMP Detachment.

Division

Division

Protective Services – RCMP

Protective Services – RCMP

Activity

Activity

Develop a Policing Master Plan for Langley in partnership with
community stakeholders that reflect the community’s expectations,
and that set out the related accountabilities.

Develop a Crime Reduction Strategy that focuses on prolific offenders,
crime hot spots, and root causes of crime. Deploy police resources in
highly visible, strategic locations such as urban centers, parks, and
local hot spots.

Indicator
Policing Master Plan presented to Council.

Indicator
Prolific Offender Strategy implemented.

Progress to date
Master Plan is in draft format, and presentation Mayor and Council is
anticipated for September 2009.

Effectively engage volunteer resources through crime analysis.

Progress to date
A Prolific Offender Strategy has been implemented.
Through extensive analytical criteria ranking, the Langley’s Most Wanted
Prolific Offender List has been created.
Community Policing Offices and volunteers are continuing the ‘10 plus
calls’ program, using crime analysis to target hot spots. Hot spots are
areas receiving 10 or more police calls.
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2009 Sustainability Planning and Development

Social / Cultural Goals – protect our people and their properties

Prevent crime and reduce
the effects of crime
Objective

Progress to date

Provide excellent police protection
for Langley citizens and their
property.

The reliance on Integrated Units for homicide investigation and targeting
developing gang violence in Langley has been evident in the first
few months of 2009. Protocols for both the Public Safety Inspection
Team, and the Integrated Service Enforcement Team is currently under
discussion with an anticipation date of spring 2009.

Division
Protective Services - RCMP

Activity
Continue to support integrated regional policing services that enhance
public safety for our citizens.

Indicator
Continue participating in Lower Mainland integrated units such as
the Integrated Homicide Investigation Unit, and the Lower Mainland
Emergency Response Team.
Local initiatives such as the Public Safety Inspection Team (PSIT), and
the Integrated Service Enforcement Team receive further support.
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2009 Sustainability Planning and Development

Social / Cultural Goals – protect our people and their properties

Prevent crime and reduce
the effects of crime
Activity

Progress to date

Continue to improve the new Police Records Integrated Management
System - PRIME-BC.

The final draft of the Strategic Plan is currently being prepared.
A 2008 Year-In-Review has been prepared for the Langley
RCMP website.

Indicator

Both are due for completion and distribution in spring of 2009.

Seamless information exchange between law enforcement agencies
in the Province of British Columbia.

Activity
Complete a Strategic Communications Plan for the Detachment.

Progress to date
Indicator

The introduction of PRIME Version 7.0 has dramatically improved
information exchange, and this trend will become more a part of
policing practice in tackling regional issues.

Completion of Plan and identification of initiative action plans.

Activity

Progress to date

Update the Langley RCMP 2009 - 2011 Strategic Plan.

Indicator
Completed and distributed the 2009 - 2011 Strategic Plan.
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The final draft is currently underway. Three initiatives have been
identified for action: promotion of the Langley RCMP public website, the
Core Enforcement Team for Aldergrove, and internal communications.
The second follow-up survey of Aldergrove businesses and residents on
local policing service will be initiated in August 2009.
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Social/Cultural Goals – protect our people and their properties

Prevent crime and reduce
the effects of crime
Objective

Activity

Use electronic media to enhance
communication.

Foster and maintain strong relationships with local media to enhance
communication of policing initiatives.

Division

Indicator
Provide local media with proactive releases.

Protective Services - RCMP

Activity
Enhance a Langley RCMP stand-alone website, langley.rcmp.ca

Indicator

Progress to date
Local media releases have surpassed original proactive target measures
for 2008. This number is expected to increase in 2009/2010, with
further development of web features and statistical reports on crime
reduction and crime prevention initiatives.

The website up and running with strategic, meaningful content.

Progress to date
The RCMP Langley website, langley.rcmp.ca was launched November
2008, Crime maps feature crime reduction and prevention initiatives,
volunteer programs, the Chief’s Message, and the Most Wanted Prolific
Offender photo list. Streaming video, audio, and a youth webpage are
the next projects slated for summer 2009.
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2009 Sustainability Planning and Development

Social/Cultural Goals – protect our people and their properties

Prevent crime and reduce
the effects of crime
Objective

Indicator

Provide excellent police protection
for Langley citizens and their
property.

Strategic enforcement of intersections, impaired drivers, and
seatbelt offences.

Division

Reduction in fatalities by 25 percent.

Protective Services - RCMP

Progress to date

Activity

The number of trained Breath Technicians is being increased to address
impaired driving.

Enhance ability to provide road safety through education and
enforcement activities; continued participation in “Road Safety Vision
2010” that focuses on aggressive driving, impaired drivers, occupant
restraint, and high-crash intersections.
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Speed Watch volunteers deployed in relation to identified high collision
traffic locations and areas of community concern.

Langley RCMP Traffic Enforcement Section has introduced “covert”
intersections and construction site operations to effectively target
seatbelt and intersection offences.
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Social/Cultural Goals – protect our people and their properties

Prevent crime and reduce
the effects of crime
Objective

Activity

Provide excellent police protection
for Langley citizens and their
property.

Creation of Core Enforcement Team for the Aldergrove area.

Division

Progress to date

Protective Services - RCMP

Members are being identified, and anticipate implementation
May 2009.

Activity
Prepare for increased traffic enforcement resulting from the opening of
the Golden Ears Bridge.

Indicator
Core Enforcement Team up and running in Aldergrove.

Activity
Disrupt drug trade in the community.

Indicator

Indicator

Traffic enforcement plan in conjunction with other Road Safety partners
is in place.

Increase drug trafficking arrests by 10 percent.

Progress to date
Working relationships with other agencies and enforcement partners are
in place.

Progress to date
Langley RCMP Drug Section is focusing resources on those who market
illegal drugs in the community. This objective will be of even greater
importance with the increase in drug-related gang violence in the region,
and the impact on Langley.

ICBC, Commercial Vehicle Enforcement, and the Integrated Road Safety
Unit have been engaged.
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2009 Sustainability Planning and Development

Social/Cultural Goals – protect our people and their properties

Foster a preventative approach to
personal and community safety
Objective

Progress to date

Support and enhance the ability of
families to care for their children, and
reduce factors that put them at risk.

Identified youth partnerships are being maintained.

Division
Protective Services – RCMP

Junior Cadet Camp will be reinitiated July 14-16, 2009.
The At Risk Youth team has been increased by an additional officer this
spring 2009.
The Langley RCMP web team and Youth Section are collaborating to
initiate a youth page on the public site. This should be ready for design
and content load by June, and launched in early fall 2009.

Activity
Provide and support programs that involve and engage the youth
of Langley.
Promote opportunities for positive interaction between youth and police.

Indicator
Continued partnership with Langley Youth and Family Services, and
the School District’s Restorative Justice Program.
Ongoing investment in RCMP youth activities such as the Junior
Cadet Camp.
At Risk Youth team identifying and engaging problem youth.
Website developed with youth content, positive links, and incentives.
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2009 Sustainability Planning and Development

Social/Cultural Goals – protect people and their properties

Foster a preventative approach to
personal and community safety
Objective

Provide excellent protection for
Langley’s citizens and their property.
Division
Engineering

Activity
Conduct fire hydrant maintenance program.

Indicator
Annual hydrant maintenance program completed.

Progress to date
Hydrant maintenance is an ongoing annual program.
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2009 Sustainability Planning and Development

Social/Cultural Goals – protect people and their properties

Prepare for emergencies and disasters
Objective

Activity

Implement power outage mitigation
plan for key facilities.

Continue with the power outage mitigation plan by completing the
installation of a fixed emergency generator at 84 Avenue Lift Station,
and by installing a fixed emergency generator at 265 Street Sanitary
Lift Station, and completing a retrofit of multiple stations for hookup of
portable generators.

Division
Engineering

Activity
Promote continued power outage mitigation plan by providing for
emergency generators at Aldergrove Wells No. 9 and No. 10, and
through the purchase of one mobile 100kW generator.
To better ensure uninterrupted service, a power outage mitigation plan
for Aldergrove will be developed.

Indicator

Indicator
Emergency power service available to sustain services in the event of an
electrical power breakdown.

Progress to date
Planned work includes upgrading the emergency backup generator.
Installation of the 84 Avenue Lift Station generator is in progress. A
consulting firm will be hired, design drawings to produce design
drawings and oversee the installation of the generator at 265 Street Lift
Station are underway.

Emergency power service available to sustain services in the event of an
electrical power breakdown.

Progress to date
One mobile generator has been procured. Installation of a fixed
generator for the Aldergrove Water Treatment Plant and the 84 Avenue
Lift Station has begun. Future, planned work includes provision of
second mobile generator storage in Aldergrove. A consulting firm has
been hired; design drawings are being prepared.
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2009 Sustainability Planning and Development

Social/Cultural Goals – protect our people and their property

Provide consistent and effective
bylaw enforcement
Objective

Provide online searchable database
of all Township bylaws.
Division
Corporate Administration

Activity
Most frequently requested Township’s bylaws will be posted on the
website in a searchable format, allowing easy access to anyone wishing
to obtain this information.

Indicator
Internal and external customers would have ready access to the
Township’s bylaws.

Progress to date
On June 28, 2008 a report was presented to Council addressing the
need for a bylaw review.
Currently 4,650 bylaws have been reviewed; the report identified
outdated bylaws to be repealed and bylaws amendments.
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2009 Sustainability Planning and Development

Social/Cultural Goals – protect our people and their properties

Provide consistent and effective bylaw
enforcement
Objective

Continue to review and evaluate
proactive bylaw enforcement.
Division
Protective Services – Bylaws

Activity
Measure success of early intervention strategies; bylaw infractions
responded to before a complaint is received.

Indicator
Citizens are served with appropriate level of service.

Progress to date
With a proactive effort of bylaw officers, faster compliance has
been experienced.
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2009 Sustainability Planning and Development

Social/Cultural Goals – protect our people and their properties

Provide consistent and effective bylaw
enforcement
Objective

Develop and implement long term
Bylaw Strategic Plan.
Division
Protective Services – Bylaws

Activity
Develop Bylaw Strategic Plan in partnership with Council and community
stakeholders, reflecting the community’s expectations and needs.

Indicator
Completed Bylaw Strategic Plan presented to Mayor and Council.

Progress to date
Currently evaluating the needs of the community and identifying the
expectation of service of residents.
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2009 Sustainability Planning and Development

Social/Cultural Goals – provide and support community based leisure opportunities

Provide parks, open space, and
recreation facilities
Objective

Activity

Design and construct sufficient
parks and park-related projects
to enhance neighbourhood
communities.

Design and construct park projects that meet the needs of the
Routley neighbourhood.

Division

Indicator
Routley Neighbourhood Park construction commenced.

Progress to date

Community Development

Individual developer commitments coordinated into single
combined project.

Activity

Children’s play area to be first phase of construction for Routley
Neighbourhood Park.

Design and construct park projects in the Willoughby community.

Indicator
Continued park development at Willoughby Community Park.

Progress to date
Design of greenway connections around Willoughby Community Park.
Construction to be completed by late 2009.
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2009 Sustainability Planning and Development

Social/Cultural Goals – provide and support community based leisure opportunities

Provide parks, open space
and recreation facilities
Objective

Progress to date

Design and construct new park
facilities required for 2010
BC Summer Games.

Request For Proposals “RFP” issued late February for McLeod Athletic
Park track resurfacing.

Division
Community Development

Sand volleyball court anticipated to be constructed over the summer
for opening in early fall.
RFP for seating at McLeod Grandstand anticipated to be issued
summer 2009.

Activity
Design and construct a sand volleyball court at Willoughby Community
Park, resurface running track at McLeod Athletic Park, install aluminium
seats with back rests at Grandstand Facility at McLeod Athletic Park.

Indicator
Sand volleyball court constructed.
Track and field facilities resurfaced.
Seating installed at McLeod Athletic Park Grandstand.
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2009 Sustainability Planning and Development

Economic Goals – invest in effective infrastructure

Manage and maintain our assets to
maximize their service life
Objective

Review and update Fire Department
apparatus and equipment model.
Division
Protective Services – Fire

Activity
Review apparatus and equipment model, to ensure it meets short and
long-term needs of the Township.

Indicator
Changed apparatus and equipment model to reflect the changing nature
of the department and community.

Progress to date
A review is scheduled for the second quarter 2009.
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2009 Sustainability Planning and Development

Economic Goals – invest in effective infrastructure

Manage and maintain our assets to
maximize their service life
Objective

Continue to improve fire
training facility.
Division
Protective Services – Fire

Activity
Implement Phase 3 of facility upgrade; high-rise strategies and
tactics training.

Indicator
Phase 3 of training facility upgrade to the live burn facility implemented.

Progress to date
Pricing and phasing has been submitted in 2009 budget requests
to Council.

128

TOWNSHIP OF LANGLEY 2008 ANNUAL REPORT

2009 Sustainability Planning and Development

Economic Goals – invest in effective infrastructure

Manage and maintain our assets to
maximize service life
Objective

Establish wireless infrastructure
to enable network connectivity
between all Township of Langley
facilities.
Division
Corporate Administration

Activity
Implement core point-to-point wireless connectivity between various
Township of Langley facilities to establish a backbone infrastructure
on which to base further connectivity-based projects.

Indicator
Core wireless backbone established and implemented.

Progress to date
Wireless backbone established.
Four facilities are now connected and operating over new
wireless network.
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2009 Sustainability Planning and Development

Economic Goals – invest in effective infrastructure

Ensure quality construction and best
value for our investment
Objective

Progress to date

Ensure proposed buildings contain
the necessary design features and
construction elements to provide for
the health, safety, and accessibility
of citizens.

Permit Licence and Inspections Services Department continues to
process all types of Building Permit Applications.
New applications received to date are consistent with 2009 projections.
A reduction in the number of residential applications is anticipated, and
moderate commercial and industrial activity.
As of March 2009, there were 811 multi-family dwellings waiting for
permit processing.

Division
Community Development

Activity
Process applications, review building design and other proposals for
compliance with appropriate codes, bylaws, and other enactments.

Indicator
Continue to work collectively with RCMP and Bylaw Enforcement in
addressing safety issues related to grow operations.
Building permits and business licenses processed; inspection units
performed; process development construction value in excess of
projected estimates.
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2009 Sustainability Planning and Development

Economic Goals - invest in effective infrastructure

Manage and maintain our assets to
maximize their service life
Objective

Annual mechanical and electrical preventative maintenance; all stations.

Maintain existing sewage services in
accordance with approved standards.
Provide excellent protection for
Langley’s citizens and their property.

Semi-annual mechanical and electrical preventative maintenance
major stations.

Division
Engineering

Activity
Operate and efficiently maintain sewage collection system including lift
stations, force mains and gravity piping.

Annual standby generator maintenance.
Annual and ongoing building and site maintenance.

Activity
Complete sewer system flushing and grease cutting programs.

Indicator
Customer satisfaction and number of service requests.

Progress to date

Indicator

Flushing entire sanitary system on a three-year rotation.

Uninterrupted sewage collection.

Grease cutting all grease accumulating areas on a three-year rotation.

Progress to date

Flushing low flow and problem areas on annual, semi-annual,
and ten-week cycles.

Annual and ongoing inspection of system manholes, and right-of-way
maintenance.

Activity
Conduct lift station maintenance program.

Indicator
Annual lift station maintenance programs completed.

Progress to date
Performed quarterly wet well cleaning.
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Grease cutting problem areas on annual, semi-annual, and
ten-week cycles.

Activity
Administer sewer system inspection program through CCTV
(Closed-Circuit TV).

Indicator
Annual closed-circuit camera/TV inspection program and review of
results completed.
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2009 Sustainability Planning and Development

Economic Goals - invest in effective infrastructure

Manage and maintain our assets to
maximize their service life
Continued from page 131

Progress to date
CCTV entire sanitary system is on a twenty year rotation.

Activity
Monitor effluent loading on an ongoing basis.

Indicator
Laboratory testing results.

Progress to date
Routine weekly effluent quality sampling is ongoing including
assessments for high concentrations of Total Suspended Solids and
Biological Oxygen Demand.
Through sampling, ensure discharges to sanitary system are through
authorized connections.

Progress to date
Routine system air valve and blow-down maintenance is ongoing.
Modification of work plans is continuous to incorporate new system
expansion and maintain our Assets to maximize their service life.

Activity
Complete inflow and infiltration inspection and reduction program
to reduce volume of sewage requiring treatment.

Indicator
Volume reduction of inflow and infiltration requirements.

Progress to date
Area to receive smoke testing in 2009 is being determined.
Repair work based on 2007 year completed, repair work based on
2008 smoke testing to be undertaken in 2009.

Activity
Conduct system air valve and blow-down maintenance.

Indicator
Annual air valve and annual blow-down maintenance program
completed.
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2009 Sustainability Planning and Development

Economic Goals - invest in effective infrastructure

Manage and maintain our assets to
maximize their service life
Objective

Progress to date

Contribute to a Sustainable
Region: Implement “Traffic Control
Management Centre” to optimize
the performance of existing traffic
signals within the Township.

TransLink funding and approval has been received for implementation
of an Advanced Traffic Control Management Centre.

Division
Engineering

Due to the cost of the project, the Township has adjusted the program
to a multi-phase approach. The Central Control System (ICONS) has
been acquired, and the focus has been implementated on major road
networks for the procurement equipment. Major corridors that have
been implemented include 200 Street, 64 Avenue, and Fraser Highway.
The second phase of implementation will occur in 2010, pending
funding from TransLink and the Township’s capital budget. A total of 45
of the Township’s 80 traffic signals remain to be connected to
the system.

Activity
Procure traffic-control related software and equipment by 2008, in
conjunction with necessary training requirements. Implementation
anticipated for 2009.

Indicator
Traffic Control Management Centre operational.
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2009 Sustainability Planning and Development

Economic Goals – develop liveable and vibrant communities

Manage growth consistent with overall
community needs
Objective

Objective

Continue to process development
applications that reflect a
sustainable approach to Community
Development.

Initiate or complete new community
plans.

Division

Activity

Community Development

Complete the Central Gordon Estate Neighbourhood Plan.

Activity

Indicator

Process zoning, subdivision, development permits, and
related applications.

Held design charrette, developed draft plan, sought public consultation,
adoption of plan bylaw.

Indicator

Progress to date

Increase the quantity of applications processed.

Invitations have been forwarded to residents and stakeholders.

Progress to date

Design charette is scheduled for March 28, 2009.

Applications received were consistent with the 2009 projections.
Anticipate a reduced number of residential applications (related to
economic slowdown), and moderate commercial/industrial activity.

Division
Community Development

Activity
Complete the Aldergrove Core Planning Program.

Indicator
Held design charrette, developed draft plan, sought public consultation,
and incorporated plan into the Aldergrove Community Plan.

Progress to date
A Term of Reference for the updated Aldergrove Plan is being developed,
along with a core development plan for downtown.
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2009 Sustainability Planning and Development

Economic Goals – develop liveable and vibrant communities

Manage growth consistent with overall
community needs
Objective

Amend Subdivision and Development
Servicing Bylaw to integrate
standards to streamline processes
and to promote sustainability goals.
Division:
Community Development

Activity
Review Subdivision and Development Servicing Bylaw in consultation
with stakeholders that integrates updated servicing standards.

Indicator
Amended bylaws are adopted.

Progress to date
Draft bylaw is under review with stakeholders, and is to be presented
to Council for consideration in later part of 2009.
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2009 Sustainability Planning and Development

Economic Goals – develop liveable and vibrant communities

Make communities pedestrian and
bicycle oriented
Objective

Progress to date

Construct road network
improvements to accommodate the
Langley Events Centre in Willoughby.

Construction of 200 Street south of 80 Avenue (east side) fronting the
Langley Events Centre has been completed. Construction of 80 Avenue
east of 200 Street (south side) fronting the Langley Events Centre has
also been completed. The intersection of 200 Street/80 Avenue has
been modified to incorporate the implementation of left turn phases
to facilitate anticipated traffic movements to/from the Langley Events
Centre. Construction of 202A/202B Street from 69 Avenue to
74 Avenue has commenced with completion anticipated in the summer
of 2009.

Division
Engineering

Activity
Construct road network improvements at: 202A/202B Street from
69 Avenue to 74 Avenue.
200 Street south of 80 Avenue (west side); and 80 Avenue, west of
200 Street.

Township is working with TransLink and the Coast Mountain Bus
Company to incorporate sidewalks on the east and west sides of
200 Street leading to the existing bus stops as part of its 2008 TRIP
(Transit Improvement Program). The Township is working with TransLink
and the Coast Mountain Bus Company to implement a new bus stop in
the northbound direction (east side) to include transit stop and routes.

Indicator
Construction of the road works required to service the Langley Events
Centre to be completed in 2009.
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2009 Sustainability Planning and Development

Economic Goals – strengthen our economy

Service our Established and Emerging
Communities
Objective

Objective

To provide a convenient Business
Licence Renewal service to our
customers within and outside of
our community.

Build complete communities.

Division:
Community Development

Activity

Division
Community Development

Activity
Completion of Employment Lands Study to ensure adequate long-term
supply of land to meet employment objectives.

Indicator

To set up a new online service allowing customers to submit payments
and renew business licences conveniently.

Hired consultant, refined employment model, completed study, made
presentation to Economic Development Advisory Committee
and Council.

Indicator

Progress to date

An increase in online business licence renewals.

Development of an employment projection model using the
BC Assessment Authority floor space database has been initiated.

Progress to date
Anticipate implementation by late 2009.
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Request for proposals issued; consultant proposals currently
being reviewed.
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2009 Sustainability Planning and Development

Economic Goals – strengthen our economy

Service our Established and
Emerging Communities
Objective

Ensure businesses operating in the
Township are in compliance with
applicable bylaws and regulations
to ensure health and safety
requirements are being met.
Division
Community Development

Activity
Inspections carried out by Business Licence Inspector assisting business
owners in meeting necessary requirements to obtain a valid
business licence.

Indicator
Increase of business licence application approvals.

Progress to date
New Business Licence Inspector is actively conducting inspections and
coordinating compliance with Township bylaws.
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2009 Sustainability Planning and Development

Economic Goals – strengthen our economy

Maximize the tourism potential
in Langley
Objective

To ready the Airport for 2010
Olympic traffic and visitors.
Division
Langley Regional Airport

Activity
Prepare infrastructure to accommodate possible tourist and promotional
activity over the 2010 Olympic Games.

Indicator
New parking area for up to 100 aircraft.
Beautification projects to enhance Airport appearance with items such
as flower beds, line painting, upgrading aircraft operational signage,
planting boulevard trees along north side access road, and an asphalt
cap on north access road.

Progress to date
Awaiting BC Transportation Partnership Program grant approval.
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2009 Sustainability Planning and Development

Economic Goals – achieve fiscal stability and fiscal health

Develop Non Taxation Funding Sources
Objective

Progress to date

Pursue grant opportunities, develop
effective incentive policies, and
implement a user fee policy that
balances the cost of services with
community needs and taxpayer
responsibility.

Advertising policies from other municipalities have been gathered.
Discussion at Langley Field Sport Association occurred in January.
Sample bylaws from other municipalities have been collected.
Draft Cemetery Bylaw has been discussed by management team.
Council provided direction to staff for 9.5 percent increase in
ice/dry floor user fees for implementation in September 2009.
Fees and Charges bylaw expected to be presented to Council in June
for September 2009 implementation.

Division
Recreation, Culture, and Parks

Activity
Pursue grant funding opportunities for museum, arts and culture,
recreation, environmental sustainability, and capital development
initiatives.
Develop advertising in Recreation and Cultural Facilities and a Parks
policy to provide enhanced revenues for Township.
Amend Cemetery Bylaw and identify additional revenue opportunities
for cemetery operations.
Amend Fees and Charges Bylaw, and identify additional opportunities
to further shift responsibility from taxpayers to users of services.

Indicator
Increase by 10 percent total grant monies received by year end.
Council endorsed Advertising policy, Cemetery Bylaw, and
Fees and Charges Bylaw.
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2009 Sustainability Planning and Development

Economic Goals – achieve fiscal stability and fiscal health

Practice responsible fiscal management
Objective

Provide municipal garbage and
recycling customers with high quality
service.
Division
Engineering

Activity
Collect garbage, yard trimmings, and recycling items curbside in
accordance with the contract.

Indicator
Terms and conditions of the garbage and recycling services contract
are satisfied.

Progress to date
Sierra Waste Services Ltd. has been awarded the curbside collection
and services contract for a 7 year term effective April 2009.
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2009 Sustainability Planning and Development

Economic Goals - achieve fiscal stability and fiscal health

Promote continuous improvement and
operational efficiency
Objective

Objective

Improve accuracy of cadastral base
in the Geographic Information
System (GIS).

Establish infrastructure
consolidation and optimization
strategy

Division

Division

Corporate Administration

Corporate Administration

Activity

Activity

Improve accuracy of cadastral base to better facilitate the collection and
maintenance of other spatial data.

Consolidate and optimize IT infrastructure through the use of
virtualization and automation technologies.

Indicator

Indicator

Increased accuracy of the cadastral base.

Decreased IT footprint: a more efficient service delivery.

Progress to date

Progress to date

New system has been established.

Currently analyzing opportunities and establishing strategy.

Preparation of the migration plan is currently underway.
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2009 Sustainability Planning and Development

Economic Goals - achieve fiscal stability and fiscal health

Promote continuous improvement and
operational efficiency
Objective

Use electronic media to enhance
communication, and increase public
involvement.
Division
Corporate Administration

Activity
Redesign tol.bc.ca to meet the needs of our community.

Indicator
Successfully launch the new redesign of tol.bc.ca.
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2009 Sustainability Planning and Development

Economic Goals – achieve fiscal stabilaity and fiscal health

Promote continuous improvement and
operational efficiency
Objective

Take a leadership role in promoting
environmentally sound practices
which avoid, or minimize impacts.
Division
Engineering

Activity
Ensure the collection and conveyance of sanitary sewage from our
services areas without spillage to the environment, and without negative
impact to our customers.

Indicator
Completion of construction of the East Langley sewer connection to the
Metro Vancouver collection system.

Progress to date
Aldergrove connector sewer design is complete.
Lift station design is nearing finalization.

Activity
Continue water, sewer, and stormwater planning to ensure that current
and future residents receive satisfactory levels of municipal services.

Indicator
Reduction in per capita residential water usage.

Progress to date
The Township completed a water demand management strategy in 2007.
As a pilot project, staff incorporated community-based social marketing
tools in the Water Wise door-to-door program to encourage households
participation in 2008.
The Township continues to encourage sustainable water use through
various public outreach and education initiatives, as well as Water
Wise Program initiatives, and work through the Langley Environmental
Partners Society.
The Township also continues to provide residents the opportunity to
purchase water conservation tools such as rain barrels, and water
conservation kits at a subsidized cost. In its second year, the Toilet
Rebate Program has enabled Township residents to replace 700
inefficient older toilets with new low-flow models. The program enables
participating households on the municipal system to significantly reduce
their daily water use.

Five separate construction tenders will be issued in spring 2009 to allow
more local contractors to submit bids. Construction will start in April,
and continue through the end of the year. Project has received a
$6 million grant from provincial and federal governments. A sewer
overflow storage system has been constructed in Aldergrove to ensure
peak sewage flows are contained until completion of the GVRD
connector sewer.
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2009 Sustainability Planning and Development

Economic Goals – achieve fiscal stabilaity and fiscal health

Promote continuous improvement and
operational efficiency
Objective

Indicator

Further develop and modernize the
Langley Regional Airport.

Complete construction of commercial buildings on newly developed
north side lots.

Division
Langley Regional Airport

Progress to date
Due to the economic recession, we are unable to determine the
completion of the remaining lots at time of printing.

Activity
Develop north side for commercial use.
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2009 Sustainability Planning and Development

Economic Goals – achieve fiscal stability and fiscal health

Develop effective financial strategies
and plans
Objective

Activity

Undertake long-term financial
planning strategies.

Meet the Public Sector Accounting Board (PSAB) accounting and
reporting requirements for tangible capital assets. New reporting will
lead to better asset management and budgeting.

Division

Continuation of Tangible Capital Asset Project processes beyond
December 31, 2008.

Finance

Activity

Indicator

Update the Long-Term Financial Plan.

Project is within target timelines to ensure a successful implementation
and ongoing maintenance of the tangible asset information.

Indicator

Progress to date

Adoption of the Five Year Financial Plan Bylaw by May 14, 2009.

The Tangible Capital Asset Project is proceeding on schedule.
Tangible capital assets are being identified and valuated throughout
the Township.
Business processes surrounding the capitalization of asset
improvements are being established.
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2009 Sustainability Planning and Development

Economic Goals - achieve fiscal stability and fiscal health

Develop effective financial strategies
and plans
Objective

Prepare for next round of collective
bargaining with IAFF Local 4550
to establish a new Collective
Agreement.
Division
Human Resources

Activity
Required bargaining material and relevant information currently
being prepared.

Indicator
Bargaining preparation and materials completed.

Progress to date
Bargaining will commence late fall 2009.
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2009 Sustainability Planning and Development

Economic Goals – achieve fiscal stabilaity and fiscal health

Develop effective financial strategies
and plans
Objective

Progress to-date

Increase lease revenue of
Township property.

In 2009, the commercial lease revenue is budgeted at $412,780.

Division
Corporate Administration

Activity
Hire consultant to identify Township properties that were acquired
without Development Cost Charges funding, and have potential value
in disposition.
Establish a Township Property Endowment Fund.
Present Report to Council.

In 2009, the residential rental revenue was budgeted at $245,220. This
amount has been revised upwards to $255,420 to reflect a property that
will be added to the rent roll in June. At this time it is anticipated that
both the commercial lease revenue and residential rental revenues will
be in line with projected budgets. Actual residential rental revenues will
experience some growth in 2009 due to the addition of two properties to
the rent rolls.
The caveat to this projection is the implementation of a property
endowment fund. The creation of a property endowment fund is
currently being studied. Decisions may be made to dispose of
residential income producing properties this year before the end of the
year. These funds would later be deployed into commercial income
producing properties or properties that have development potential to
generate a capital gain.

Indicator
Increase in revenue in both commercial and residential
lease properties.
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2009 Sustainability Planning and Development

Economic Goals – integrate transportation and community planning

Provide safe and affordable
transportation infrastructure
Objective

Construct the realignment of
Telegraph Trail at 96 Avenue.
Division
Engineering

Activity
Acquire land requirements post completed functional design.
Construction commenced January 2009.

Progress to date
Functional design of Telegraph Trail/96 Avenue/198 Street is
90 percent complete. Land acquisition is partially complete with
remainder anticipated in 2009. Due to land acquisition and budget
issues, construction cannot commence until 2009. Design has been
reviewed and amended to be consistent with road work being completed
as part of the Golden Ears Bridge and to accommodate cycling
facilities consistent with regional plans. The Township has received
approval from TransLink for $1.3 million in funding for the realignment
project. The Township has applied for a provincial cycling grant and an
Infrastructure Canada/Building Canada/Communities Component grant
to assist in the funding of the project. Additional funds are required
as part of the 2009 capital budget to fund the Township’s share of the
project cost.

Indicator
Construction completed summer 2009 to coincide with the opening
of the Golden Ears Bridge.
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2009 Sustainability Planning and Development

Economic Goals – integrate transportation and community planning

Provide safe and affordable
transportation infrastructure
Objective

Progress to date

Construct Willoughby 208 Street
upgrade and coordinate respective
traffic signals.

Road widening design at 208 Street from 62 Avenue to 64 Avenue has
been initiated and construction was budgeted for 2008. A provincial
grant has been received to assist in the construction of bike lanes as
part of the project. Due to delays in land acquisition, construction is
anticipated to begin in the summer of 2009. Due to funding limitations,
the design and construction of 208 Street from 64 Avenue to 68 Avenue,
originally planned for 2009 has been deferred to future years.

Division
Engineering

Activity
Upgrade existing road network through construction of the Willowbrook
Connector from 64 Avenue to 68 Avenue.

The Township has applied for TransLink funding to assist the
construction of the 208 Street Overpass of Highway 1 as part of the
2009 and 2010 capital program with construction to commence in
2010. Several land development projects along 208 Street will widen
portions of the roadway. Coordination of the traffic signals will not be
implemented until the corridor has been expanded in 2010/2011.

Indicator
4-lane arterial roadway from 62 Avenue to 68 Avenue, including the
coordination of traffic signals on 208 Street completed.
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2009 Sustainability Planning and Development

Economic Goals – integrate transportation and community planning

Coordinate with other agencies to
improve transit and road services
Objective

Construction of the 64 Avenue
Overpass and associated road
improvements.
Division
Engineering

Activity

Progress to date
A “Design Feasibility and Investigation for 64 Avenue Extension from
204 Street to 216 Street with an Overpass at Highway 10” study has
been completed. The Township has hired a project manager and an
“owner’s engineer” to oversee the project. The Township has received
conditional approval from the Agricultural Land Commission on the
preferred alignment. The Township has undertaken some consultation
activities with the community at large. Draft funding agreements with
the project partners have been prepared for the consideration of Council.
Construction anticipated commencing in 2008/2009, with completion
slated for 2010.

Initiate construction phase of overpass project; establishment of
Steering Committee.
Hire owner’s engineer to oversee detailed design and land acquisition.

Indicator
Construction initiation in 2008: completed in 2010.
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2009 Sustainability Planning and Development

Economic Goals – integrate transportation and community planning

Coordinate with other agencies to
improve transit and road services
Objective

Progress to date

Negotiate 196 Street overpass
agreements as identified in Roberts
Bank Rail Corridor Study.

To alleviate traffic congestion on 200 Street, TransLink hired a consultant
to undertake a study of the alternative alignments for the
192 Street/196 Street and 54 Avenue overpass projects. The
municipality participated in the study and a final report has been
completed. The results of the study will assist in the negotiation with
other partners on the scope, timing, and cost sharing arrangement for
the projects.

Division
Engineering

Activity
Collaborate with TransLink and City of Surrey to address some of the
road congestion and rail issues. The Roberts Bank Rail Corridor Study
indicated that the 196 Street Overpass would alleviate traffic congestion
on 200 Street.

As part of the Roberts Bank Rail Corridor (RBRC) study, the 196 Street,
192 Street, and 54 Avenue overpass projects must be completed within
an 8 year timeframe. The Township of Langley’s Five-Year Financial
Plan currently does not allot funds for 196 Street. It is anticipated that
construction of the overpass will not occur until the later years of the
program, pending agreement amongst the project partners and a share
of funding from the Township.

Indicator
Cost sharing agreement identified and completed.
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2009 Sustainability Planning and Development

Economic Goals – integrate transportation and community planning

Coordinate with other agencies to
improve transit and road services
Objective

Progress to date

Update traffic signal coordination on
various municipal roads.

Phase 1 of the Integrated Regional Signal System program is currently
being updated to allow for integration into the Township’s new Advanced
Traffic Management System with completion expected in 2009.
Preliminary planning for Phase 2 of the IRSS system has been initiated.
A plan has been developed for the location of the advanced warning
signage, and work is continuing on the sign design and rail detection
system for the diversion of traffic from 200 Street to 204 Street during a
rail event. Implementation of the system is anticipated for 2009/2010.
The system is also being designed with the potential implementation of
advanced warning signs along Highway 10 for diversion of traffic to the
future 64 Avenue Overpass.

Division
Engineering

Activity
Continue to update traffic signal coordination at various key roadways
due to rapid growth and changing traffic patterns. This project will
include: Fraser Highway, 64 Avenue (Willowbrook), 88 Avenue (Walnut
Grove), and 200 Street (Brookswood and Willowbrook).
Review traffic signal requirements due to traffic pattern changes resulting
from opening of the Golden Ears Bridge.

Indicator
Completion of updated traffic signal timing plans on various corridors.
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The traffic signal coordination of 88 Avenue has been modified to reflect
recent changes at the intersection of 88 Avenue and 208 Street. Plans
for 2009/2010 including updating the traffic signal timing plans on
200 Street from 86 Avenue to 96 Avenue, as well as 96 Avenue from
199A Street to 204 Street to reflect changes in traffic patterns resulting
from the Golden Ears Bridge. Updates on traffic signal coordination
plans are anticipated in 2010 for 64 Avenue from 197 Street, to
204 Street and Fraser Highway from 160 Street to 276 Street.
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Economic Goals – develop liveable and vibrant communities

Make communities pedestrian and
bicycle oriented
Objective

Construct Pedestrian Overpasses at
200 Street/68 Avenue and
Fraser Highway/221 Street.
Division
Engineering

Activity
Commence construction of respective pedestrian overpasses pending
design and land acquisition phases tabled for 2008.

Indicator
Construction completed.

Progress to date
Preliminary works are nearing completion for the pedestrian overpass
at 200 Street/68 Avenue as the municipality finalizes a right-of-way
acquisition appeal. An overpass bridge redesign will go to tender
spring of 2009.
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2009 Sustainability Planning and Development

Environmental – respect our rural character and rural heritage

Preserve the agricultural land base for
food production
Objective

Indicator

Review Township of Langley’s policy
documents and regulatory bylaws
to enable further collaborative
discussions with Agricultural Land
Commission (ALC) and Ministry of
Agriculture and Lands (MAL) for
harmonization of instruments with
these agencies.

Draft agreements and bylaws presented to Council and other agencies
for review, consideration, and approval.

Progress to date
Anticipate presentation to Council in fall of 2009.

Division
Community Development

Activity
Undertake collaborative approach with Agricultural Land Commission
and Ministry of Agriculture and Lands to identify long-term objectives
for the viable and sustainable farming on the Agricultural Land Reserve
in the context of community values and objectives. Define common
objectives, intended deliverables, and complementary implementation
strategy.
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2009 Sustainability Planning and Development

Environmental Goals – conserve and enhance our environment

Provide consistent and effective
bylaw enforcement
Objective

Undertake appropriate review of
Erosion and Sediment Control and
Development Cost Charges (DCC)
bylaws.
Division
Community Development

Activity
Public and development industry consultation leading to bylaw adoption,
and followed by appropriate monitoring.

Indicator
Complete a comprehensive review of the Erosion and Sediment Control,
and Development Cost Charges Bylaws.

Progress to date
Review of Erosion and Sediment Control Bylaw amendment currently
in progress.
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2009 Sustainability Planning and Development

Environmental Goals – conserve and enhance our environment

Conserve Water
Objective

Maintain existing services in
accordance with approved standards
to provide protection for Langley’s
citizens and their property.
Division
Engineering

Activity
Monitor drinking water on an ongoing basis.

Indicator
Ongoing laboratory testing results indicative of standard compliance.

Progress to date
Routine annual water quality testing program will continue in 2009.
Three year term (2010 - 2012) contract for analytical laboratory services
will be tendered late 2009.
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2009 Sustainability Planning and Development

Environmental Goals – conserve and enhance our environment

Conserve Water
Objective

Progress to date

Maintain existing water supply
services in accordance with
approved standards.

Routine maintenance of water supply systems is ongoing, and will
continue in 2009.

Division

Completed well rehabilitation service program.

Indicator
Productivity of ground water wells is maintained.

Engineering

Activity
Administer water system flushing program.

Indicator
Customer satisfaction and water quality results meeting established
standards.

Progress to date
The water main flushing program is an ongoing annual program that will
be continued in early March 2009.
The revised 2008 program will be evaluated and adjusted as necessary
to improve effectiveness and efficiency.

Progress to date
Currently analysing 2008 operation data to identify wells requiring
redevelopment.
Fort Langley Well #2 was cleaned in February 2009 to remove
accumulated sediments, and Tall Timbers Well #1 was cleaned in April
2009.

Activity
Replace aging water system infrastructure, pumps, and controls that
have reached the limit of their economic service/lifecycle.

Indicator
Reduction in emergency repairs and service interruptions.

Activity

Progress to date

Operate and maintain water supply system efficiently and effectively,
including wells, flow control devices, pumps, and treatment system.

Inspections and failure analysis will identify system components
needing replacement.

Indicator
Provision of uninterrupted water supply for residents and business.
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2009 Sustainability Planning and Development

Environmental Goals – conserve and enhance our environment

Reduce Air Pollution
Objective

Foster innovation in protecting our
environment.
Division
Engineering

Activity
Building on the 2006 Corporate Greenhouse Gas Reduction Plan,
identify and implement municipal activities to reduce greenhouse
gas emissions.

Indicator
Completion of Community Plan for reducing greenhouse gas emissions;
achieve Step 5 of the Federation of Canadian Municipalities Greenhouse
Gas Reduction program.

Progress to date
Community Greenhouse Gas Plan commenced in 2008. Several
community development models have been reviewed, and staff are
preparing a Terms of Reference for the study. Feasibility study for
geothermal heat recovery system at the Aldergrove Water Treatment
Plant has been completed, with provincial and federal grant
funding secured.
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2009 Sustainability Planning and Development

Environmental Goals – promote stewardship

Establish and strengthen stewardship
partnerships
Objective

Take a leadership role in promoting
environmentally sound practices to
influence the public.
Division
Engineering

Activity
Initiate a comprehensive waste reduction program.

Indicator
Reduction in per household curbside solid waste collection tonnage.

Progress to date
Information on the new Metro Vancouver material disposal ban, and
Zero Waste Challenge is being provided to residents. The goal is to
reduce the amount of waste being disposed.
In 2008, the municipal curbside collection program saw an increase in
recycling tonnages, and a decrease in waste tonnages. More work
will be undertaken in 2009 to encourage residents to reduce, reuse,
and recycle.
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2009 Sustainability Planning and Development

Environmental Goals – promoted stewardship

Establish, and strengthen stewardship
partnerships
Objective

Indicator

Work with the Arboretum and
Botanical Society of Langley to
further the development of a
sustainable horticulture centre at
the Derek Doubleday Arboretum.

Budget approved.

Division
Recreation, Culture, and Parks

Activity
Hire a consultant to work with staff and stakeholder groups, to
develop a plan for a future sustainable horticulture centre.

Arboretum and Botanical Society of Langley initiate successful
membership drive, and prepared fund raising strategy.
Township hosts successful Community Arbour Day event in April 2009.
Consultant report completed: development plan approved by
stakeholders and Council.
Capital planning work completed for Five Year capital plan 2010-2014.

Progress to date
In February 2009, the Arboretum and Botanical Society of Langley
received non-profit Society status.

Work with Arboretum and Botanical Society of Langley to develop
business plan and funding strategy.

TOWNSHIP OF LANGLEY 2008 ANNUAL REPORT

161

2009 Sustainability Planning and Development

Environmental Goals – nurture a mindset of sustainability

Incorporate a sustainability mentality
into the community
Objective

Engage residents and community
members in local cleanliness
activities.
Division
Engineering

Activity
Involve community members in maintaining a clean community.

Indicator
Increase in participation in programs.

Progress to date
The participation in the Adopt-a-Programs continues to be strong: all
other development and implementation of other community cleanliness
activities are based on funding approval.
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2010 Sustainability Planning and Development

Sustainability Planning
and Development

2010

Building a legacy for future generations by leading and committing the
community to a lifestyle that is socially, culturally, economically, and
environmentally balanced.
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2010 Sustainability Planning and Development

Social/Cultural Goals – protect our people and their property

Provide consistent and effective
bylaw enforcement
Objective

Provide searchable online database
of all Township bylaws.
Division
Corporate Administration

Activity
All Township’s bylaws will be posted on the website in a searchable
format.

Indicator
Within two weeks of Council approval, the bylaw will be posted to
the website.
Online access to the Township’s bylaws.
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2010 Sustainability Planning and Development

Social/Cultural Goals – protect our people and their properties

Prevent crime and reduce the
effects of crime
Objective

Objective

Develop and implement a longterm Policing Strategic Plan for the
Langley RCMP Detachment.

Develop and implement a formal
Crime Reduction Strategy.

Division

Protective Services – RCMP

Protective Services – RCMP

Activity
Identify action plans that directly support initiatives identified in the
Master Plan.

Indicator
Initiatives that address community expectations implemented, and
provide an accountable planning process.
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Division

Activity
Continue developing a Crime Reduction Strategy that focuses on prolific
offenders, crime hot spots, and root causes of crime.
Deployment of police resources in highly visible, strategic locations such
as urban centers, parks, and local hot spots.

Indicator
Reduction in main crime types, and a decrease in overall calls for police
service in areas targeted by volunteer resources.
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2010 Sustainability Planning and Development

Social / Cultural Goals – protect our people and their properties

Prevent crime and reduce
the effects of crime
Objective

Activity

Provide excellent police protection
for Langley citizens and their
property.

Update the progress of initiatives in the Langley RCMP 2009-2011
Strategic Plan.

Division
Protective Services - RCMP

Activity
Continue to support integrated regional policing services and enhance
public safety for our citizens.

Indicator
Continued participation in lower mainland integrated units such as the
Integrated Homicide Investigation Unit, and Lower Mainland Emergency
Response Team.

Indicator
Strategic Plan initiatives implemented, including identified action plans.

Activity
Implement Strategic Communications Plan initiatives with subsequent
review.
Create an intranet for the use of Detachment staff.

Indicator
Positive reaction to Core Enforcement Team initiative in Aldergrove.
Number of ‘hits’ on the Langley RCMP public website.

Local initiatives such as the Public Safety Inspection Team (PSIT) and
the Integrated Service Enforcement Team, continue to receive support.

Activity
Continue to improve the new Police Records Integrated Management
System - PRIME-BC.

Indicator
Seamless information exchange between all law enforcement agencies
in the Province of British Columbia.
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2010 Sustainability Planning and Development

Social/Cultural Goals – protect our people and their properties

Prevent crime and reduce
the effects of crime
Objective

Use electronic media to enhance
communication.
Division
Protective Services - RCMP

Activity
Create new initiatives for the Langley RCMP public website
langley.rcmp.ca.

Indicator
Streaming video and audio are available on website.
Media interviews, volunteer testimonials, and a youth web page are
implemented.

Activity
Continued strong relationship with local media to enhance
communication of policing initiatives.

Indicator
Proactive media releases and features.
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2010 Sustainability Planning and Development

Social/Cultural Goals – protect our people and their properties

Prevent crime and reduce
the effects of crime
Objective

Activity

Provide excellent police protection
for Langley citizens and their
property.

Increased traffic enforcement due to the opening of the
Golden Ears Bridge.

Division
Protective Services - RCMP

Activity
Continued enhancement of ability to provide road safety through
education and enforcement activities; continued participation in “Road
Safety Vision 2010” focussing on aggressive driving, impaired drivers,
occupant restraint, and high-crash intersections.

Indicator

Indicator
In conjunction with Road Safety partners, traffic enforcement plan
in place and functioning.

Activity
Add core enforcement team for the Aldergrove area.

Indicator
Reduction in calls for the Aldergrove area.

Activity
Continue to disrupt the drug trade in the community.

Speed Watch volunteers deployed in relation to identified high-collision
traffic locations, and all areas of community concern.

Indicator

Reduction in fatalities.

Increase in drug trafficking arrests over 2009.
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2010 Sustainability Planning and Development

Social/Cultural Goals – protect our people and their properties

Foster a preventative approach to
personal and community safety
Objective

Support and enhance the ability of
families to care for their children, and
reduce the factors that put them
at risk.
Division
Protective Services – RCMP

Activity
Continue to provide and support programs that involve and engage
Langley youth.
Promote opportunities for positive interaction between youth and police.

Indicator
Continued partnership with Langley Youth and Family Services, and
the School District’s Restorative Justice Program.
Continued investment in the RCMP Junior Cadet Camp.
Increased numbers of youth engaged in the At Risk Youth team
referral system.
Youth content, incentives, and positive links on the Langley RCMP
website.
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2010 Sustainability Planning and Development

Social/Cultural Goals - build corporate and community capacity

Maintain a high performance
work force
Objective

Design and develop internal training
programs and workshops.
Division
Human Resources

Activity
Continue to identify internal training needs.
Develop specific training programs and workshops.

Indicator
Training programs developed and implemented.
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2010 Sustainability Planning and Development

Social/Cultural Goals – build corporate and community capacity

Maintain a high performance
work force
Objective

Provide excellent fire protection to
citizens and their property.
Division
Protective Services - Fire

Activity
Recruit and train full-time firefighters.

Indicator
Fourth firehall is staffed with full-time firefighters.
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2010 Sustainability Planning and Development

Social/Cultural Goals – provide and support community based leisure opportunities

Nourish the arts as an expression of
cultural value
Objective

Develop arts and culture master
plan.
Division
Recreation, Culture, and Parks

Activity
Build Request For Proposal for consultation services.
Hire consultant to lead community process.
Develop an Arts and Culture Master Plan for the Township of Langley;
clearly define the role of the municipality in promoting arts and culture
value in the community.

Indicator
Endorsement of Arts and Culture Master Plan by Recreation, Culture,
and Parks Advisory Committee.
Adoption of Arts and Culture Master Plan by Council.
Consultant hired.
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2010 Sustainability Planning and Development

Social/Cultural Goals – provide and support community based leisure opportunities

Provide parks, open space, and
recreation facilities
Objective

Continue to address future
community recreation needs for
Aldergrove community.
Division
Recreation, Culture, and Parks

Activity
Pending funding, prepare to proceed with appropriate planning and
design work or construction of a new aquatic facility at Aldergrove
Kinsmen Community Centre in 2009 or 2010.
Leverage other sources of funding, including Provincial and Federal
infrastructure improvement programs.

Indicator
Facility mix determined (indoor pool, outdoor pool, fitness facilities,
and arena).
Detailed design work completed for new facility; funding plan in place to
allow for construction to commence.
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2010 Sustainability Planning and Development

Social/Cultural Goals – celebrate our heritage

Identify, protect, and manage our
heritage resources
Objective

Develop a coordinated approach to
protect heritage resources.
Division
Community Development

Activity
Initiate a heritage strategy.

Indicator
Terms of Reference and proposal call prepared, consultant hired,
developed strategy with Community Heritage Committee, consultant
retained, and strategy adopted.
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2010 Sustainability Planning and Development

Economic Goals – achieve fiscal stability and fiscal health

Promote continuous improvement and
operational efficiency
Objective

Respond to market demands for
housing, industrial, and employment
uses.
Division
Community Development

Activity
Process a broad range of development applications for rezoning,
subdivision, and development permit approvals.

Indicator
Anticipate levels of commercial/industrial/business park development
(approximately 80,000 square metres) in Carvolth, Gloucester, and
Willowbrook areas.
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2010 Sustainability Planning and Development

Economic Goals – achieve fiscal stability and fiscal health

Develop effective financial strategies
and plans
Objective

Undertake long-term financial
planning strategies.
Division
Finance

Activity
Continue to develop the business, accounting, and reporting processes
of Township tangible capital assets.

Indicator
Project is within target timeline to ensure a successful implementation.
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2010 Sustainability Planning and Development

Economic Goals – achieve fiscal stability and fiscal health

Develop effective financial strategies
and plans
Objective

Amend the Development Cost
Charge Bylaw.
Division
Community Development

Activity
Review construction costs, land values, and Development Cost Charge
projects to establish new charges.

Indicator
Bylaws are adopted; criteria are effectively monitored.
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2010 Sustainability Planning and Development

Economic Goals - achieve fiscal stability and fiscal health

Develop effective financial strategies
and plans
Objective

Finalize collective bargaining with
IAFF Local 4550; establish a new
Collective Agreement.
Division
Human Resources

Activity
Participation in collective bargaining sessions.

Indicator
Bargaining in progress.
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2010 Sustainability Planning and Development

Economic Goals – achieve fiscal stability and fiscal health

Promote continuous improvement and
operational efficiency
Objective

Improve and modernize JetA fuel
delivery capability.
Division
Corporate Administration

Activity
Replace 1983 JetA fuel truck at the Langley Regional Airport.

Indicator
Delivery of new vehicle put into service.
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2010 Sustainability Planning and Development

Economic Goals - achieve fiscal stability and fiscal health

Promote continuous improvement and
operational efficiency
Objective

Establish infrastructure
consolidation and optimization
strategy.
Division
Corporate Administration

Activity
Consolidate and optimize IT infrastructure through the use of
virtualization and automation technologies.

Indicator
Decreased IT footprint; greater efficiency in service delivery.
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2010 Sustainability Planning and Development

Economic Goals – invest in effective infrastructure

Ensure quality construction and best
value for our investment
Objective

Further develop and modernize
Langley Regional Airport.
Division
Corporate Administration

Activity
Continuos updating of south commercial area.

Indicator
Hydro wires installed underground on Skyway Street.
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2010 Sustainability Planning and Development

Economic Goals – invest in effective infrastructure

Manage and maintain our assets to
maximize their service life
Objective

Design and build new park facilities
to serve the needs of new residents.
Division
Community Development

Activity
Design new parks and/or facilities with public input, to serve the
needs of new residential areas.

Indicator
Projects are completed and ready for use.
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2010 Sustainability Planning and Development

Economic Goals – invest in effective infrastructure

Manage and maintain our assets to
maximize service life
Objective

Establish network connectivity
between all Township of Langley
facilities.
Division
Corporate Administration

Activity
Continue to connect remote facilities to the Township’s
wireless network.

Indicator
Additional site connected to Township network.
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2010 Sustainability Planning and Development

Economic Goals – strengthen our economy

Increase jobs and revenues from major
events and venues
Objective

Successfully stage the 2010 BC
Summer Games from July 22-25,
with expected participation of over
4,000 athletes, coaches,
and officials.
Division
Recreation, Culture, and Parks

Activity
Assist the Langley 2010 BC Summer Games Board of Directors in
hosting the event.
Successfully recruit 4,000 volunteers to assist in the event.
Partner with corporate community to provide necessary sponsorship
investment.

Indicator
Post economic impact analysis confirms the economic activity generated
by hosting of the Summer Games.
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2010 Sustainability Planning and Development

Economic Goals – invest in effective infrastructure

Manage and maintain our assets to
maximize their service life
Objective

Implement an updated apparatus
and equipment replacement model.
Division
Protective Services – Fire

Activity
Develop specifications for purchase of apparatus and equipment.

Indicator
Preparation of contract documents to ensure latest technology and code
requirements are captured in all future purchases.
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2010 Sustainability Planning and Development

Economic Goals – invest in effective infrastructure

Manage and maintain our assets to
maximize their service life
Objective

Objective

Continue to improve the fire
training facility.

Continue to increase revenues for
Bylaw Department, offsetting costs
of operations.

Division
Protective Services – Fire

Activity
Complete the design of Phase 4 of facility upgrade.

Indicator
The ongoing improvements to the training facility is providing firefighters
training in all aspects of strategy and tactics.

Division
Protective Services – Bylaws

Activity
Educate stakeholders on benefits of using newly implemented
Adjudication Ticketing System.

Indicator
An increase in annual revenue, and reduction in legal costs.
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2010 Sustainability Planning and Development

Environmental Goals – conserve and enhance our environment

Reduce air pollution
Objective

Meet greenhouse gas emission
target.
Division
Community Development

Activity
Include greenhouse gas emission targets in the Official Community Plan,
as required under Bill 27.

Indicator
Seek consultation, develop strategies, and have bylaw adopted.
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2010 Sustainability Planning and Development

Environmental Goals – increase biodiversity and natural capital

Use native plants in parks and
greenways
Objective

Encourage the inclusion of
native species in landscape plans
being prepared and approved for
greenways, parks, and development
applications.
Division
Community Development

Activity
Review all landscape plans for construction in the Township to ensure
species diversity and sustainability.
Increase natural capital by increasing tree inventory.

Indicator
Installed landscapes have native plant species appropriate to the site
conditions, and do not include mono-species installations that cover
more than 20 percent of a site.
Street tree and replacement tree inventory has increased over
previous year.
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2010 Sustainability Planning and Development

Environmental Goals – promoted stewardship

Establish and strengthen stewardship
partnerships
Objective

Indicator

Work with the Arboretum and
Botanical Society of Langley to
complete first phase of a sustainable
horticulture centre development at
the Derek Doubleday Arboretum.

Arboretum and Botanical Society of Langley initial contribution of
funds secured.
Sustainable Horticulture Centre opened.

Division
Recreation, Culture, and Parks

Activity
Based on Council endorsed development plan, work with the Arboretum
and Botanical Society of Langley to complete the first phase of
development at the Derek Doubleday Arboretum.
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2010 Sustainability Planning and Development

Environmental Goals – promote stewardship

Establish and strengthen stewardship
partnerships
Objective

Reduce energy consumption by
providing walking and cycling trails
to connect neighbourhoods.
Division
Community Development

Activity
Promote shared-use trail standards and routes that will provide
alternatives to motorized vehicle use between residences, schools, parks,
and commercial centres.

Indicator
Five new kilometres of shared-use trail have been added to municipal
trail network.
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Financial Section

Report from THE
DIRECTOR
OF FINANCE
the Director
of Finance
To Mayor W. Rick Green and Members of Council;
I am pleased to present the 2008 Financial Statements and the audit report
of our external auditors, KPMG LLP, Chartered Accountants. Pursuant
to Section 167 of the Community Charter, these statements have been
prepared and presented to provide sufficient information for readers to
understand the financial position and results of the operations of the
Township of Langley.

Debt and Agreements Payable decreased from $26.8 million in 2007 to
$24.8 million as no significant new debt was incurred in 2008. The
$24.8 million is comprised of $21.5 million repayable from Development
Cost Charges, and $3.3 million in land purchase agreements repayable from
future land sales. The Township has no debt payable from current
taxation revenue.

The 2008 Financial Statements have been prepared by management in
accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles as
recommended by the Public Sector Accounting Board of the Canadian
Institute of Chartered Accountants. Management is responsible for the
accuracy, integrity and objectivity of these statements and for ensuring that
the supporting information in Schedules 1 to 9 is consistent with information
in the Financial Statements. Management is also responsible for
implementing and maintaining a system of internal controls to safeguard the
assets of the Township and to provide reasonable assurance that financial
information is reliable. Township Council is responsible for ensuring that
management fulfils its responsibilities for financial reporting and
internal control.

Capital expenditures for 2008 were $82.1 million (2007 - $69.3 million).
Major capital expenditures for 2008 included the Langley Events Centre
($35 million funded from Township of Langley and other partners); roads
network ($14 million); parks and park amenities ($9 million); water, sewer
and stormwater projects ($13 million); and land acquisition ($5 million).

The role of our external auditors, KPMG LLP Chartered Accountants, is to
conduct an independent examination, in accordance with the generally
accepted auditing standards, and to express their opinion on the financial
statements. Their examination includes a review and evaluation of the
Township’s system of internal control and appropriate tests and procedures
to provide reasonable assurance the financial statements are presented
fairly. The external auditors have full and free access to the Township
Council and all staff.
Net Development Cost Charge receipts for 2008 amounted to $10.1 million
up slightly from $6.3 million in 2007. The general decline in DCC receipts in
recent years while construction costs increased has resulted in the
depletion of the DCC reserve balance from $21.9 million in 2007 to
$15.8 million in 2008.

Total construction costs for the Langley Events Centre amount to
$57.4 million funded from a Provincial grant of $15 million, $22.5 million
from third parties, and $19.9 million from Township resources. Construction
on this project began in 2007 and will complete in 2009 with the official
opening scheduled for June 2009.
Financial equity decreased from $90 million in 2007 to $80 million in 2008
mainly to fund capital projects. Financial equity balance is comprised of
$49 million in appropriated surplus, $18 million in unappropriated surplus
and $13 million in statutory reserves. Development Cost Charges Reserve
balance of $15.8 million is in addition to the statutory reserve
balance above.
Council, staff and volunteers worked diligently over the last year to provide
services for the residents and businesses in Township of Langley during this
financially challenging time. Fiscal responsibility and financial sustainability
is a challenging goal that remains at the forefront of our financial planning.

H. Tsikayi B.Sc., C.M.A.
Director of Finance
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Aditors’ Report to the Mayor and Council

AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL

We have audited the statement of financial position of the Corporation of the Township of Langley
(the "Township") as at December 31, 2008 and the consolidated statements of financial activities and
changes in financial position for the year then ended. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Township's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.
In our opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of the Township as at December 31, 2008 and the results of its financial activities and changes in its
financial position for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting
principles.

Chartered Accountants
Burnaby, Canada
April 17, 2009
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
Statement
of31,
Financial
Positionof dollars)
As at December
2008 (in thousands
As at December 31, 2008 (in thousands of dollars)

2008
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Cash and short-term deposits (Note 3)
Investments (Note 3)
Accounts receivable (Note 4)
Receivables Secured Letters of Credit (Note 5)
Local area service levies receivable (Note 6)

$

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Payable to other governments
Deposits and prepayments (Note 7)
Deferred revenue (Note 8)
Deferred Development Cost Charges (Note 9)
Debt and Agreements Payable (Note 10)
NET FINANCIAL ASSETS
CAPITAL ASSETS (Note 11)

FINANCIAL EQUITY
Operating Funds - Appropriated Surplus (Note 12)
Operating Funds - Unappropriated Surplus (Note 12)
Capital Funds - Appropriated Surplus (Note 13)
Capital Funds - Unappropriated Surplus (Note 13)
Statutory Reserve Funds (Note 14)
CAPITAL EQUITY (Note 15)

2007

52,325
55,665
31,110
7,196
4,386

$

150,682

171,002

30,833
1,262
15,081
8,198
15,750
24,750

28,002
1,306
17,448
12,304
21,914
26,846

95,874

107,820

54,808
740,587

63,182
658,968

$

795,395

$

722,150

$

22,691
11,157
25,962
6,803
12,945
79,558

$

10,041
24,306
26,556
4,880
24,244
90,027

715,837
$

70,740
69,134
16,833
10,095
4,200

795,395

632,123
$

722,150

Contingencies and commitments (Note 16)
See accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements

Hilary Tsikayi, B.Sc., CMA
Director of Finance
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W. Rick Green
Mayor, Township of Langley
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STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL
ACTIVITIES
Statement
of Financial
Activities

Forthe
the year
year ended December
For
December31,
31,2008
2008 (in
(in thousands
thousandsofofdollars)
dollars)
2008
Budget
(Unaudited-Note 1)
REVENUE
Property taxes and user fees
Grants in lieu of taxes
Contribution from City of Langley
Sale of service
Building permits
Interest income
Sundry
Government grants and transfers
Proceeds from sale of capital assets
Local area service contributions
Contribution from other sources
Contribution from developers

$

93,016
242
1,952
13,085
2,543
1,950
10,258
22,088
15,000
6,172
24,500
51,642

2007
Actual

2008
Actual
$

93,447
296
1,799
13,714
2,266
5,212
6,684
11,441
1,233
624
18,305
16,742

$

85,655
310
1,582
13,618
3,484
5,576
5,566
14,822
15,267
1,643
222
21,249

242,448

171,763

168,994

EXPENDITURE
General government services
Protective services
Transportation services
Community planning and development services
Water services
Sewer services
Solid waste services
Stormwater services
Recreation, culture, and parks
Debt interest
Other fiscal charges
Transmission of taxes levied for Regional Library
Capital expenditure

17,048
36,290
12,407
4,365
7,726
7,153
2,684
2,889
14,915
1,016
911
2,995
202,254

13,541
32,608
12,933
3,175
6,026
6,647
2,496
2,468
14,375
1,012
699
2,995
82,185

12,249
29,019
12,666
2,998
5,598
5,857
2,341
2,491
12,777
750
561
2,953
69,296

Internal equipment charges

312,653
(754)

181,160
(1,023)

159,556
(1,036)

311,899

180,137

158,520

Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenditure
Debt repayment
Debt incurred

(69,451)
(3,062)
11,501

(8,374)
(3,095)
1,000

10,474
(2,631)
14,627

FINANCIAL EQUITY, increase (decrease)
FINANCIAL EQUITY, beginning of year

(61,012)
90,027

(10,469)
90,027

22,470
67,557

FINANCIAL EQUITY, end of year

$

29,015

$

79,558

$

90,027

See accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements
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Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended December 31, 2008 (in thousands of dollars)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended December 31, 2008 (in thousands of dollars)
2008

2007

CASH AND SHORT-TERM DEPOSITS PROVIDED BY (USED FOR)
OPERATING TRANSACTIONS
Excess (shortfall) of revenue over expenditures

$

Cash generated from (required for)
Accounts receivable
Letters of credit receivable
Local area service levies receivable
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Payable to other governments
Deposits and prepayments
Deferred revenue
Deferred development cost charges (Note 9)

(8,374)

$

10,474

(14,277)
2,899
(186)
2,831
(44)
(2,367)
(4,106)
(6,164)

(742)
7,090
(1,328)
8,729
(382)
870
6,281
(14,218)

(29,788)

16,774

(3,095)
1,000

(2,631)
14,627

(2,095)

11,996

INVESTING ACTIVITY
Decrease (increase) in investments

13,469

(8,224)

CASH AND SHORT-TERM DEPOSITS, increase (decrease)

(18,414)

20,546

CASH AND SHORT-TERM DEPOSITS, beginning of year

70,740

50,194

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Debt repayment
Debt incurred

CASH AND SHORT-TERM DEPOSITS, end of year

$

52,325

$

70,740

See accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements
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Notes to the Financial Statements
NOTES
THE
FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
For
the yearTO
ended
December
31, 2008
(all dollar amounts in thousands of dollars)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008 (All dollar amounts in thousands of dollars)
The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of the statements and explain the significant accounting policies and
principles underlying the statements. They also provide relevant supplementary information and explanations.

1.

OPERATIONS

The Corporation of the Township of Langley’s (the Township)
principal activities include the provision of local government
services to residents and businesses. These services include
administrative, protective, transportation, recreational, library,
water, sewer, stormwater, solid waste disposal and recycling.
The general resources and operations of the Township are
segregated into operating, capital, and reserve funds. The
Community Charter of B.C. requires revenues and
expenditures to be in accordance with the five-year financial
plan adopted annually by Council. The budget for each year of
the plan must be balanced so that annual expenditures do not
exceed the total of revenue, transfers from reserves and
surplus and proceeds from debt. Budget information
presented in the financial statements reflects the 2008 budget
component of the Township of Langley’s 2008 – 2013 FiveYear Financial Plan adopted by Council Bylaw #4648. This
budget information was not audited.
2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a)

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements of the Township are prepared in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles for
local governments as recommended by the Public Sector
Accounting Board of the Canadian Institute of Chartered
Accountants. The financial statements reflect a combination of
the General, Water, Sewer, Stormwater, and Solid Waste
Operating and Capital Funds, and all Reserve Funds. Inter-fund
transactions and balances have been eliminated.
b)

Cash and Short-Term Deposits

Cash and short-term deposits consist of cash, highly liquid
money market investments and short-term deposits with
maturities of less than 90 days at acquisition.
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c)

Investments

Investments are carried at cost and are comprised of money
market investments and bonds issued by Canadian Chartered
Banks, Credit Unions or government authorities. Most investments
are held to maturity and temporary loses or gains in value are not
recognized in the financial statements. Investments are written
down if there is a permanent decline in value.
d)

Inventory

All inventories of prepaid supplies and materials are charged to
operations in the year of purchase.
e)

Capital Assets

Capital assets are recorded at cost. Capital assets transferred to
the Township at no cost are not included in Capital Assets or
Capital Equity. Repairs which do not materially add to an asset’s
service potential or life are recorded as operating expenses. Except
for public works vehicles and equipment, no replacement provision
for capital assets has been charged to Township operating
divisions.
f)

Capital Equity

Capital equity reflects the accumulated historical cost of capital
assets less the outstanding amount of any related long-term debt.
g)

Post Employment Benefits

The Township and its employees contribute to the Municipal
Pension Plan (Note 18). These contributions are expensed as
incurred. Sick leave and post-employment benefits accrue to some
Township’s employees (Note 19). The accrued liabilities related to
these benefits are estimated based on actuarial calculations of
years of service, retirement ages and expected future salary and
wage increases. The liabilities are accrued based on projected
benefits as the employees render qualifying years of service.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended December 31, 2008 (all dollar amounts in thousands of dollars)

h)

Debt and Agreements Payable

k)

Municipal Finance Authority (MFA) debt is recorded net of
related sinking fund balances. Interest on debt is recorded on
the accrual basis. Land acquisition agreement debt is valued
using a present value calculation of total future payments,
using a discount percentage that approximates the cost of
borrowing through the MFA.
i)

i)

The preparation of these financial statements requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
amounts reported, including post employment benefits,
allowance for doubtful receivables and future payments under
land acquisition agreements. Revised estimates may be
required and adjustments will be made in the period that a
change in estimate is made. Actual results could differ from
estimates and adjustments will be made in the year of final
determination.

3.

Tangible Capital Assets
The Township is in the process of accumulating
information and developing its accounting policies related
to its tangible capital assets in order to comply with the
new PSAB 3150 Tangible Capital Assets. This new
standard will be applicable to the Township’s 2009
annual financial statements. As at December 31, 2008,
the cost and accumulated depreciation have not yet been
finalized for the individual classes of tangible capital
assets and hence details concerning the major categories
of tangible capital assets have not been provided.

Use of Estimates

j) Segment Disclosure
A new requirement for municipal governments, PSAB Section
2700 Segment Disclosures, is effective for fiscal years
beginning on or after April 1, 2007. A segment is defined as a
distinguishable activity or group of activities of a government for
which it is appropriate to separately report financial information
to achieve the objectives of the standard. The Township has
adopted this PSAB section and has provided definitions of
segments used by the Township as well as presented financial
information in segmented format.

Future Accounting Changes

ii) Financial Statement Presentation
PSAB Section 1200 Financial Statement Presentation will
be applicable to municipal government for fiscal years
beginning on or after January 1, 2009. The Township is
currently in the process of gathering the information
required to be able to comply with this standard.
iii) Accounting Framework for Government Organizations
PSAB is currently evaluating the accounting framework for
government organizations. The Township’s accounting
framework may change due to conclusions reached by
PSAB which is expected to be in 2009.
l)

Comparative Figures
Certain of the 2007 figures may have been reclassified to
conform to the 2008 financial statement presentation.

CASH, SHORT-TERM DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS
Cash and short-term deposits maturing within three months are recorded at a cost of $52,325 (2007 cost of $70,740) with market
value approximating cost.
Investments maturing beyond three months are recorded at a cost of $55,665 with a market value of $55,408 (2007 cost of
$69,134 with a market value of $68,280).
Investments maturing within one year have interest rates ranging from 4.00% to 5.10%; within one to three years have interest
rates ranging from 3.29% to 4.72%; and within four to seven years have interest rates ranging from 3.73% to 5.26%.
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For the year ended December 31, 2008 (all dollar amounts in thousands of dollars)

Cash and short-term deposits
Investments

$

2008
52,325
55,665

$

2007
70,740
69,134

$

107,990

$

139,874

Cash, short-term deposits and investments are composed of restricted and unrestricted amounts. Restricted amounts shown below
earn interest and can only be expended for their intended purposes.

Capital Funds, Financial Equity
Capital Funds, Future Works Deposits
Development Cost Charges (Note 9)
Development Cost Charges-GVS &DD
Statutory Reserve Funds
Local Area Service Reserve Fund receivable

$

Restricted
Unrestricted

107,990

2007
30,249
3,504
11,819
375
24,291
(4,200)
66,038
73,836

$

139,874

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
Taxes
Federal Government
Provincial Government
Municipal Finance Authority
Other local government
Other accounts
Accrued interest and other

$

Recoverable work in progress

2008
4,860
1,923
488
464
1,296
19,771
1,840

$

468
$

5.

$

66,813
41,177
$

4.

2008
36,182
3,418
8,554
292
22,753
(4,386)

31,110

2007
3,894
1,585
3,669
446
767
3,890
1,914
668

$

16,833

RECEIVABLES SECURED LETTERS OF CREDIT
The balance represents non-interest bearing securities for Development Cost Charge (DCC) amounts due from developers within
two years. Monies collected upon negotiation of the letters of credit are restricted and can only be expended for DCC purposes
(Note 9).
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For the year ended December 31, 2008 (all dollar amounts in thousands of dollars)

6.

LOCAL AREA SERVICE LEVIES RECEIVABLE
The balance represents amounts due from property owners for specific local area service projects in their neighbourhood.
Amounts realized upon collection of these receivables are restricted for use on local improvement projects.

7.

DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
The Township holds cash deposits that were received from depositors as security to ensure the satisfactory completion of works
and other obligations. The Township also encourages the prepayment of property taxes and pays interest at rates prescribed by the
Province.

Cash deposits held as security
Prepaid property taxes

$

2008
8,086
6,995

$

2007
10,814
6,634

$

15,081

$

17,448

The Township also holds irrevocable letters of credit in the amount of $45,924 (2007 - $64,469) that were received from
depositors as security to ensure the satisfactory completion of works within the Township. These letter of credit amounts are not
reflected in the financial statements.
8.

DEFERRED REVENUE
Future works deposits
South Coast British Columbia Transportation Authority
Government Grant
Other

$

$

9.

2008
3,418
1,268
1,376
2,136
8,198

$

$

2007
3,505
1,674
5,348
1,777
12,304

DEFERRED DEVELOPMENT COST CHARGES
DCC’s are collected from developers to contribute to the capital costs associated with development. In accordance with the
Community Charter, these funds must be deposited into a separate DCC Reserve Fund. DCC amounts collected are deferred and
are recognized as revenue in the year that related capital costs are incurred.
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For the year ended December 31, 2008 (all dollar amounts in thousands of dollars)

Roads DCC’s
Drainage DCC’s
Park Land/Development/Interest DCC’s
Water DCC’s
Sewer DCC’s

$

2008
7,152
2,222
1,284
2,261
2,831

2007
8,714
3,575
4,677
2,187
2,761

$

$

15,750

$

21,914

Deferred DCC’s, beginning of year
Contribution to Operating Funds
Contribution to Capital Funds
Transfer from General Fund
DCC’s collected (net)
Interest income

$

21,914
(3,834)
(12,908)
10,060
518

$

36,132
(1,630)
(20,844)
1,225
6,265
766

Deferred DCC’s, end of year

$

15,750

$

21,914

Investments (Note 3)
DCC’s receivable

$

8,554
7,196

$

11,819
10,095

$

15,750

$

21,914

10. DEBT AND AGREEMENTS PAYABLE
The Township issues long-term debt through the MFA. Sinking Fund Reserves managed by the MFA are used to retire the debt. The
Township pays the annual Sinking Fund principal and interest requirements as estimated by the MFA. For reporting purposes, the
Township nets Sinking Fund Reserve balances against the related gross debt outstanding.

MFA Debt
Stormwater, Bylaw 3420, due 2017
Water, Bylaw 2934, due 2011
Water, Bylaw 3950, due 2020
General, Bylaw 4455, due 2027
General, Bylaw 4456, due 2027

$

Land Acquisition Agreements
Due 2008
Due 2009
Due 2026
Due 2010
Due 2011
Due 2012

$

300
2,237
1,800
3,041
1,000
$

204

Gross Debt
Outstanding
1,675
3,624
1,200
3,250
11,000

29,127

Sinking Fund
Reserves
720
2,832
347
109
369

$

$

4,377

Net Debt
2008
955 $
792
853
3,141
10,631
300
2,237
1,800
3,041
1,000

$

24,750

2007
1,038
1,031
904
3,250
11,000
685
600
2,396
2,900
3,041
-

$

26,845
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For the year ended December 31, 2008 (all dollar amounts in thousands of dollars)

Estimated long-term debt and land acquisition agreement requirements for the next five years are:

2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
Thereafter

$

Principal
2,476
1,773
4,111
956
703
14,731

$

$

Interest
1,022
1,030
1,039
875
883

$

Total
3,498
2,803
5,150
1,831
1,586

24,750

11. CAPITAL ASSETS
Land
Building
Engineering structures
Machinery and equipment

$

$

2008
103,399
146,330
433,091
57,767
740,587

$

$

2007
99,017
106,570
400,534
52,847
658,968

12. FINANCIAL EQUITY, OPERATING FUNDS
Appropriated amounts represent monies set aside to complete projects and programs approved in prior years. Unappropriated
amounts can be used for future operating and capital expenses, and interest revenue earned on these monies is used to help fund
annual operating costs.
2008
Appropriated surplus for operations
General Operating Fund
Landfill - closure and restoration
Landfill - loans to General Capital Fund
Gravel land restoration
Civic facility
Public works equipment replacement
Other projects and programs

$

6,292
(3,175)
385
641
2,637
15,336
22,116
22,116
300
188
54
33

$

6,085
(3,319)
452
507
2,051
4,210
9,986
(395)
(49)
9,542
390
60
4
45

$

22,691

$

10,041

Landfill - loan to Water Fund
Gravel - loan to Water Fund
Total General Operating Fund
Water Operating Fund
Sewer Operating Fund
Solid Waste Fund
Stormwater Operating Fund
Total appropriated surplus
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For the year ended December 31, 2008 (all dollar amounts in thousands of dollars)

2008
Unappropriated Surplus
General Operating Fund
Water Operating Fund
Sewer Operating Fund
Stormwater Operating Fund
Solid Waste Operating Fund
Total unappropriated surplus

2007

$

2,954
4,908
1,145
966
1,184

$

16,950
3,798
1,635
775
1,148

$

11,157

$

24,306

13. FINANCIAL EQUITY, CAPITAL FUNDS
Appropriated amounts represent monies set aside to complete capital projects. Unappropriated amounts are available for future
capital projects and consist of amounts transferred from Operating Funds and other accumulated amounts including interest
income, unexpended borrowing proceeds, and revenue from the sale of capital assets.
2008
Appropriated for capital projects
General Capital
Internal Loan to Airport for Deficit
General Capital-Museum
Water Capital
Sewer Capital
Stormwater Capital

Unappropriated
General Capital
Water Capital
Sewer Capital
Stormwater Capital

2007

$

13,296
(42)
257
6,741
5,746
(36)

$

13,759
(89)
242
6,364
6,145
135

$

25,962

$

26,556

$

4,120
1,086
1,212
385

$

2,786
779
946
369

$

6,803

$

4,880

14. STATUTORY RESERVE FUNDS EQUITY
The capital reserve funds are used for the replacement or improvement of capital assets.
The Local Area Service Reserve Fund is used to fund the upfront costs of capital improvement projects initiated by property owners,
and is repayable with interest by the property owners.
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For the year ended December 31, 2008 (all dollar amounts in thousands of dollars)

General Capital
Stormwater Capital
Sewer Capital
Water Capital
Fire Equipment Capital
Land Reserve – surplus (deficit)
Off Street Parking
Tax Sale Land
Local Area Service
Debt Retirement

$

2008
2,171
542
7,126
1,250
691
(7,097)
2
205
7,859
196

$

2007
2,186
523
7,308
1,298
600
4,579
198
7,363
189

$

12,945

$

24,244

Reserve funds equity, beginning of year
Contributions
Interest
Used for capital and operating expenses

$

24,244
2,035
975
(14,309)

$

18,065
16,900
1,170
(11,891)

Reserve funds equity, end of year

$

12,945

$

24,244

15. CAPITAL EQUITY
Capital equity represents the recorded cost of capital assets less the outstanding amount of any related long-term debt.

Capital equity, beginning of year
Cost of assets acquired
Cost of capital disposals
Long-term debt and agreements issued
Long-term and agreements retired
Adjustment for assets funded by Debt

$

Capital equity, end of year

$
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2008
632,123
82,185
(566)
(1,000)
3,095
715,837

$

$

2007
578,552
69,296
(3,729)
(13,402)
2,631
(1,225)
632,123
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For the year ended December 31, 2008 (all dollar amounts in thousands of dollars)

16. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
a)

The loan agreements with the Greater Vancouver
Regional District provide that if at any time the
scheduled payments provided for in the agreements are
not sufficient to meet the MFA’s obligations in respect of
such borrowing, the resulting deficiency becomes the
joint and several liability of the Township and all other
participants of the MFA.

b)

Various lawsuits and claims are pending against the
Township. Applicable insured claims have been referred
to the Township’s insurers. Management believes that
the resolution of the insured and non-insured claims will
not materially affect the financial position of the
Township.

c)

d)

The Township has significant future contractual
commitments for capital acquisitions and completion of
capital construction projects that are in progress. The
Township records the capital costs incurred to the end of
the year as expenditures. In order to provide for the
completion of the capital projects in progress,
unexpended money is set aside as a capital
appropriation (Note 13).

financial plan, updated and adopted annually by bylaw
following public consultation, provides approximately $34
million annually for these obligations. The services provided
include policing, fire dispatch, emergency communications,
library, animal protection and control, sewage disposal, solid
waste and recycling, arena operations, planted area
maintenance, tourism, economic development, airport
management, photocopying, environmental, emergency
preparedness and educational and Langley Events Centre
operations management. Facility rentals are mainly for
library and community policing purposes.
e)

The Township, as a member of the Greater Vancouver Water
District, the Greater Vancouver Sewerage and Drainage
District and the Greater Vancouver Regional District, is
directly, jointly and severally liable with the other member
municipalities for the net capital liabilities of those
authorities.

f)

The Township is a shareholder of the Emergency
Communications for Southwest British Columbia
Incorporated (E-Comm) and holds restricted Class B voting
shares. The Township receives services for the regional 9-1-1
call centre for Greater Vancouver Regional District. The
Township has three Class B shares (a total of 23 Class A
shares and 25 Class B shares issued and outstanding as at
December 31, 2008). Class B shares secures the
Township’s future access to the Wide Area Radio network
from E-Comm. Class B shareholders are not required to
cover E-Comm’s financial obligations.

The Township has entered into various agreements and
contracts with other governments and businesses that
extend beyond one year for the provision of operating
services and supplies, and for facility rentals. The
agreements and contracts may provide for annual
increases, or for additional payments that may arise due
to usage levels or other factors. The Township’s five-year

17. COLLECTIONS FOR OTHER GOVERNMENTS
The Township has collected and remitted the following amounts on behalf of other government organizations. These amounts are
not included in the financial statements.
School District #35
Municipal Finance Authority
B.C. Assessment Authority
Greater Vancouver Regional District
Greater Vancouver Transit Authority

$

$

208

2008
55,612
4
1,666
1,623
11,382
70,287

$

$

2007
52,500
4
1,560
1,506
11,989
67,559
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For the year ended December 31, 2008 (all dollar amounts in thousands of dollars)

18. MUNICIPAL PENSION PLAN
The Township and its employees contribute to the Municipal Pension Plan (the plan), a jointly trusteed pension plan. The Board of
Trustees, representing plan members and employers, is responsible for overseeing the management of the pension plan, including
investment of the assets and administration of benefits. The pension plan is a multi-employer contributory pension plan. Basic
pension benefits provided are defined. The plan has about 144,000 active members and approximately 54,000 retired members.
Active members include approximately 32,000 contributors from local governments.
Every three years an actuarial valuation is performed to assess the financial position of the plan and the adequacy of plan funding.
The most recent valuation as at December 31, 2006 indicated a surplus of $438 million for basic pension benefits. The next
valuation will be as at December 31, 2009 with results available in 2010. The actuary does not attribute portions of the unfunded
liability to individual employers.
The Township contributed $2,395 (2007 - $2,122) to the pension plan, while employees contributed $2,089 (2007 - $1,845).
19. POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS LIABILITY
The Township provides a benefit to its employees upon retirement. Those eligible employees who retire from service with the
Township at the age of 65 shall be paid all their sick leave credit to a maximum of 75 days multiplied by the daily rate of pay at
retirement. Employees who retire before the age of 65 shall have their benefit factored by the percentage of full pension awarded
by the Municipal Superannuation Commission.
In 2008 the Township contributed $499 (2007 - $320) to the liability account, and the Township paid out $212 (2007 - $141) to
employees from the liability account.
Accrued benefit obligation, beginning of year
Current service cost
Interest cost
Plan Amendment
Long Term Disability Expense
Benefits paid
Actuarial loss (gain)
Accrued benefit obligation, end of year
Unamortized gain (loss)

$

Accrued liability, end of year

$

2008
2,475
141
115
55
145
(183)
(188)
2,560
99
2,659

$

2007
2,349
136
109

(84)
(35)
2,475
(105)
$

2,370

The actuarial loss will be amortized over a period of ten years which is equal to the employee’s average remaining service lifetime.
The liability is recorded as part of accounts payable and accrued liabilities on the statement of financial position. The Township’s
accrued liability is supported by a report from an independent actuarial consulting firm. Their report is based on standard
assumptions concerning salary scales, mortality rates, retirement age, and withdrawal rates, and the following rates:
Discount rate
Expected future inflation rate
Expected wage and salary inflation
Expected wage and salary range increases
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2008
5.25%
3.5%
3.5%
3.50-5.00%

2007
4.50%
3.50%
3.50%
3.50% - 5.00%
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended December 31, 2008 (all dollar amounts in thousands of dollars)

20. EXPENDITURE BY OBJECT
Salaries and wages
Materials, supplies and other
Capital expenditures
RCMP Policing contract
GVS & DD levy
Fraser Valley Library levy
Legal costs
Debt interest

$

Debt principal repayment
$

2008
43,136
31,947
82,185
14,995
3,246
2,995
708
925
180,137
3,095
183,232

$

$

2007
39,277
28,702
69,296
13,915
2,958
2,953
669
750
158,520
2,631
161,151

21. SIGNIFICANT TAXPAYERS
The Township has a diverse residential, commercial, industrial and agricultural property tax base and is not significantly reliant
upon the property tax revenue from any large taxpayers.
22. TRUST FUNDS
The Cemetery Care Trust Fund must be administered in accordance with the Cemetery and Funeral Services Act. In accordance
with Public Sector Accounting Board recommendations, trust funds are not included in the Township’s Financial Statements.
2008
Assets
Cash and investments
Accrued interest receivable
Equity
Balance, beginning of year
Contributions
Interest revenue
Balance, end of year

2007

$

1,063
7

$

977
8

$

1,070

$

985

$

985
45
40

$

927
50
8

$

1,070

$

985

23. SEGMENTED INFORMATION
The Township of Langley is a diversified municipal
government that provides a wide range of services to its
citizens, including Protection Services; Recreation, Culture
and Parks Services; General Government Services; Public
Works Services; Solid Waste Management Services;
Planning and Development Services; Water, Sewer and
Drainage Services. For management reporting purposes
the Government’s operations and activities are organized
and reported by service areas. Service areas were created
210

for the purpose of recording specific activities to attain certain
objectives in accordance with regulations, restrictions or
limitations.
Township services are provided by departments and their
activities are reported in these Service Areas. The
Departments disclosed in the Segmented Information, along
with the services they provide, are as follows:
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended December 31, 2008 (all dollar amounts in thousands of dollars)

General Government

Community Development

General Government Services includes Corporate
Administration, Legislative Services, Human Resources,
and Finance. Corporate Administration is responsible for
carrying out the direction, policies and priorities set by
Council and for providing recommendations to Council
consistent with the needs of the community. Legislative
Services department provides a secretariat for Council and
its Committees. Human Resources provide assistance,
advice and guidance to both managers and employees in
fulfilling roles and achieving and accomplishing their
goals. The Finance Division manages the Township’s
financial resources and provides expert financial
information, advice and services while complying with the
Community Charter and other legislated services.

The Community Development Division provides Council,
internal divisions and the general public with professional
advice on community planning and development issues.

Protective Services
Protective Services includes the RCMP and Fire
Departments. The RCMP protects and serves the citizens
of Langley through the prevention and reduction of crime,
in partnership with the community. The Fire Department
operates through 7 fire halls located throughout the
Township. Services are delivered through four main
branches of the Fire Service. Professional expertise is
provided in the area of fire prevention, emergency
operations, fire safety, emergency planning and bylaw
enforcement.
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Recreation, Culture, and Parks
Recreation, Culture, and Parks is responsible for the
management and provision of leisure services within the
Township.
Engineering
The Engineering Division delivers municipal transportation,
water, sewer, solid waste and stormwater services.
Transportation manages traffic and transportation systems to
ensure safe, efficient mobility for pedestrians, cyclists and
vehicles. Recycling is also included in this service area. The
Water, Sewer and Drainage Utilities operate and distribute
water and network sewer mains, storm sewers and pump
stations. Solid Waste includes waste management, collection
and disposal.
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ForFINANCIAL
the year ended
December -31,
2008 (in thousands of dollars)
ACTIVITIES
SEGMENTED
For the year ended December 31, 2008 (in thousands of dollars)

General
Government
REVENUES
Property Taxes, Levies and User Charges
Grants in Lieu of Taxes
Contribution from City of Langley
Sale of Service
Building Permits
Interest Income
Sundry
Government Grants and Transfers
Proceeds From Sale of Capital Assets
Local Area Service Contributions
Contribution from Other Sources
Contributions from Developers

$

EXPENDITURE
Salaries, Wages and Benefits
RCMP Contract
Service and Maintenance Contracts
Regional District Charges
Materials, Supplies and Equipment
Utilities
Debt Interest and Other Fiscal Charges
Aviation and Vehicle Fuel
Insurance
Consulting and Professional Services
Information Systems Maintenance
Equipment and Vehicle Rental
Telecommunications
Office Furniture and Equipment
Advertising and Publications
Library Space Lease
Municipal Grants
Cost Recoveries
Sundry
Capital Expenditures

Protective
Services

Community
Development

Recreation,
Culture, & Parks

Transportation

69,147 $
296
3
161
3,519
3,667
137
86
-

- $
1,662
1,512
1,529
-

- $
1,396
2,266
1,269
593
-

2,990 $
134
4,443
593
4,195
18,305
6,917

77,016

4,703

5,524

37,577

11,679

7,468
1,209
522
82
839
772
260
789
240
396
239
284
(347)
1,627
8,085

14,321
15,218
1,392
641
224
466
124
85
1
214
71
12
6
(566)
399
1,050

2,548
219
80
148
24
5
1
150
-

8,160
1,902
2,995
2,063
1,028
761
98
196
8
56
11
144
383
18
(80)
388
44,506

5,078
3,911
2,292
686
1,032
25
118
98
28
7
(635)
293
15,428

22,465

33,658

3,175

62,637

28,361

Internal equipment charges

1,835
507
3,440
5,897

(1,023)
22,465

33,658

3,175

62,637

27,338

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures

54,551

(28,955)

2,349

(25,060)

(15,659)

Debt repayment - Interfund
Debt repayment
Debt incurred
Transfer from (to) operating funds
Transfer from (to) reserve funds
Transfer from (to) capital funds

(132)
(300)
(10,281)
1,297
11,004

280
(35)
(280)

507
(507)

(2,552)
1,150
452
11,598
(452)

(366)
92
366

Increase (decrease) in financial equity
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$

56,139 $

(28,990) $

2,349 $

(14,864) $

(15,567)
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For the year ended December 31, 2008 (in thousands of dollars)
Stormwater

$

$

4,796 $
177
50
29
92
2,668

Water

7,833 $
3,205
450
394
56
601
820

Sewer

Solid
Waste

5,944 $
2,491
304
62
1,399
23
440

Reserve Funds
and Other

FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES - SEGMENTED
CONSOLIDATED
2008

Adjustments

2,737 $
6
44
-

- $
974
1,147
-

- $
(129)
(1,349)
-

93,447 $
296
1,799
13,714
2,266
5,212
6,684
11,441
1,233
624
18,305
16,742

2007

85,655
310
1,582
13,618
3,484
5,576
5,566
14,822
15,267
1,643
222
21,249

7,812

13,359

10,663

2,787

2,121

(1,478)

171,763

168,994

1,430
364
1
548
32
76
55
8
9
4
(27)
264
4,974

2,070
322
2,081
1,074
377
361
11
18
17
4
(2)
694
3,809

949
1,702
3,246
318
241
12
24
122
10
638
4,333

165
2,286
9
1
10
230
-

-

(326)
(1,680)
-

42,189
15,218
13,307
8,323
7,547
2,670
1,711
1,498
1,042
904
790
474
437
419
415
383
302
(1,657)
3,003
82,185

38,499
14,175
11,665
7,909
7,314
2,379
1,311
1,121
1,123
1,011
624
520
488
404
354
372
318
(1,527)
2,200
69,296

7,738

10,836

11,595

2,701

-

(2,006)

181,160

159,556

-

(1,023)

(1,036)

7,738

10,836

11,595

2,701

-

(2,006)

180,137

158,520

74

2,523

(932)

86

2,121

528

(8,374)

10,474

(50)
(2,059)
2,058

(755)
(146)
(1,194)
83
1,194

(542)
437
541

-

(13,380)
-

887
(47)
(150)
(92)
(721)

(3,095)
1,000
(13,203)
13,203

(2,631)
14,627
-

1,705 $

(496) $

405 $

(10,469) $

22,470

23 $
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86 $ (11,259) $
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Auditor’s Report on Supplementary Information to the Mayor and Council

AUDITORS' REPORT ON SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
TO THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL

We have audited and reported separately herein on the financial statements of the Corporation of
the Township of Langley as at and for the year ended December 31, 2008.
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements taken as a whole. The current year's supplementary information included in
Schedules 1 through 9 is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part
of the financial statements. Such supplementary information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all
material respects in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

Chartered Accountants
Burnaby, Canada
April 17, 2009
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SCHEDULE 1 1
Schedule

Statement
of Financial
Position
- By Fund- BY FUND
STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL
POSITION
As at December 31, 2008 (in thousands of dollars)
As at December 31, 2008 (in thousands of dollars)

General
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Cash and investments
Due from (to) other funds
Accounts receivable
Letters of credit receivable
Local area service levies receivable

$

Stormwater

11,689
284
-

8,290 $
-

1,317
31
-

86,823

11,973

8,290

1,348

30,833
1,262
7,053
8,198

-

-

22,150

1,645

-

955

69,496

1,645

-

955

17,327
560,635

10,328
80,377

8,290
50,415

393
49,156

$

577,962 $

90,705 $

58,705 $

49,549

$

25,071
17,631
42,702

NET FINANCIAL ASSETS
CAPITAL ASSETS

CAPITAL EQUITY
$

216

Sewer

56,028 $
30,795
-

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Payable to other governments
Deposits and prepayments
Deferred revenue
Deferred Development Cost Charges
Long-term debt and agreements payable

FINANCIAL EQUITY
Operating Funds
Capital Funds
Statutory Reserve Funds

Water

$

5,208
7,827
13,035

$

1,332
6,958
8,290

$

999
349
1,348

535,260

77,670

50,415

48,201

577,962 $

90,705 $

58,705 $

49,549
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SCHEDULE 1 CONT'D

Statement of Financial Position - By Fund
As at December 31, 2008 (in thousands of dollars)

Statutory
Reserves

Solid Waste
$

Combined
Adjustments

2007

2008

1,238 $
-

12,846 $
4,386

16,582 $
7,196
-

107,990 $
31,110
7,196
4,386

139,874
16,833
10,095
4,200

1,238

17,232

23,778

150,682

171,002

-

-

8,028
15,750

30,833
1,262
15,081
8,198
15,750
24,750

28,002
1,306
17,448
12,304
21,914
26,846

-

-

23,778

95,874

107,820

1,238
4

17,232
-

-

54,808
740,587

63,182
658,968

$

1,242 $

17,232 $

- $

795,395 $

722,150

$

1,238
1,238

$

4
$

1,242 $

17,232
17,232

$

17,232 $
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- $
(4,287)
(4,287)
4,287
- $

33,848
32,765
12,945
79,558

$

34,347
31,436
24,244
90,027

715,837

632,123

795,395 $

722,150
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SCHEDULE 2 2
Statement of Financial Activities - By Fund
STATEMENT
FINANCIAL
FUND
For
the year endedOF
December
31, 2008ACTIVITIES
(in thousands -ofBY
dollars)
For the year ended December 31, 2008 (in thousands of dollars)

General
REVENUE
Property taxes and user fees
Grants in lieu of taxes
Contribution from City of Langley
Sale of service
Building permits
Interest income
Sundry
Government grants and transfers
Proceeds from sale of capital assets
Local area service contributions
Contribution from other sources
Contribution from developers

$

EXPENDITURE
General government services
Protective services
Transportation services
Community planning and development services
Water services
Sewer services
Solid waste services
Stormwater services
Recreation, culture, and parks
Debenture interest
Other fiscal charges
Transmission of taxes levied for Regional Library
Capital expenditure
Internal equipment charges

Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenditure
Retirement of interfund debt
Debt repayment
Debt incurred
Transfers to (from) other funds
FINANCIAL EQUITY, increase (decrease)
FINANCIAL EQUITY, beginning of year
FINANCIAL EQUITY, end of year

218

$

72,136 $
296
1,799
7,835
2,266
3,519
7,548
9,894
86
18,305
12,815-

Water

Sewer

7,833 $
3,205
450
394
56
601
820

5,944
2,491
304
62
1,399
23
440

Stormwater
$

4,797
177
50
29
92
2,667

136,499

13,359

10,663

7,812

13,541
32,608
12,933
3,175
14,375
687
913
2,995
69,069

6,666
249
112
3,809

7,262
4,333

2,688
76
4,974

150,296
(1,023)

10,836
-

11,595
-

7,738
-

149,273

10,836

11,595

7,738

(12,774)
(132)
(2,852)
1,150
13,675

2,523
(755)
(146)
83

(932)
436

74
(50)
(1)

(933)

1,705

(496)

23

43,635

11,330

8,786

1,325

42,702 $

13,035 $

8,290

$

1,348
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SCHEDULE 2 CONT'D

Statement of Financial Activities - By Fund

For the year ended December 31, 2008 (in thousands of dollars)

Solid Waste
$

$

Combined
Adjustments

Reserves

2008

2007

2,737 $
6
44
-

- $
974
1,147
-

- $
(129)
(1,349)
-

2,787

2,121

(1,478)

171,763

168,994

2,701
-

-

(640)
(615)
(205)
(220)
(326)
-

13,541
32,608
12,933
3,175
6,026
6,647
2,496
2,468
14,375
1,012
699
2,995
82,185

12,249
29,019
12,666
2,998
5,598
5,857
2,341
2,491
12,777
750
561
2,953
69,296

2,701
-

-

(2,006)
-

181,160
(1,023)

159,556
(1,036)

2,701

-

(2,006)

180,137

158,520

86
-

2,121
(13,380)

528
887
(47)
(150)
(813)

(8,374)
(3,095)
1,000
-

10,474
(2,631)
14,627
-

86

(11,259)

405

(10,469)

22,470

1,152

28,491

(4,692)

90,027

67,557

1,238 $

17,232 $

(4,287) $

79,558 $

90,027
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93,447 $
296
1,799
13,714
2,266
5,212
6,684
11,441
1,233
624
18,305
16,742

85,655
310
1,582
13,618
3,484
5,576
5,566
14,822
15,267
1,643
222
21,249
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SCHEDULE 3

Statement ofOF
Statutory
Reserve
Funds Activities
STATEMENT
STATUTORY
RESERVE
FUNDS ACTIVITIES

For the year ended December 31, 2008 (in thousands of dollars)
For the year ended December 31, 2008 (in thousands of dollars)
General
Capital
Works
SOURCES OF FINANCING
Operating Fund contributions
Proceeds on sale of capital assets
General Interfund debt interest
Water Interfund debt interest
Interest revenue

$

TRANSFER TO CAPITAL FUNDS
Transfer to General Operating
Transfer to General Capital
Transfer to Sewer Capital
Transfer to Water Capital

Change in Reserve Funds Balance
RESERVE FUNDS, beginning of year
RESERVE FUNDS, end of year

$

Stormwater
Capital
Works

Sewer
Capital
Works

Water
Capital
Works

Fire
Equipment

Local
Area Service

- $
77

- $
19

- $
255

- $
35

470
34
23

$

77

19

255

35

527

552

(92)
-

-

(437)
-

(83)

(436)
-

(16)
-

(92)

-

(437)

(83)

(436)

(16)

(15)

19

(182)

(48)

91

536

2,186

523

7,308

1,298

600

11,610

2,171 $

542 $

7,126 $

1,250 $

691

$

115
89
348

12,146

Development Cost Charge (DCC) Reserve Fund - (See Note 9)
Development Cost Charges are collected from developers and are deposited into the DCC Reserve Fund.
For financial reporting purposes, the DCC Reserve Fund balances must be reported as Deferred
DCC Revenue. In the year that related capital costs are incurred, equivalent DCC amounts
are taken into revenue and the Deferred DCC Revenue balance is reduced accordingly.

Deferred DCC's - Roads
Deferred DCC's - Drainage
Deferred DCC's - Park Land
Deferred DCC's - Water
Deferred DCC's - Sewer

$

$

220

2008
7,152 $
2,222
1,284
2,261
2,831
15,750 $

2007
8,714
3,575
4,677
2,187
2,761
21,914
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SCHEDULE 3 CONT'D

Statement of Statutory Reserve Funds Activities

For the year ended December 31, 2008 (in thousands of dollars)

Land
$

$

Tax Sale
Land

Off-street
Parking

Combined
Adjustments

Debt

2008

2007

84 $
1,112
-

- $
7

24
-

- $
7

311 $
-

889 $
1,146
115
89
771

1,639
15,261
129
108
933

1,196

7

24

7

311

3,010

18,070

(627)
(12,245)
-

-

(22)
-

-

(351)
-

(627)
(13,162)
(437)
(83)

(1,600)
(10,094)
(25)
(172)

(12,872)

-

(22)

-

(351)

(14,309)

(11,891)

(11,676)

7

2

7

(40)

(11,299)

6,179

4,579

198

-

189

(4,247)

24,244

18,065

(7,097) $

205 $

2

196 $

(4,287) $

12,945 $

24,244

Local Area Service Reserve Fund
12,146
Total equity
(4,386)
Levies receivable
(1,062)
Loan to Water Fund
(3,225)
Loan to General Fund
$
3,473
Cash on hand for financing taxpayer local area service initiatives
$
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SCHEDULE 4
Statement
of Capital Equity - By Fund
For the year ended December 31, 2008 (in thousands of dollars)
STATEMENT OF CAPITAL EQUITY - BY FUND
For the year ended December 31, 2008 (in thousands of dollars)

General
Capital
Equity in Capital Assets, beginning of year

$

Contribution to capital expenditures from:
Operating and Capital Funds
Provincial Government grants
Federal Government grants
City of Langley
Greater Vancouver Transit Authority
Development Cost Charge Reserve
Cemetery Care Fund
Statutory Reserves Funds
Local Area Service Fund
Contribution from others

20,259
5,872
10
215
9,502
4
12,795

Contributions acquired for capital expenditures
Cost of capital assets disposed
Net contribution to capital expenditures
Debt
Repayment of interfund debt
Repayment of debt
Transfer to Development Cost Charge Reserve
Sinking fund contributions

Equity in Capital Assets, end of year

222

465,386 $

$

Water
Capital

Sewer
Capital

72,815 $

46,082

18,929

2,266
56
425
83
602
378

1,972
1,399
440
437
23
62

67,586

3,810

4,333

(566)

-

-

67,020

3,810

4,333

132
2,708
14

755
146
144

-

2,854

1,045

-

535,260 $

77,670 $

50,415
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SCHEDULE 4 CONT'D

Statement of Capital Equity - By Fund

For the year ended December 31, 2008 (in thousands of dollars)

Stormwater
Capital
$

$

Solid Waste
Capital

43,144 $

Combined
Adjustments
4 $

2007

2008

4,692 $

632,123 $

578,552

2,433
2,541
-

-

482
-

27,412
7,327
10
215
12,908
4
13,315
625
19,369

20,219
10,687
187
20,844
1,406
1,643
908

4,974

-

482

81,185

55,894

-

-

-

(566)

(3,729)

4,974

-

482

80,619

52,165

51
32

-

(887)
-

2,905
190

2,087
(1,225)
544

83

-

(887)

3,095

1,406

48,201 $

4 $
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4,287 $

715,837 $

632,123
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SCHEDULE 5 5
Capital Assets
CAPITAL
ASSETS
As
at December
31, 2008 (in thousands of dollars)
As at December 31, 2008 (in thousands of dollars)

Land
GENERAL GOVERNMENT
Municipal hall

$

PROTECTIVE SERVICES
RCMP
Fire
TRANSPORTATION SERVICES
Public Works
Workshops, buildings and equipment
Sidewalks and other
Streets and roads
Traffic lights
Airport
ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH SERVICES
Sanitary landfill and incinerator
PUBLIC HEALTH AND WELFARE
Cemeteries
RECREATION, CULTURE, AND PARKS
Swimming pools
Community centres
Events Centre
Museum
Library
Parks
Other

MISCELLANEOUS
UTILITIES
Sewer
Solid Waste
Stormwater
Water
CAPITAL ASSETS

224

$

Building
6,539

$

19,420

3
1,305

7,311
12,910

1,308

20,221

1,887
-

8,259
-

1,887

8,259

-

-

48

59

241
179
82,209
-

12,318
21,347
44,998
572
187
2,840
-

82,629

82,262

10,435

10,966

357
12
184

3,656
1,487

553

5,143

103,399

$

146,330
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SCHEDULE 5 CONT'D

Capital Assets

As at December 31, 2008 (in thousands of dollars)
Machinery
and
Equipment

Engineering
Structures
$

$

-

$

Total
2007

Total
2008

19,405

$

45,364

$

47,313

-

1,939
13,125

9,253
27,340

8,841
26,703

-

15,064

36,593

35,544

996
9,971
191,028
8,231
5,639

10,526
58
-

21,668
10,029
191,028
8,231
5,639

21,604
7,923
180,616
6,159
5,554

215,865

10,584

236,595

221,856

2,251

-

2,251

2,251

402

64

573

480

-

549
1,112

49,158
35

518
638
957
-

12,867
22,700
44,998
1,269
825
135,164
35

12,859
22,312
9,563
1,228
801
126,607
35

49,193

3,774

217,858

173,405

-

-

21,401

11,284

44,767
48,324
72,289

1,635
4
820
6,417

50,415
4
49,156
80,377

46,082
4
44,182
76,567

165,380

8,876

179,952

166,835

433,091

$

57,767
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740,587

$

658,968
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SCHEDULE 6

Capital Expenditure
For
the year ended
December 31, 2008 (in thousands of dollars)
CAPITAL
EXPENDITURE
For the year ended December 31, 2008 (in thousands of dollars)

Land
GENERAL GOVERNMENT
Municipal hall

$

PROTECTIVE SERVICES
Fire
RCMP

TRANSPORTATION SERVICES
Public Works
Workshops, buildings and equipment
Sidewalks and other
Streets and roads
Airport

PUBLIC HEALTH AND WELFARE
Cemeteries
RECREATION, CULTURE, AND PARKS
Swimming pools
Community centres
Events Centre
Museum
Library
Parks
Other

MISCELLANEOUS
Other
UTILITIES
Sewer
Stormwater
Water
TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURE
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$

Building
-

$

82

-

125
357

-

482

-

102
-

-

102

-

-

1,314
-

7
373
35,435
27
1,275
-

1,314

37,117

3,536

1,966

10
-

11
-

10

11

4,860

$

39,760
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SCHEDULE 6 CONT'D

Capital Expenditure

For the year ended December 31, 2008 (in thousands of dollars)

Machinery
and
Equipment

Engineering
Structures
$

$

-

$

Total
2007

Total
2008

2,501

$

2,583

$

3,269

-

513
55

638
412

1,012
260

-

568

1,050

1,272

131
3,870
10,411
85

829
-

1,062
3,870
10,411
85

1,661
1,177
10,996
2,283

14,497

829

15,428

16,117

53

-

53

-

5,660
-

18
12
24
308
-

7
391
35,435
39
24
8,557
-

8
451
69
12
24,641
-

5,660

362

44,453

25,181

-

-

5,502

11,527

3,808
4,962
3,098

514
2
711

4,333
4,974
3,809

1,584
4,882
5,464

11,868

1,227

13,116

11,930

32,078

$
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5,487

$

82,185

$

69,296
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Debt

SCHEDULE
7 31, 2008 (in thousands of dollars)
As
at December

DEBT

As at December 31, 2008 (in thousands of dollars)
MFA DEBT
Bylaw

Date of Issue

Issued by

Purpose

Rate

Maturity

DEBENTURE DEBT
STORMWATER
3420
April 24, 1997

MFA

Drainage

4.55%

April 24, 2017

WATER
2934
3950

May 8, 1991
November 7, 2000

MFA
MFA

G.V.R.D. Water Supply
Langley Water Utility

4.75%
6.36%

May 8, 2011
November 7, 2020

GENERAL
4455
4556

November 2, 2007
November 2, 2007

MFA
MFA

Land Acquisition
Land Acquisition

5.00%
4.82%

December 1, 2027
December 1, 2027

Land Acquisition
Land Acquisition
Land Acquisition
Land Acquisition
Land Acquisition
Land Acquisition

0.00%
see note
0.00%
6.00%
0.00%
0.00%

March 30, 2009
January 3, 2026
January 15, 2008
see comment
April 1, 2010
February 28, 2012

PROPERTY ACQUISITION AGREEMENTS
GENERAL CAPITAL FUND
April 21, 2005
* January 3, 2006
February 24, 2006
** November 21, 2006
December 3, 2007
February 28, 2008

The Township issues long-term debenture debt instruments through the Municipal Finance
Authority (Note 10) pursuant to security issuing bylaws.
*Under this agreement, the vendors retained the right to operate the Redwoods Golf Course for 20 years
and 17 years remain. Interest rates on related debt are approximately 4 to 6%.
**Under this agreement, the Township has the option of deciding when to pay off the balance
of the price loaned by the vendor.
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SCHEDULE 7 CONT'D

As at December 31, 2008 (in thousands of dollars)

Gross
Debt
Outstanding

$

$

1,675 $

Estimated
Sinking
Fund
Reserve

Net Debt
2008

720 $

955 $

Estimated
Net Sinking
Fund
Earnings
2008

32 $

Principal
Repayments
2008

51 $

Interest
Expense
2008

Net Debt
2007

76 $

1,038

3,624
1,200

2,832
347

792
853

129
15

110
36

172
76

1,031
904

4,824

3,179

1,645

144

146

248

1,935

3,250
11,000

109
369

3,141
10,631

-

109
369

157
531

3,250
11,000

14,250

478

13,772

-

478

688

14,250

300
2,237
0
3,041
1,800
1,000

-

300
2,237
3,041
1,800
1,000

14
-

300
145
685
1,100
-

-

600
2,396
685
3,041
2,900
-

8,378

-

8,378

14

2,230

-

9,622

29,127 $

4,377 $

24,750 $

190 $

2,905 $

1,012 $

26,845

Estimated principal and interest requirements for the next five years are as follows:
Principal
Interest
Total
Year
2009
$
2,476 $
1,022 $
3,498
1,030
2,803
2010
1,773
1,039
5,150
2011
4,111
875
1,831
2012
956
883
1,586
2013
703
Thereafter
14,731
$
24,750
TOWNSHIP OF LANGLEY 2008 ANNUAL REPORT
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SCHEDULE 8 Grants and Transfers
Government
For the year ended December 31, 2008 (in thousands of dollars)
GOVERNMENT GRANTS AND TRANSFERS
For the year ended December 31, 2008 (in thousands of dollars)

2008
FEDERAL GOVERNMENT
Grants in lieu of taxes
Museum

$

PROVINCIAL GOVERNMENT
Local government grants
Highway grant
Sewer Forcemain
West Nile virus monitoring
Natural hazards mitigation
Water Resources Management Strategy
Spirit Square
CIS Capital
Langley Events Centre
Victim/Witness program
Museum
Leisure access
Housing Grant
Hotel Tax
Gaming Proceeds
Tourism Initiative Grant
Other

OTHER
G.V.T.A. (TransLink) costs recovery - operating
G.V.T.A. (TransLink) costs recovery - capital

SUMMARY OF GRANTS
Grants in lieu of taxes
Other government grants
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2007
296
33

$

310
38

329

348

1,434
52
1,399
84
56
348
72
4,062
93
64
45
52
205
13
1
2

1,359
165
3
72
404
10
9,562
72
46
42
149
8

7,982

11,892

2,088
1,338

2,373
519

3,426

2,892

$

11,737

$

15,132

$

296
11,441

$

310
14,822

$

11,737

$

15,132
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9
SCHEDULECentennial
Langley
Museum
Statement
Financial Activities
LANGLEY of
CENTENNIAL
MUSEUM

For the year ended December 31, 2008 (in thousands of dollars)
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES
For the year ended December 31, 2008 (in thousands of dollars)
2008
REVENUE
Donations, sales and programs
Cultural services grant
Transfer from Museum Reserve
Transfer from capital surplus
Federal grants - other
Provincial grants
Other grants
Township of Langley funding

EXPENDITURE
Advertising
Building maintenance
Grounds maintenance
Insurance
Utilities
Office supplies and sundry
Telephone and internet
Travel
Salaries and benefits
Exhibit maintenance
Program and Events
Purchases for resale
Artifact additions
Total operating expenditure

$

84
46
18
7
33
10
11
700

$

67
46
31
34
35
5
566

$

909

$

784

$

37
23
5
11
13
14
7
4
507
130
63
20
2
836

$

20
18
4
11
13
19
8
4
477
55
43
19
691

Capital expenditure
Transfer to Museum Reserve

MUSEUM RESERVE
Balance, beginning of year
Contribution from Museum operations
Operating expense funded by the Reserve Fund
Capital expenditure funded by the Reserve Fund
Balance, end of year (Note 13)
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2007

40
33

69
24

$

909

$

784

$

242
33
(12)
(6)

$

248
24
(18)
(12)

$

257

$

242
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Revenue By Source - 2004 to 2008
(Amounts in $000's)
(Source - Township of Langley)
$90,000
$77,216

$80,000
$70,000

$61,278

$60,000
$50,000
$40,000
$30,000

$16,742

$16,527

$20,000
$10,000
$0
Taxation

User Fees and Frontage
Taxes

2004

2005

Developer Contributions

2006

Fees, Charges & Other

2007

2008

Expenditure By Function - 2004 to 2008
(Amounts in $000's)
(Source - Township of Langley)

$90,000

$82,185

$80,000
$70,000
$60,000
$50,000
$40,000
$30,000

$28,445
$21,285

$20,000

$14,008

$12,024

$7,648

$10,000

$17,637

$0
Police

Fire

2004
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Rec, Culture,
and Parks
2005

Transportation

2006

Utilities

2007

Other

Capital

2008
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Expenditure By Object - 2004 to 2008
(Amounts in $000's)
(Source - Township of Langley)

$90,000

$82,185

$80,000
$70,000
$60,000
$50,000

$43,136

$40,000

$31,947

$30,000
$14,995

$20,000
$10,000

$3,246

$2,995

$3,095

$925

$708

it a

l

e

Ca
p

Int
e

Pr
inc
ip l

res

t

al

Lib

ra

DD
FV

&
GV
S

2004

Le
g

y

Le
v

ry
Le
v

y

ct
Co
ntr
a

RC
MP

Ma
t er
ial

s&

Sa

lar
i

es

Ot
he
r

$0

2005

2006

2007

2008

Capital Expenditure - 2004 to 2008
(Amounts in $000's)
(Source - Township of Langley)
$50,000

$44,453

$40,000
$30,000
$20,000

$15,428

$8,138

$10,000

$638

$412

$0
.&
ov
G
n.
Ge

r
he
Ot

2004
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2005

$13,116
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2008
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2008 Total Township Revenue
(Amounts in $000's)
(Source - Township of Langley)
Taxation
$77,216
Fees, Charges and Other
$61,278
User Fees and Frontage
Taxes $16,527

Developer Contributions
$16,742

2008 Township Taxation versus Collected
For Other Authorities
(Amounts in $000's)
(Source - Township of Langley)
Collected For Other
Authorites
$70,287

Township Taxation
$77,216

2008 Total Township Expenditure
(Amounts in $000's)
(Source - Township of Langley)

Police
$21,285

Fire
$7,648
Recreation, Culture, and
Parks
$14,008

Capital
$82,185

Transportation $12,024
Other
$28,445
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Utilities
$17,637
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Assessed Values by Property Class - 2004 to 2008
(Source - British Columbia Assessment)
90%

83.3%

80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%

13.3%

10%

2.8%

0.1%

0%
Residential
2004

0.5%

Utility

Industrial

Business

2005

2006

2007

Other
2008

Taxation Revenue by Property Class - 2004 to 2008
(Source - Township of Langley)
70%

60.8%

60%
50%
40%

30.6%

30%
20%
10%

6.4%

1.2%

1.0%

0%
Residential
2004

236

Utility

Industrial

Business

2005

2006

2007

Other
2008
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Building Permit Values - 2004 to 2008
(Amounts in $000's)
(Source - Township of Langley)
$450,000
$383,042

$400,000
$350,000
$300,000

$387,319

$319,787

$301,786

$279,553

$250,000
$200,000
$150,000
$100,000
$50,000
$0
2004

2005

2006

2007

2008

Net Development Cost Charge Receipts - 2004 to 2008
(Amounts in $000's)
(Source - Township of Langley)
$25,000
$20,000

$22,300
$18,167
$13,545

$15,000

$10,061

$10,000
$5,765
$5,000
$0
2004
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2005

2006

2007

2008
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Population Estimates - 2004 to 2008
(Source - BC Stats)
120,000
100,000

94,775

97,125

99,537

100,049

101,342

2004

2005

2006

2007

2008

80,000
60,000
40,000
20,000
0

Total Debt Per Capita - 2004 to 2008
(Source - Township of Langley)

$300

$268
$244

$250
$200
$149

$150
$100
$54

$59

2004

2005

$50
$0
2006

2007

2008

Note: Debt is repayable from Development Cost Charge reserves and future land sale proceeds.
There is no outstanding debt repayable from general taxes.
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General Capital Reserve

Water Capital Reserve

2004 to 2008
(Amounts in $000's)

2004 to 2008
(Amounts in $000's)
$3,000

$8,000
$7,000

$2,500

$6,000
$2,000

$5,000

$1,500

$4,000
$3,000

$1,000

$2,000
$500

$1,000
$0

$0
2004

2005

2006

2007

2008

2004

2005

2006

2007

Sewer Capital Reserve

Stormwater Capital Reserve

2004 to 2008
(Amounts in $000's)

2004 to 2008
(Amounts in $000's)

$8,000

2008

$600

$7,000

$500

$6,000
$400

$5,000
$4,000

$300

$3,000

$200

$2,000
$100

$1,000
$0

$0
2004

2005

2006
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2007

2008

2004

2005

2006

2007

2008
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Fire Capital Reserve

Local Area Service Reserve

2004 to 2008
(Amounts in $000's)

2004 to 2008
(Amounts in $000's)

$3,000

$9,000
$8,000

$2,500

$7,000
$2,000

$6,000
$5,000

$1,500

$4,000
$1,000

$3,000
$2,000

$500

$1,000
$0

$0
2004

2005

2006

2007

2008

2004

2005

2006

2007

2008

2007

2008

Debt Reserve

Tax Sale Reserve

2004 to 2008
(Amounts in $000's)

2004 to 2008
(Amounts in $000's)
$250
$250
$200

$200

$150

$150

$100

$100

$50

$50

$0

$0
2004
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2005

2006

2007

2008

2004

2005

2006
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General Fund

Capital

Unappropriated Surplus - 2004 to 2008
(Amounts in $000's)

$25,000

Operating

$20,000
$15,000
$10,000
$5,000
$0
2004

2005

2006

2007

Water Fund

Capital

Unappropriated Surplus - 2004 to 2008
(Amounts in $000's)

$10,000

2008

Operating

$8,000
$6,000
$4,000
$2,000
$0
2004

2005

2006

2007

Sewer Fund

Capital

Unappropriated Surplus - 2004 to 2008
(Amounts in $000's)

$10,000

2008

Operating

$8,000
$6,000
$4,000
$2,000
$0
2004
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2006

2007

2008
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Stormwater Fund

Capital

Unappropriated Surplus - 2004 to 2008
(Amounts in $000's)

$2,000

Operating

$1,600

$1,200

$800

$400

$0
2004

2005

2006

2007

Solid Waste Fund

Capital

Unappropriated Surplus - 2004 to 2008
(Amounts in $000's)

$1,400

2008

Operating

$1,200
$1,000
$800
$600
$400
$200
$0
2004

242

2005

2006

2007

2008
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2008 Average Monthly Cost of
Township of Langley Services ($168)
(Based on a residential property assessed at $473,000)

Garbage Services
$12
Stormwater Services
$7

Transportation Services
$19

Sewer Services
$24

Water Services
$25
RCMP Services
$30

TOWNSHIP OF LANGLEY 2008 ANNUAL REPORT

General Services
$38

Fire Services
$13
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2008 Property Tax Exemptions

Under the Community Charter, certain properties are statutorily exempt from municipal property taxes, including provincial, municipal,
first nations, hospital, school, religious, and parts of farm properties. However, if these properties are leased out for other purposes,
the properties become taxable. Township Council cannot provide tax exemptions to businesses.
The Community Charter also allows the Township Council to provide permissive property tax exemptions to non-profit organizations
that meet service objectives of the Township. If a township property is leased to a non-profit organization, the property tax status
changes from exempt to taxable. The Council may then provide an exemption to the non-profit organization for the value of the
resulting property taxes. The values of all the 2007 permissive tax exemptions are listed below.

Estimated
Municipal
Tax Value

Roll #

Property Description

0026711112

Fernridge Community Hall Society
Pt. 90' x 121', SE1/4, Sec. 15, Twp. 7, LS 16, NWD

1,081.20

0162811114

Willoughby Community Hall Society
Lot A(5067), SW1/4, Sec. 25, Twp. 8, Pl.1137, S & E. Sk. 9716, NWD

1,146.85

0386211115

Murrayville Community Memorial Hall Association
Pt. .21 Ac., SW1/4, Sec. 6, Twp. 11, Sk. 96, NWD

1,356.99

0386311114

Murrayville Community Memorial Hall Association
W1/2 of Lot 2, SW1/4, Sec. 6, Twp. 11, Pl. 2393, NWD

0453111114

Harmsworth Community Association
Pt. 2 Ac., NW1/4, Sec. 16, Twp. 11, Pl. 109278F Ex.F/W Pl. 28861, NWD

1,418.80

0571511119

Fort Langley Community Improvement Society
Pt. 1.012 Ac., DL 79, Gp. 2, Sk. 12854, NWD

4,845.62

0072011006

Brookswood Senior Citizens Society
Pcl “A” EP17083. Plan 1482 Part NE 1/4 Sec 27 Twp 7 NWD 012-282-260.”

5,438.40

0075211114

Brookswood Community Club Association
Pt. of SE1/4, Sec. 34, Twp. 7, Pl. 2048, NWD

3,542.29

0083911111

Langley Riders Society
Lot 31, SE1/4, Sec. 35, Twp. 7, Pl. 36344

0125611006

Langley Kinsmen Recreation Hall Society
Pcl 8, NW1/4, Sec. 14, Twp. 8, Pl. 2249, EP 15924 of Lot 5, NWD

1,261.95

0321313002

Langley Prairie Elks Club
Pcl. F (see M6255E), NW 1/4, Sec. 32, Twp. 10, Ex. Pcl. (Ref. Pl. 5280) & Pt. Lot 6, Pl.
57279, NWD.

2,397.57

0614911113

B.C. Old Age Pensioners (Aldergrove O.A.P.O.#71)
Blk. 2, NW 1/4, Sec. 20, Twp. 13, Pl. 1621, NWD

5,214.31
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744.42

790.02
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Estimated
Municipal
Tax Value

Roll #

Property Description

0616611111

Aldergrove Veterans & Seniors Society
Sec. 20, Twp. 13, Pl. 6587, E 32' of 2, RP 8614, Lot B

2,146.06

1565311112

Fort Langley Lions Club
Lots 69 & 60, D.L. 324, Grp. 2, Plan 645, NWD

1,752.55

0471611111

Langley Rugby Club
Lot 8, NWD, Pl. 2421, Dstr. LOT 21 & 22, Grp. 2

2,766.18

1335311110

Corporation of the Township of Langley (Langley Association for Community Living)
Lots 7 & 8, Sec. 33, Twp. 10, Pl. 12012, NW ¼

2,200.86

0002311117

Critter Care Wildlife Society
Sec 1, Twp 7, NWD Pt E1/2 of S ½ of NE 14 exc Pl S 33’, DWLG & 1 ac (lease)

1,920.39

0014811117

Pacific Riding for Developing Abilities
Sec 1, Twp 7, NWD, Pt N ½ of SE ¼ of NW ¼ of SW ¼

2,182.73

0078817009

Langley Hospice Society
Lt 56, Sec 35, Twp 7, PL38490, Pt S/W 1/4

0101612006

Canadian Museum of Flight
Lt 2, DL 307, PL 5745, Grp.2, Lease Langley Airport Hanger #3

3,597.45

1084011117

Corporation of the Township of Langley (Langley BMX Association)
Lot 236, Sec. 35, Twp. 7, NWD, Plan 42935 Part S/E 1/4

2,884.37

1498611113

Corporation of the Township of Langley (Girl Guides - Ponder Park)
Lot Park, District Lot 318, NWD, Plan 45454, Group 2, 1.278 Acres

0362111117

Corporation of the Township of Langley (Langley Annimal Protection Society)
Sec. 1, TWP 11, NWD Parcel C EP 12503, Part NE 1/4, Except Plan HWY 23059

0006411117

City of Surrey
LOT D, SECTION 2, TOWNSHIP 7, NEW WEST DISTRICT, PLAN 21402 PART SE1/4.

16,320.37

0054411117

Langley Rod and Gun Club
Sct. 25, TWP 7, NW Dist. Part NW 1/4 of NW 1/4, Except Plan LMP38137-RD, SEE
00544110-19 FOR

21,780.17

0384011005

Nicomekl Enhancement Society
Lot A, Section 5, Twp 11, Land District 36, Plan LMP21511, NWD, PID 023-065-613.

3,706.04

0552111006

BC Farm Machinery Museum AssociationLots 4 & 5, Blk. 15, DL 19, Gp. 2, Pl. 8855,
NWD

9,213.39

0552611118

BC Farm Machinery Museum Association
Lot 68, DL 19, Gp.2, Pl. 30531, NWD

7,472.41

0758714091

Scouts Canada
Lot 11, Section 14,Twp 7, PL 27565, PID 008-905-401

6585111000

Corporation of the Township of Langley (Langley Quarter Midget Association)
Lot 1, Section 7, Twp 13, Pln 20961, Part SW 1/4
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22,075.78
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Financial Section

2008 Property Tax Exemptions

Estimated
Municipal
Tax Value

Roll #

Property Description

0372511112

Langley Association for Community Living
Lot 2, Section:3 TWP:11 PLN:9437 Part N/W 1/4

2,197.56

0764111043

Lutheran Church-Canada, Alberta-BC District ( Wagner Farms)
Lot A, Sec. 25, Twp 11, NWD, Plan 1383 See BX489974

3,331.95

0764130095

Milner Community Association
Lot 3, Group 2, Plan BCP22732 District Lot 21 & 22

1,313.57

0764529049

Langley Children's Society (Langley Child Development Centre)
Lot 15, Sec. 6, Twp. 11, NWD, Plan BCS1925

3,471.61

0764529058

Langley Children's Society (Langley Child Development Centre)
Lot 16, Sec. 6, Twp. 11, NWD, Plan BCS1925

3,740.52

0616312015

Aldergrove Elks Lodge No 66
Lot 68, Sec. 20, Twp. 13, NWD, Plan 51537 Part NW 1/4, Except Pl. LMP51537-RD

7,377.61

0094411113

Brenda & Roland Taylor (Milner Cash Grocery)
Lot 2, Sec. 36, Twp. 7, NWD, Pl. 8991 Part NE 1/4, EPLMP18613 (RD), Explanatory Plan
27806

0316414019

Corporation of the Township of Langley (Langley Heritage Society)
Lot 1, Sec. 31, Twp. 10, NWD, Pl. NWP88232 Part NW 1/4

8,003.73

0463111113

Corporation of the Township of Langley (Langley Heritage Society)
Lot 4, DL 21/22, NWD, Pl. 20843, Gr.2

956.49

0758430085

Edward & Lynda Lightfoot (Leaf House)
Lot 3, Sec. 5, Twp. 14, NWD, Pl. NWP87490 Part NE1/4, Except Pl. LMP44280

887.26

0760115092

Brenda & Roland Taylor (Milner Cash Grocery)
Lot A, Sec. 36, Twp. 7, NWD, Pl. BCP22523

3,005.34

0132812009

Langley Meadows Community Association – Matheson House
Lt 9, Sec 15, Twp 8, NWD, Pl 25100 Pt SE 1/4

6,210.30

1494511113

Langley Heritage Society (Sperling Methodist Church)
Sec 22, Twp 11, Plan 13488, Parcel A Part SW 1/4

1,584.68

0597611006

Aldergrove Heritage Society (BC Tel Bldg)
Lot 351, Sec 19, Twp 13, Pln 58786, Part NW 1/4

0764528022

Langley Children's Society (Langley Child Development Centre)
Lot 3, Sec 6, Twp 11, NWD, Plan BCS1925

832.33

660.19
4,317.97

0751811007

Langley Heritage Society (Fort Langley CN Station)
DL79, Plan 26033E, Parcel L, Group 2, Lease Ptn 012-871-087

2,279.15

0316111113

Langley Heritage Society (Lamb-Stirling & Harrower Houses)
Lt 37, Sec 31, Twp 10, NWD, Pl 36578, Part NW 1/4

1,230.63
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Township of Langley
20338 - 65 Avenue, Langley, British Columbia V2Y 3J1
General Information
604.534.3211
Finance Division
604.533.6022
tol.bc.ca

The Township of Langley strives to use environmentally responsible methods and materials and encourages its residents to do the same. Please recycle.

